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Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private

foundations)

B Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as 1t may be made public By law, the IRS
generally cannot redact the information on the form
Bk Information about Form 990 and its instructions i1s at www.IRS.gov/form990

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Open to Public

Inspection

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07-01-2013

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change
I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended return

|_ Application pending

C Name of organization
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

, 2013, and ending_j 06-30-2014

D Employer identification number

52-0591658

Doing Business As

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)

301 ST PAUL PLACE

Room/suite

E Telephone number

(410)332-9000

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

BALTIMORE, MD 21202

F Name and address of principal officer

THOMAS MULLEN
301 ST PAULPLACE

BALTIMORE,MD 21202

G Gross recelpts $ 442,690,549

H(a) Is this a group return for
subordinates?

[T Yes ¥ No
[~ Yes[ No

H(b) Are all subordinates
included?

I Tax-exempt status

[~ 4947(a)(1) or [ 527

If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

¥ s501(c)(3) [ 501(c) ( ) ™ (insert no )

J Website:» WWW MDMERCY COM

H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other =

L Year of formation 1949

M State of legal domicile
MD

m Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
MERCY IS DEDICATED TO CARRYING FORWARD THE TRADITION OF THE SISTER'S HEALING MINISTRY IN BALTIMORE
GROUNDED IN A VISION OF GOD'S HEALING LOVE FOR ALL PEOPLE, WE ARE COMMITTED TO PROVIDING HEALTHCARE
FOR PERSONS OF EVERY CREED, COLOR, AND ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL CONDITION IN BALTIMORE CITY, CENTRAL
MARYLAND AND BEYOND IN THE TRADITION OF CATHOLIC HEALTHCARE AND OF THE SISTERS OF MERCY, WE
CONTINUE OUR SPECIAL COMMITMENT TO POOR AND UNDERSERVED PERSONS MERCY IS DRIVEN BY ITS MISSION
g TO SERVE AND WILL REMAIN STEADFAST IN ITS COMMITMENT TO UPHOLD ITS HIGHEST STANDARDS FOR CARE, ITS
E COMMITMENT OT THE POOR AND ITS COMMITMENT OT BALTIMORE WE ARE HERE TO PROVIDE EXCELLENT
= HEALTHCARE, WITH COMPASSION AND RESPECT, TO ALL WHO COMETO US FOR HELP
4
=
o
!
;53 2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 7
< 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 0
5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 3,937
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 190
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 617,882
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b -258,208
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 11,060,143 6,607,195
@
= 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 399,628,631 409,001,840
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 3,608,903 4,340,520
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 15,945,594 22,177,322
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 430,243,271 442,126,877
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0 80,000
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 196,990,529 199,148,978
w
E 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) (Y
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 226,612,848 230,088,034
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 423,603,377 429,317,012
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 6,639,894 12,809,865
o? - -
T Beginning of Current End of Year
5.3% Year
o
33 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 806,011,712 814,805,386
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 556,516,459 553,749,335
o
oL |22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 249,495,253 261,056,051

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ - |2014-10-17
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here JUSTIN DEIBEL CFO
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN
Paid AARON COHEN 2015-05-11 | ojf-employed | P01782580
ai Firm's name ® DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN LLP Firm's EIN # 56-0747981
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address B 111 ROCKVILLE PIKE 6TH FLOOR Phone no (240) 403-3700

ROCKVILLE, MD 20850

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

[“Yes[ No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 2

m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthis PartIII . . . . . &+ +v « +v o « « .

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission

MERCY IS DEDICATED TO CARRYING FORWARD THE TRADITION OF THE SISTER'S HEALING MINISTRY IN BALTIMORE
GROUNDED IN A VISION OF GOD'S HEALING LOVE FOR ALL PEOPLE, WE ARE COMMITTED TO PROVIDING HEALTHCARE FOR
PERSONS OF EVERY CREED, COLOR, AND ECONOMIC AND SOCIALCONDITION IN BALTIMORE CITY, CENTRAL MARYLAND AND
BEYOND IN THE TRADITION OF CATHOLIC HEALTHCARE AND OF THE SISTERS OF MERCY, WE CONTINUE OUR SPECIAL
COMMITMENT TO POOR AND UNDERSERVED PERSONS MERCY IS DRIVEN BY ITS MISSION TO SERVE AND WILL REMAIN
STEADFAST INITS COMMITMENT TO UPHOLD ITS HIGHEST STANDARDS FOR CARE,ITS COMMITMENT OT THE POOR AND ITS
COMMITMENT OT BALTIMORE WE ARE HERE TO PROVIDE EXCELLENT HEALTHCARE, WITH COMPASSION AND RESPECT,TO ALL
WHO COMETO US FORHELP

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported

4a (Code ) (Expenses $ 338,341,913 including grants of $ 80,000 ) (Revenue $ 429,821,675)

TO PROVIDE HEALTHCARE TO PATIENTS WITHOUT REGARD TO ABILITY TO PAY MERCY STRIVES TO PROVIDE EXCELLENT CLINICAL SERVICES ACROSS THE LIFE
SPAN WITHIN A COMMUNITY OF COMPASSIONATE CARE MERCY MEDICAL CENTER(MMC) HAS OVER 200 LICENSED BEDS MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S PRIMARY
SERVICE AREA (PSA) WHICH COMPRISES 17 ZIP CODES IN BALTIMORE CITY, ACCOUNTS FOR ALMOST 60% OF ITS TOTAL ADMISSIONS THE KEY DEMOGRAPHIC
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PSA AS OF 2010 ARE AS FOLLOWS 64% OF THE POPULATION IS BLACK 62% OF PATIENTS SERVED BY MMC ARE MEMBERS OF A
RACIAL OR ETHNIC MINORITY 65% ARE WOMEN 53% ARE MEDICAID AND/OR MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES 12% OF THE POPULATION IS 65 YEAR IN AGE AND
OLDER THE MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME OF THE POPULATION IS $39,113 40% OF BALTIMORE CITY HOUSEHOLDS REPORTED A INCOME OF LESS THAN $30,000
THREE TIMES AS MANY FAMILIES LIVING IN BALTIMORE CITY HAD INCOME THAT WAS BELOW THE POVERTY LEVEL COMPARED TO ALL FAMILES IN MARYLAND
WITHIN THE HOSPITAL'S 17 ZIP CODES THAT COMPRISE THE PSA 35% OF FAMILIES LIVE BELOW THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL DEFINITION DUE TO ITS LOCATION
IN CENTER CITY, MMC CARES FOR MANY OF THE AT-RISK, LOW INCOME POPULATION IN THE COMMUNITIES THAT IMMEDIATELY SURROUND THE HOSPITAL THIS
IS BEST EVIDENCED BY THE LARGE PERCENTAGE OF EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS BY MEDICAID, UNINSURED, AND MEDICARE PATIENTS MEDICAID COVERED AND
UNISURED PATIENTS ACCOUNTED FOR A SUBSTANTIAL PORTION OF THE EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS IN FY 2014, AT A DIRECT COST TO THE HOSPITAL, THE
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM WAS UNDERTAKEN, WHICH PROVIDED A COMPREHENSIVE RANGE COUSELING SERVICES AND COMMUNITY RESOURCE LINKAGES
TO NUMEROUS PATIENTS MMC DELIVERED MORE BABIES, THAN ANY OTHER HOSPITAL IN BALTIMORE CITY IN FY 2014 OF THESE BABIES,A SIGNIFICANT
PERCENTAGE WERE OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT OR PREMATURE MANY OF THE PATIENTS WHO DELIVERED BABIES AT MMC WERE EITHER MEDICAID BENEFICIARIES
OR UNISURED/SELF PAY THIS POPULATION IS ESPECIALLY LINKED WITH LOW BIRTH WEIGHT AND PREMATURITY DUE TO POVERTY THAT CLOSELY RELATED TO
UNHEALTHY LIFESTYLES, PARTICULARLY, POOR NUTRITITION AND INADEQUATE PRENATAL CARE

4b (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses & 338,341,913

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
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11

12a

13

14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see Instructions)? ¥ 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or Iindirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) Yes
election In effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I1 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule C,
Part 111 . 5 No
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts 1n such funds or accounts? If "Yes,"” complete
Schedule D, Part % 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part I 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 111 Y& 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? If "Yes,"”" complete Schedule D, Part I 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 Yes
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part VI.¥& . 11a | Yes
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII'E 11b | Yes
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII 11c No
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 162 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I e e e e e 11d No
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X%} 11e | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f | ves
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII & 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional ¥ 12b | Yes
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, iInvestment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b | Yes
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 17 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I 18 No
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I1]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete ScheduleH . . . . E 20a | Yes
If"Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b | Ves

Form 990 (2013)
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24a

25a
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31

32

33

34

35a

36
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38

v

Part I

Page 4
13 @A Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 21 Yes
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and I]
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on 22 N
PartIX, column (A), ine 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] °
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3,4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s v
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 s
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d v
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a 24a es
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b No
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year N
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 0
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" 1Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d No
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, ine 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 26 No
If so, complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b 0
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c 0
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified N
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No

31
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations N
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 °
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,

Yes

and Part V, line 1 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a | Yes
If 'Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 35b | v
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 es
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 'E 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 s

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartV... . . . + v W v w « .« .« . .

Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 438
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter-0- if not applicable ib 0

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . . . . & e e e e e 2a 3,937

b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) 2b ves
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a Yes
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No” to /ine 3b, provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . 3b Yes
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4a | Yes
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country »CJ
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5c¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a No
services provided to the payor?
b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which 1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T

h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a

b If"Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state?

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization 1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 6

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

"No" response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.

See instructions.

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI 2
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 7
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 0

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 No

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?

4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
filed? No

5 Didthe organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? Yes

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? 7a Yes

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b Yes
or persons other than the governing body?

8 Didthe organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following

a The governing body? 8a Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b Yes

9 1Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e (0] 9 No
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a No

b If"Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
1l1a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? 1la | Yes
b Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,” go to line 13 12a | Yes
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rise to conflicts? 12b | Yes
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe
in Schedule O how this was done 12c | Yes
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 Yes
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 Yes
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a No
Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b No
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? 16a No

b If"Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate Its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 s required to be filed=MD

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T own website [ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explainin Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization

mJUSTIN DEIBEL 301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE,MD 21202 (410)659-2905

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartVII . . . . . . . « « .« . . . I

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s
tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations
List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons
[T Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation | compensation amount of
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related other
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations compensation
for related oS | _ 2 = o T |n (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- from the

organizations |[= & | = | & [¢ |24G |2 MISC) MISC) organization
oz % |9 o> | =
below = s |3 o e o |2 and related
g [ = il = i R
dotted line) cC |z P organizations
o2 | e Do
- = L} [m]
— o Mt =
c | = I =
AEHEEE
O I a
1 B
- T
=l
(1) THOMAS MULLEN 15 00
X X 0 903,079 21,000
CHAIR, EX OFFICIO 2500
(2) KIM BUSHNELL 40 00
X 214,120 0 14,800
DIRECTOR 0 00
(3) SCOTT SPIER MD 33 50
X 427,657 0 30,000
SR VP/DIRECTOR 6 50
(4) JOHN TOPPER 15 00
X X 0 455,327 31,000
SR VP & CRO/TREASURER 2500
(5) SUSAN FINLAYSON 38 00
X 401,064 0 16,150
SR VP/DIRECTOR 200
(6) JUSTIN DEIBEL 15 00
X 268,124 0 27,000
SR VP & CFO/DIRECTOR 2500
(7) MICHAEL MULLANE 2500
X 345,478 0 26,150
DIRECTOR 15 00
(8) JAMES LEVY MD 40 00
X 354,306 0 33,800
PHYSICIAN 0 00
(9) WILMA A S ROWE MD 39 50
X 704,643 0 27,150
SR VP 50
(10) MICHAEL SAMBAT MD 40 00
X 438,304 0 25,108
SR VP 0 00
(11) ALBERT HAN MD 40 00
X 396,729 0 7,469
SR VP 0 00
(12) DAVID BRIGHT MD 40 00
X 370,113 0 8,500
PHYSICIAN 0 00

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

Page 8

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless compensation compensation amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- | organizations (W- from the
for related o= — 2 = o T | | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) | organization and

organizations ag_ S |2 T 25 |2 related
below = = 2|2 o %ﬁ 3 organizations
g [m = == == i)
dotted line) (= = = [z |7
o2 =) Y (oo
- = = o =
=8 o 3
2 |2 B2
T 5 =
€ o
[}
i1b  Sub-Total >
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A *
Total (add lines 1b and 1c) * 3,920,538 1,358,406 268,127
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organizationk10
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,”" complete Schedule J for such individual . .+« .« « « &« « &« o &« 2 &« &« & 3 No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such
individual « « = & & 4 4 w4 4 e w w aa s e s e e e owla | Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson .+« .« « « &« &« & 5 No
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year
(R) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
WHITING TURNER PO BOX 17596 BALTIMORE MD 21297 CONSTRUCTION 16,025,553
CURA HOSPITALITY PO BOX 644091 PITTSBURG PA 152644091 FOOD SERVICES 4,766,317
EPIC SYSTEM CORPORATION 1979 MILKY WAY VERONA WI 53593 BILLING SYSTEM 4,759,046
RADAMERICA II LLC 9105 FRANKLIN SQUARE DR BALTIMORE MD 21237 MEDICAL SERVICES 3,026,845
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MEDICAL SYSTEMS 22 SOUTH GREENE ST BALTIMORE MD 21201 MEDICAL SERVICES 2,659,237
2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization »93

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 9
m Statement of Revenue
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. .. . L
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections
512-514
la Federated campaigns . . 1a
g2
[ b Membershipdues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
2 £ ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
el
E 5 d Related organizations . . . id
o=
- Government grants (contributions) 594,435
¥ = e le
in
E - f Al other contnibutions, gifts, grants, and  1f 6,012,760
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
.'E 5 g Noncash contributions included in lines
= la-1f $
==
= = h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 6,607,195
oom -
@ Business Code
E 2a PATIENT REVENUE 408,178,163 408,178,163
=
SE b PEDIATRIC REVENUE 823,677 823,677
-
x c
E d
— e
&
= f All other program service revenue
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 409,001,840
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 4.362 564 4.362 564
and other similar amounts) * A A
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , *
5 Royalties *
(1) Real (n) Personal
6a Gross rents 1,610,154
b Less rental 541,628
expenses
¢ Rental income 1,068,526
or (loss)
d Net rental iIncome or (loss) [ 1,068,526 1,068,526
(1) Securities (n) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and 22,044
sales expenses
Gain or (loss) -22,044
Net gain or (loss) - -22,044 -22,044
8a Gross income from fundraising
2 events (not including
T $
- of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
& See Part1IV, line 18
o
:. a
&
_'_1:_ b Less direct expenses . . . b
o) c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . .
9a Gross income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a
b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . .m
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a
b Less costofgoods sold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of iInventory . . @
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a MANAGEMENT FEE 561000 7,380,024 7,143,586 236,438
b OTHER REVENUE 6,687,933 6,687,933
€ PARKING GARAGE 812930 3,298,711 2,922,839 375,872
d All other revenue 3,742,128 3,613,012 5,572 123,544
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
21,108,796
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
442,126,877 429,369,210 617,882 5,532,590

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 10
m Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . .. L
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See PartIV, line 21 80,000 80,000
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV,line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Othersalaries and wages 166,824,992 120,956,450 45,868,542
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) 4,571,832 3,506,595 1,065,237
9 Other employee benefits 16,109,853 12,356,257 3,753,596
10 Payroll taxes 11,642,301 8,929,645 2,712,656
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management 1,725,785 1,725,785
b Legal 1,331,694 23,547 1,308,147
c Accounting 740,055 287,702 452,353
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services See PartIV, line 17
f Investment management fees 317,272 317,272
g Other(Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% ofline 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule O) 26,827,656 18,785,596 8,042,060
12 Advertising and promotion 1,653,050 1,481,260 171,790
13 Office expenses 98,953,256 93,312,072 5,641,184
14 Information technology 887,973 887,973
15 Rovyalties
16 Occupancy 9,181,328 8,630,552 550,776
17  Travel 467,718 411,403 56,315
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 360,585 98,521 262,064
20 Interest 18,850,373 18,850,373
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 35,305,626 22,403,918 12,901,708
23 Insurance 13,533,775 12,442,563 1,091,212
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 11,283,753 9,944,380 1,339,373
b OTHER 6,613,353 4,807,678 1,805,675
c¢ GARAGE TOWNE PARK EXPEN 1,541,366 1,541,366
d LOSS ON EARLY RETIREMEN 365,134 365,134
e All other expenses 148,282 145,428 2,854
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 429,317,012 338,341,913 90,975,099 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 11

Balance Sheet

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 63,195,911 1 68,661,339
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2,155,083 2 1,292,522
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4 Accounts recelvable, net 22,700,401 4 20,298,238
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958 (f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
" organizations (see Instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
o 6
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 168,391 7 137,402
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 6,705,793 8 6,968,764
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 4,030,649 9 4,322,105
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis
Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 762,547,087
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 247,336,926 517,999,727| 10c 515,210,161
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 33,759,446| 11 32,568,726
12 Investments—other securities See PartIV,line 11 115,263,642 12 115,781,896
13 Investments—program-related See PartIV, line 11 13 24,830,879
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,line 11 40,023,669| 15 24,733,354
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 806,011,712| 16 814,805,386
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 57,713,023| 17 60,759,741
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 432,591,274 20 424,772,329
w |21 Escrow or custodial account liability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D e e e e sy o 66,212,162 25 68,217,265
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 556,516,459| 26 553,749,335
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [ and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 226,961,542 27 239,973,189
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 21,410,281 28 19,959,432
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 1,123,430 29 1,123,430
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ and
= complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
0 33 Total net assets or fund balances 249,495 253 33 261,056,051
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 806,011,712 34 814,805,386

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 12
lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI v
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 442,126,877
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 429,317,012
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 12,809,865
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 249,495,253
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5 5,440,785
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6
7 Investment expenses
7
8 Prior period adjustments
8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9 -6,689,852
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 261,056,051
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI1I .-
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [T Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If Yes,' check a box below to Iindicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [v" Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes," to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c Yes
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 3b Yes

required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2013)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the

Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1)
nonexempt charitable trust.

I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions.
P Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at

Name of the organization
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

www.irs.gov /form990.

52-0591658

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 ¥ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated In conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described In
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T Anorganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [T An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of Iits support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ Type III - Non-functionally integrated
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization I1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it i1s a Type I, Type II, or Type I1I supporting organization,
check this box
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)

(i) Name of
supported
organization

(i) EIN

(iii) Type of
organization
(described on

(iv) Is the
organization In
col (i) listed In

(v) Did you notify
the organization
in col (i) of your

(vi) Is the
organization In
col (i) organized

(vii) Amount of
monetary
support

lines 1- 9 above your governing support? intheU S 7
or IRC section document?
(see
instructions))
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990EZ.

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 2
IERTESN Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part II1. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

6

n) B (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

iy (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or not
the business Is regularly carried
on

Otherincome Do notinclude gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part IV )

Total support (Add lines 7 through
10)

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see Iinstructions) | 12 |

First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a 501(c)(3) organization, check

this box and stop here il
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 14
15 Public support percentage for 2012 Schedule A, PartII, line 14 15
16a 33 1/3% support test—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
b 33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check a box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2013. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14
I1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [ 2
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization PI_
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose
3 Gross recelipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
6 Total.Add lines 1 through 5
7a Amounts includedonlines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year
c Addlines 7aand 7b
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
9 Amounts from line 6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975
c Addlines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
12 Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c,
11,and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here >
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part I1I, line 15 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, PartIII, ine 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 I1s more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
b 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 orline 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 18
I1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or
17b; and Part I1I, ine 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See Instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527
= Complete if the organization is described below. I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
I See separate instructions.  Information about Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its
instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990.

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Cam paign Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations Complete Parts FA and B Do not complete Part I-C

# Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations Complete Parts I-A and C below Do not complete Part |-B

# Section 527 organizations Complete Part I-A only

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFA Do not complete Part II-B

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFB Do not complete Part IIF-A
If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy Tax), then

# Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations Complete Part Il

Name of the organization
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658

Employer identification number

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV

2 Political expenditures L3

3  Volunteer hours

-ladd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 L3
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 L3
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? [~ Yes [~ No
4a Was a correction made? [T Yes [ No
b If"Yes," describe inPartIV
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527
exempt function activities L3
3 Total exempt function expenditures Addlines 1 and 2 Enter here and on Form 1120-POL, ine 17b L3
Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? [~ Yes ™ No

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing
organization made payments For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds Also enter the
amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a
separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC) If additional space I1s needed, provide information in Part IV

(b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from
filing organization's

funds If none, enter-0-

(a) Name

(e) Amount of political
contributions received
and promptly and
directly delivered to a
separate political
organization If none,
enter -0-

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Cat No 50084S Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election

under section 501(h)).

A Check m[ Ifthe filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,

expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures)
B Check M| ifthe filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expendit_ure; or(_;(aazé;ltlrogn's (b) :rfg'llj'stEd
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.) totals totals
la Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying)
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)
c Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)
d Other exempt purpose expenditures
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d)
f Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the following table in both
columns
If the amount on line le, column (a) or (b) is: The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1le
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f)
h Subtractline 1g from line 1a If zero orless, enter-0-
i Subtractline 1ffrom line 1¢c If zero or less, enter -0-
j Ifthere 1s an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 11, did the organization file Form 4720 reporting
section 4911 tax for this year? [~ Yes [~ No

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 50

1(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below. See the instructions for lines 2a through 2f on page 4.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year

beginning in) (a) 2010 (b) 2011

(c) 2012

(d) 2013

(e) Total

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e))

c Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of ine 2d, column (e))

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT
filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)).
For each "Yes" response to lines 1a through 11 below, provide in Part IV a detailed description of the lobbying (a) (b)
activity. Yes No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum,
through the use of

a Volunteers? No

b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 11)? No

¢ Media advertisements? No

d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public? No

e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? No

f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? Yes 80,000

g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body? No

h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means? No

i Otheractivities? No

j Total Add lines 1c¢ through 11 80,000
2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described Iin section 501(c)(3)? | No

b If"Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

c If"Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912

d Ifthe filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? |

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).

1
2
3

Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members?
Did the organization make only In-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less?
Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political expenditures from the prior year?

Yes | No

1

2

3

-1adeegd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part III-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No" OR (b) Part III-A,

line 3, is answered “Yes."”

5

Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members

Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

Current year

Carryover from last year

Total

Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues

If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and
political expenditure next year?

Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see Iinstructions)

1

2a

2b

2c

Part IV Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1, Part |I-B, ine 4, Part|-C, line 5, Part I1-A (affiliated group list), Part II-A, line 2, and
PartIl-B, ine 1 Also, complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

PART II-B,LINE 1

IN THE TAXYEAR 2013 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CONTRIBUTED $80,000 TO MARYLAND
MATERNITY ACCESS COALITION,INC ,A SECTION 501(C)(4) ORGANIZATION THAT IS
ORGANIZED AND OPERATED EXCLUSIVELY FOR SOCIAL WELFARE PURPOSES THE
COALITION PUBLICLY ADVOCATES FOR AND SUPPORTS LEGISLATION, REGULATIONS, AND
PROGRAMS DESIGNED TO MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE HEALTH CARE ACCESS FOR MARYLAND
MOTHERS AND BABIES THE PURPOSE OF THE CONTRIBUTION WAS TO SUPPORT THE WORK
OF THE COALITION INCLUDING ITS PUBLIC EDUCATION AND ADVOCACY EFFORTS THE
COALITION DID ENGAGE IN STATE LOBBYING ACTIVITIESIN 2014

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Part IV Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions. * Information about Schedule D (Form 990) e sI-1 [ Lol {111 e
Intemal Revenue Service and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In
Part XIII

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [ Yes ™ No
i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . I_
Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lne 10.
(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back| (d)Three years back | (e)Four years back
1a Beg|nn|ng of year balance . . . . 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000
b Contributions
c Netinvestment earnings, gains, and losses
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs
f Administrative expenses
g Endofyearbalance . . . . . . 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment
b Permanent endowment = 100000 %
€ Temporarily restricted endowment &
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . .+ . 4 4 4 44w e e e e e w e ] 3a(d No
(ii) related organizations . . . . . 4 4 e e e e e e e e e . a | 3af(i) | Yes
b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b Yes

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line
11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other | (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (Investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land . . . .« 4 e e e e e e e e 16,273,329 16,273,329
b Buildings . . +« .+ + o« v 4 e e e 525,558,034 128,768,719 396,789,315
c Leasehold improvements
d Equipment . . . . . v v e e e e e e 194,536,853 118,568,207 75,968,646
e Other . . + v v v v e e e e e e e e 26,178,871 26,178,871
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . . . . . . . » 515,210,161

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Investments—Other Securities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b.

See Form 990, Part X, ne 12.

(a) Description of security or category

(including name of security)

(b)Book value

(c) Method of valuation

Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests

(3)Other

(A)RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS 105,022,630 F
(B) RESTRICTED CASH 10,759,266 F
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 ) * 115,781,896

Investments—Program Related. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c.

See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation

Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13) *

Other Assets. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d See Form 990, Part X, line 15

(a) Description

(b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.)

.k

Other Liabilities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See

Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
Federal iIncome taxes

POST RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 6,220,720
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 6,183,798
MERRILL LYNCH SWAP 29,804,363
MALPRACTICE TAIL LIABILITY 327,536
CARDINAL DEPOSIT 1912,673
RETIREMENT ANNUITY PLAN OBLIGA 4,115,481
ESTIMATED TAIL LIAB GIC 2,373,559
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 9,279,135
LINE OF CREDIT 8,000,000
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m 68,217,265

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that
reports the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been

provided in Part XIII

~

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return Complete If
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
a Net unrealized gains on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
5 Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI, line 12 ) 5

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. Complete
if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilities 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Other losses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18 ) 5

m Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, Part III, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,

PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional

information

Return Reference

Explanation

PART V, LINE 4

$1,123,000 OFTHE ENDOWMENT FUND BALANCE STEMS FROM A PERMANENT ENDOWMENT
ADMINSTERED AND HELD BY MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION, A RELATED ENTITY OF MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER THE PURPOSE OF THE ENDOWMENT IS TO SUPPORT THE HEALTHCARE
MINISTRY OF THE SISTERS OF MERCY AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

PART X, LINE 2

MHS, MMC, SMI, MFC, SPPS, MHF, AND MSS ARE NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS EXEMPT
FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE,AND ARE THEREFORE NOT SUBJECT TO FEDERALINCOME TAX UNDER CURRENT
INCOME TAX REGULATIONS MHS SUBSIDIARIES OTHERWISE EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL AND
STATE TAXATION ARE NONETHELESS SUBJECT TO TAXATION AT CORPORATE TAX RATES
AT BOTH THE FEDERAL AND STATE LEVEL ON THEIR UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME
CURRENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS DEFINE THE THRESHOLD FOR RECOGNIZING
UNCERTAIN INCOME TAX RETURN POSITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS "MORE
LIKELY THAN NOT" THAT THE POSITION IS SUSTAINABLE, BASED ON ITS TECHNICAL
MERITS, AND ALSO PROVIDE GUIDANCE ON THE MEASUREMENT, CLASSIFICATION AND
DISCLOSURE OF TAX RETURN POSITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MANAGEMENT
BELIEVES THERE IS NO IMPACT ON MHS' ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATED TO UNCERTAIN INCOME TAX POSITIONS

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN: 52-0591658
Name: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Form 990, Schedule D, Part X, - Other Liabilities

1 (a) Description of Liability (b) Book Value

POST RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 6,220,720
DEFERRED COMPENSATION 6,183,798
MERRILL LYNCH SWAP 29,804,363
MALPRACTICE TAIL LIABILITY 327,536
CARDINAL DEPOSIT 1,912,673
RETIREMENT ANNUITY PLAN OBLIGA 4,115,481
ESTIMATED TAIL LIAB GIC 2,373,559
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 9,279,135
LINE OF CREDIT 8,000,000
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SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,

» Information about Schedule F (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.

Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
» Attach to Form 990. + See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

Name of the organization

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658

2013

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

m General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered

"Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers.Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of 1its grants and
other assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criternia used
to award the grants or assistance? .

[T Yes [T No

2 For grantmakers. Describe In Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of 1its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.

3 Activites per Region (The following Part I, line 3 table can be duplicated If additional space 1s needed )

(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of (d) Activities conducted in | (e) If activity listed in (d) 1s (f) Total expenditures
offices In the employees, region (by type) (e g, a program service, descrnbe for and investments
region agents, and fundraising, program services, specific type of In region
independent investments, grants to service(s) In region
contractors In recipients located n the
region region)
(1) CENTRAL AMERICA AND THE INVESTMENT 5,906,718
CARIBBEAN
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
3a Sub-total 0 5,906,718
b Total from continuation sheets 0 0
to PartI
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 0 5,906,718

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50082W
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2013
m Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,

Page 2

Part IV, ine 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated If additional space 1s needed.

1 (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (g) Amount (h) Description (i) Method of
(a) Name of section grant cash grant cash of non-cash of non-cash valuation
organization and EIN (if disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,

applicable) appraisal, other)

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as

tax-exempt by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter . .
3  Enter total number of other organizations or entities . .

Schedule F (Form 990) 2013



Schedule F (Form 990) 2013 Page 3

m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals Outside the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 16.
Part III can be duplicated iIf additional space I1s needed.

(a) Type of grant or (b) Region (c) Number of (d) Amount of (e) Manner of cash (f) Amount of (g) Description (h) Method of
assistance recipients cash grant disbursement non-cash of non-cash valuation

assistance assistance (book, FMV,

appraisal, other)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(e)

(7)

(8)

(9

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

Schedule F (Form 990) 2013
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1a®\'4 Foreign Forms

1

Page 4

Was the organization a U S transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes, "the
organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign Corporation (see
Instructions for Form 926) 2

Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If "Yes,"” the organization may be

required to file Form 3520, Annual Return to Report Transactions with Foreign Trusts and Receipt of Certain Foreign

Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign Trust With a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for

Forms 3520 and 3520-A) -

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,” the
organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons with Respect to Certain Foreign
Corporations. (see Instructions for Form 5471) V

Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a qualified

electing fund during the tax year? If "Yes,” the organization may be required to file Form 8621, Information Return

by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund. (see Instructions for Form "
8621) v

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If "Yes,” the
organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons with Respect to Certain Foreign Partnerships.
(see Instructions for Form 8865)

Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If "Yes,”
the organization may be required to file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see Instructions for Form

5713). -

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

[+ No

Schedule F (Form 990) 2013
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Supplemental Information
Provide the information required by Part I, ine 2 (monitoring of funds); Part I, hine 3, column (f) (accounting
method; amounts of iInvestments vs. expenditures per region); Part II, ine 1 (accounting method); Part III
(accounting method); and Part I1I, column (c) (estimated number of recipients), as applicable. Also complete
this part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

990 Schedule F, Supplemental Information

Return Reference Explanation
SCHEDULEF, PART |, LINE | THE AMOUNT INDICATED AS FOREIGN INVESTMENTS IN PART | WAS MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S OWNERSHIP
3 INTEREST IN GREENLEAF INSURANCE COMPANY, LTD ("GREENLEAF"), A CAY MAN ISLAND CORPORATION
GREENLEAF IS A WHOLLY -OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER THAT PROVIDES DIRECT
COVERA

GE FOR PROFESSIONAL, MALPRACTICE, AND COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY FOR MERCY MEDICAL CE
NTER AND [TS ASSOCIATED HEALTH CARE FACILITES AS OF THEEND OF THE2013 TAX YEAR, THEVA
LUE OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S OWNERSHIP IN GREENLEAF WAS $5,906,718
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SCHEDULE H
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Hospitals

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, question 20.
k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions.

Name of the organization
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658

k- Information about Schedule H (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

m Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

Yes | No
1a Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No," skip to question 6a 1a | Yes
b If"Yes," was it a written policy? 1b | Yes
2 Ifthe organization had multiple hospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of the
financial assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year
I_ Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities I_ Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
I_ Generally taillored to individual hospital facilities
3 Answerthe following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the
organization's patients during the tax year
a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing free care?
If "Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 3a | Yes
™ 100% I 150% I 200%™ Other %
b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If "Yes," indicate
which of the following was the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 3b | ves
I~ 200% I 250%™ 300%™ 350% ¥ 400% [ Other %
c Ifthe organization used factors otherthan FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the income based
criteria for determining eligibility for free or discounted care Include in the description whether the organization
used an asset test or other threshold, regardless of iIncome, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or
discounted care
4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year]
provide for free or discounted care to the "medically indigent"? P e e e e e e e e 4 | Yes
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial assistance policy during
the tax year? 5a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? 5b No
c If"Yes" toline 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or discounted
care to a patient who was eligibile for free or discounted care? 5c
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax year? 6a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization make it available to the public? 6b | Yes
Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions Do not submit these
worksheets with the Schedule H
7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and | (@) Numberof| by persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community benefit | (f) Percent of
Means-Tested activities or served benefit expense revenue expense total expense
programs
Government Programs (optional) (optional)
a Financial Assistance at cost
(from Worksheet 1) . 19,914,296 19,914,296 4 640 %
b Medicad (from Worksheet 3,
column a) e e
¢ Costs of other means-teste
government programs (from
Worksheet 3, column b)
d Total Financial Assistance
and Means-Tested
Government Programs 19,914,296 19,914,296 4 640 %
Other Benefits
e Community health
|mprovement services and
community benefit operations
(from Worksheet 4) 7,061,511 109,549 6,951,962 1620 %
f Health professions education
(from Worksheet 5) 14,081,244 14,081,244 3280 %
g Subsidized health services
(from Worksheet 6) 12,499,975 1,313,442 11,186,533 2 610 %
h Research (from Worksheet 7) 84,945 84,945 0 020 %
1 Cash and in-kind
contributions for community
benefit (from Worksheet 8) 471,692 471,692 0110 %
] Total. Other Benefits 34,199,367 1,422,991 32,776,376 7 640 %
k Total. Add lines 7d and 7) 54,113,663 1,422,991 52,690,672 12 280 %

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50192T
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Im Community Building Activities Complete this table If the organmization conducted any community building
activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities promoted the health
of the communities It serves.

(a) Number of (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent of
activities or  [|served (optional) building expense revenue building expense total expense
programs
(optional)
1  Physical mprovements and housing 702,111 361,691 340,420 0 080 %
2 Economic development
3 Community support 310,010 310,010 0 070 %

4 Environmental improvements

Leadership development and training
for community members 136,363 136,363 0 030 %

6 Coalition building

Community health iImprovement

advocacy 91,463 91,463 0 020 %
8  Workforce development
9 Other
10  Total 1,239,947 361,691 878,256 0 200 %
m Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Heathcare Financial Management Associlation
Statement No 152 . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 No
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount . . . . . . 2

3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense attributable to
patients eligible under the organization's financial assistance policy Explainin Part VI
the methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale, If
any, for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit . . . . . . 3

4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes bad debt expense
or the page number on which this footnote Is contained in the attached financial statements

Section B. Medicare

5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSH andIME) . . . . . 5

Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to paymentsonline5 . . . . .| 6

Subtract line 6 from line 5 This Is the surplus (or shortfall) . . . . . . . .| 7

Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community benefit
Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6
Check the box that describes the method used

0 N O

I_ Cost accounting system I_ Cost to charge ratio I7 Other
Section C. Collection Practices

9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . 9a | Yes

b If"Yes," did the organization’s collection policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year
contain provisions on the collection practices to be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial
assistance? Describe inPartVI . . . T 9b | Yes

Part IV ] nagement Compa nies and Joint Ve NtUre s (owned 10% or more by officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and physicians—see Instructions)

(a) Name of entity (b) Description of primary (c) Organization's (d) Officers, directors, (e) Physicians'
activity of entity profit % or stock trustees, or key profit % or stock
ownership % employees' profit % ownership %
or stock ownership %

10

11

12

13

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities

13yi0-43

(hst in order of size from largest to

smallest—see Instructions)

How many hospital facilities did the

organization operate during the tax year?
1

[EpdEaL pasuEaa]
Epd=oy & ua4p|iyg
[pdsoy Gunama |
Ajpae) oy
84Ny +F—H3

Eudsoy 882208 B30

Name, address, primary website address,
and state license number

See Additional Data Table

o115 g EIpawl ElaUes)

Other (Describe) | Facility reporting group

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices

(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Name of hospital facility or facility reporting group

If reporting on Part V, Section B for a single hospital facility only: line number of
hospital facility (from Schedule H, Part V, Section A)

Yes| No

Community Health Needs Assessment (Lines 1 through 8c are optional for tax years begining on or before March 23, 2012)

1 During the tax year or either of the two |mmed|ate|y preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a community
health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skiptoline9 . . . e 1 |Yes

If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply)

a |7 A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
|7 Demographics of the community

c |_ Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs of
the community

|7 How data was obtained
|7 The health needs of the community
f |7 Primary and chronic disease needs and other health iIssues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups
g |7 The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the community health needs
h |7 The process for consulting with persons representing the community’s interests
i |7 Information gaps that limit the hospital facility’s ability to assess the community’s health needs
j |_ Other (describe in Part VI)
2 Indicate the tax yearthe hospital facility last conducted a CHNA 2012

3 Inconducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
Interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
health? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the
community, and identify the persons the hospital faC|I|ty

consulted. . . . 3 [Yes
4 Was the hospital faC|I|ty s CHNA conducted W|th one or more other hosp|ta| facilities? If "Yes," list the other hospital

facilities iInPartVI . . . C o e e e e e e 4 No
5 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report W|der avallable to the publlc? . e e e e e e e . 5 |Yes

If "Yes," indicate howthe CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply)
|7 Hospital facility’s website (list url) WWW MDMERCY COM

I_ Other website (list url)
|7 Available upon request from the hospital facility
I_ Other (describe iInPart VI)

6 Ifthe hospital facility addressed needs identified in its most recently conducted CHNA, indicate how (check all that apply
as of the end of the tax year)

a n T o

a |7 Adoption of an Implementation strategy that addresses each of the community health needs identified through the
CHNA

b |7 Execution of the implementation strategy

c |_ Participation in the development of a community-wide plan

d |_ Participation in the execution of a community-wide plan

e |_ Inclusion of a community benefit section in operational plans

f |7 Adoption of a budget for provision of services that address the needs identified in the CHNA

g |7 Prioritization of health needs I1n 1ts community

h |7 Prioritization of services that the hospital facility will undertake to meet health needs in its community

i |_ Other (describe in Part VI)
7 Did the hospital facility address all of the needs 1dentified in its most recently conducted CHNA? If "No," explain in Part VI

which needs It has not addressed and the reasons why It has not addressed suchneeds. . . . 7 No
8a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a CHNA as
required by section 501(r(3)? . v v v v v e v e e e e e e e e e 8a No
b If"Yes" to line 8a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the section 4959 excise tax?. . . . . 8b

c If"Yes" to line 8b, what Is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720 for all of its
hospital facilities? $

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Financial Assistance Policy Yes | No
9 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that

Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance includes free or discounted care? 9 |Yes
10 Used federal poverty guidelines (FPG) to determine eligibility for providing free care? . . . f e e e e e 10 | Yes

If"Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 200 000000000000%
If "No," explainin Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
11 Used FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted care? . . e e . 11 | Yes
If "Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 400 000000000000%
If "No," explain in Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients? . . . . . . . . . . . .« .« . . . . 12 | Yes

=
N

If "Yes," indicate the factors used in determining such amounts (check all that apply)
|7 Income level

a
b |7 Asset level

c |7 Medical indigency

d |7 Insurance status

e I_ Uninsured discount

f I_ Medicaid/Medicare

g |7 State regulation

h |_ Residency

i I_Other(descrlbeln Part VI)
13 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? . . . . . . .+ .« « v « W« « & 4 4 4 . . 13 | Yes
14 Included measures to publicize the policy within the community served by the hospital facility? . . . . . . . 14 | Yes

If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply)

a |7 The policy was posted on the hospital facility’s website

b |_ The policy was attached to billing invoices

c |7 The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s emergency rooms or waiting rooms

d |7 The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s admissions offices

e |7 The policy was provided, in writing, to patients on admission to the hospital facility

f |7 The policy was available upon request

g |_ Other (describe in Part VI)

Billing and Collections

15 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained actions the hospital facility may take upon non-payment? . . . . 15 | Yes

16 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's poI|C|es durlng
the tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP

I_ Reporting to credit agency

I_ Lawsuits

|_ Liens on residences

I_ Body attachments

I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

o & n T O

17 Did the hospital facility or an authorized third party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before
making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP? . . . . . . . . . .17 No

If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged
a I_ Reporting to credit agency
b |_ Lawsuits
c |_ Liens on residences
d I_ Body attachments
e I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)
18 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility made before initiating any of the actions listed in line 17 (check all that apply)
|7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy on admission

|7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy prior to discharge
|7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy iIn communications with the individuals regarding the individuals’bills

|7 Documented its determination of whether individuals were eligible for financial assistance under the hospital facility’s
financial assistance policy

e |_ Other (describe in Section C)
Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care

Q n T o

Yes| No

19 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care that requires
the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to individuals regardless of
their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? . . . . . . . . . . 19 [Yes
If "No," indicate why

|_ The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
|_ The hospital facility’s policy was not in writing

n o o

|_ The hospital facility Iimited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Part VI)
d |_ Other (describe in Part VI)

Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)
20 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-
eligible individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care

a |_ The hospital facility used 1ts lowest negotiated commercial insurance rate when calculating the maximum amounts that
can be charged

b |_ The hospital facility used the average of its three lowest negotiated commercial insurance rates when calculating the
maximum amounts that can be charged

c |_ The hospital facility used the Medicare rates when calculating the maximum amounts that can be charged
|7 Other (describe iInPart VI)
21 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided

emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had insurance
coveringsuchcare? . . . . . . . . 4 44w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 21 No

If"Yes," explain in Part VI

22 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual? . . . . . . .+ & & & & 0 i 4 4 e e e e e e e 22 No

If"Yes," explain in Part VI

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
for each facility 1n a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Reference Explanation

See Additional Data Table

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a
Hospital Facility
(hst in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address Type of Facility (describe)

O O NGOV HWN R

[y
o

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information

Provide the following information

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part I, lines 3¢, 6a,and 7, PartII and PartIII, ines 2, 3,4, 8 and 9b
Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities 1t serves, in addition to any
CHNASs reported Iin Part V, Section B

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may
be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the
organization’s financilal assistance policy

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents It serves

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e g, open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc )

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization 1s part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files
a community benefit report

Form and Line Reference Explanation
PART I, LINE 3C MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDES EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE

TO PATIENTS THAT QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT NO CHARGE OR AT
REDUCED-COST BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE FORINCOME (UP TO APPROXIMATELY 400%
OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES)AND TAKING INTO ACCOUNT OTHER
CONSIDERATIONS, AS DESCRIBED BELOW IN ORDER TO QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL
[ASSISTANCE UNDER MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, A
PATIENT MUSTBEA US CITIZEN OR PERMANENT LEGAL RESIDENT WHO QUALIFIES UNDER
AT LEAST ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS 1 A PATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME AT
OR BELOW 200% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN
HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR FULL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE
FORM OF FREE MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE 2 A PATIENT NOT OTHERWISE ELIGIBLE FOR
MEDICAID OR CHIP WHO IS A BENEFICIARY/RECIPIENT OF A MEANS-TESTED SOCIAL
SERVICES PROGRAM, INCLUDING BUT NOT NECESSARILY LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING
PROGRAMS, IS DEEMED ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM OF FREE
MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE, PROVIDED THAT THE PATIENT SUBMITS PROOF OF
ENROLLMENT WITHIN 30 DAYS UNLESS THE PATIENT OR THE PATIENT'S REPRESENTATIVE
REQUESTS AN ADDITIONAL 30 DAYS A)HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN IN THE FREE OR
REDUCED LUNCH PROGRAM B) SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
(SNAP)C)LOW-INCOME-HOUSEHOLD ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM D) PRIMARY ADULT
CARE PROGRAM (PAC), UNTIL SUCH TIME AS INPATIENT BENEFITS ARE ADDED TO THE PAC
BENEFIT PACKAGE E) WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN (WIC)3 A PATIENT WITH FAMILY
INCOME AT OR BELOW 400% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN
HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR PARTIAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE
FORM OF REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE THE AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE IN THIS CASE IS BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE OF INCOME AND SHOWN IN THE
IATTACHED TABLE AND OTHER FACTORS 4 A PATIENT WITH (I)FAMILY INCOME AT OR
BELOW 500% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, (I1) WITH MEDICAL DEBT INCURRED WITHIN
THE 12 MONTH PERIOD PRIOR TO APPLICATION THAT EXCEEDS 25% OF FAMILY INCOME
FOR THE SAME PERIOD, AND (III) WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY
ASSETS WILL QUALIFY FOR PARTIAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM OF REDUCED-
COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE THE AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THIS
CASE IS BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE OF INCOME, AMOUNT OF MEDICAL DEBT, AND OTHER
FACTORS A)AN ELIGIBLE PATIENT OR ANY IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBER OF THE PATIENT
LIVING IN THE SAME HOUSEHOLD SHALL REMAIN ELIGIBLE FOR REDUCED-COST
MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WHEN SEEKING SUBSEQUENT CARE AT MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER DURING THE 12-MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING ON THE DATE ON WHICH THE
REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WAS INITIALLY RECEIVED B)TO AVOID AN
UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S DETERMINATIONS OF
ELIGIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, A PATIENT ELIGIBLE FOR CARE UNDER
PARAGRAPH 4 A SHALL INFORM THE HOSPTIAL OF HIS OR HER ELIGIBILITY FOR THE
REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE 5 AN UNINSURED PATIENT WITH FAMILY
INCOME BETWEEN 200% AND 500% OF FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL WHO REQUESTS
ASSISTANCE QUALIFIES FOR A PAYMENT PLAN 6 A HOMELESS PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 7 A DECEASED PATIENT, WITH NO PERSON DESIGNATED AS
DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS, OR NO ESTATE NUMBER ON FILE AT THE APPICABLE
REGISTRARS OF WILLS DEPARTMENT, QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 8 A
MEDICAID PATIENT WHO HAS A REMAINING BALANCE AFTER RECEIVING MEDICAL
ASSISTANCE QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 9 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER MAY
ELECT TO GRANT PRESUMPTIVE CHARITY CARE TO PATIENTS BASED ON INFORMATION
GATHERED DURING A DEBT COLLECTION PROCESS FACTORS INCLUDE PROPENSITY TO
PAY SCORING, ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION IN OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS, AND
OTHER RELEVENT INFORMATION 10 A PATIENT WHO DOES NOT QUALIFY UNDER THE
PRECEDING CATEGORIES MAY STILL APPLY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, AND MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER WILL REVIEW THE APPLICATION AND MAKE A DETERMINATION ON A
CASE-BY-CASE BASIS AS TO ELIGIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FACTORS THAT
WILL BE CONSIDERED INCLUDE A)FIXED INCOME SUCH AS SOCIAL SECURITY,
RETIREMENT OR DISABILITY WITH NO ADDITIONAL INCOME SOURCES AVAILABLE B)
MEDICAL EXPENSES AND/OR C)EXPENSES RELATED TO NECESSITIES OF LIFE COMPARED
TO INCOME FORALL PURPOSES OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, "HOUSEHOLD
MONETARY ASSETS" MEANS ASSETS THAT ARE CONVERTIBLE TO CASH IN DETERMINING A
PATIENT'S MONETARY ASSETS FOR PURPOSES OF MAKING AN ELIGIBILITY
DETERMINATION UNDER THIS FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, THE FOLLOWING ASSETS
ARE EXCLUDED, (1) THE FIRST $10,000 OF MONETARY ASSETS, (2)EQUITY OF $150,000 IN
A PRIMARY RESIDENCE, AND (3) RETIREMENT ASSETS TO WHICH THE IRS HAS GRANTED
PREFERENTIAL TAX TREATMENT AS A RETIREMENT ACCOUNT, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, QUALIFIED AND NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS




Form and Line Reference Explanation

PART I, LINE 7 THE COSTING METHODOLOGY USED TO CALCULATE AMOUNTS REPORTED IN LINE 7 WAS A
COST-TO-CHARGE RATIO DERIVED FROM WORKSHEET 2,RATIO OF PATIENT CARE COST-
TO-CHARGES




Form and Line Reference Explanation

PART I, LINE 7G THERE ARE NO COSTS REPORTED THAT ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A PHYSICIAN CLINIC




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART I, LINES 7A, 7B AND 7F -
MARYLAND HOSPITAL
INSSOCIATION UNIFIED
RESPONSE

7A CHARITY CARE AT COST AND 7F HEALTH PROFESSIONS EDUCATION ARE EXPLAINED
IN THE FOLLOWING MARYLAND'S REGULATORY SYSTEM CREATES A UNIQUE PROCESS FOR
HOSPITALPAYMENT THAT DIFFERS FROM THE REST OF THE NATION THE HEALTH
SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION, (HSCRC)DETERMINES PAYMENT THROUGH A RATE
SETTING PROCESS ALLPAYORS,INCLUDING GOVERNMENTAL PAYORS, PAY THE SAME
IAMOUNT FOR THE SAME SERVICES DELIVERED AT THE SAME HOSPITAL MARYLAND'S
UNIQUE ALL PAYOR SYSTEM INCLUDES A METHOD FOR REFERENCING UNCOMPENSATED
CARE IN EACH PAYORS' RATES, WHICH DOES NOT ENABLE MARYLAND HOSPITALSTO
BREAKOUT ANY OFFSETTING REVENUE RELATED TO UNCOMPENSATED CARE 7B
UNREIMBURSED MEDICAID IS EXPLAINED IN THE FOLLOWING MARYLAND'S REGULATORY
SYSTEM CREATES A UNIQUE PROCESS FORHOSPITAL PAYMENT THAT DIFFERS FROM THE
REST OF THE NATION THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION, (HSCRC)
DETERMINES PAYMENT THROUGH A RATE SETTING PROCESS ALL PAYORS,INCLUDING
GOVERNMENTAL PAYORS, PAY THE SAME AMOUNT FOR THE SAME SERVICES DELIVERED AT
THE SAME HOSPITAL MARYLAND'S UNIQUE ALL PAYORSYSTEM INCLUDES A METHOD FOR
REFERENCING UNCOMPENSATED CARE IN EACH PAYORS' RATES, WHICH DOES NOT ENABLE
MARYLAND HOSPITALS TO BREAKOUT ANY DIRECTED OFFSETTING REVENUE RELATED TO
UNCOMPENSATED CARE COMMUNITY BENEFIT EXPENSES ARE EQUAL TO MEDICAID
REVENUES IN MARYLAND, AS SUCH, THE NET EFFECT IS ZERO THE EXCEPTION TO THIS IS
[THE IMPACT ON THE HOSPITAL OF ITS SHARE OF THE MEDICAID ASSESSMENT IN RECENT
YEARS, THE STATE OF MARYLAND HAS CLOSED FISCAL GAPSIN THE STATE MEDICAID
BUDGET BY ASSESSING HOSPITALS THROUGH THE RATE SETTING SYSTEM FOR FY 2014

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S SHARE OF THE MEDICAID ASSESSMENT WAS $1,772,638




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART I, LINE 6A

COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT IS MADE AVAILABLE ON ANOTHER'S WEBSITE,
SPECIFICALLY THE WEBSITE FORTHE MARYLAND HSCRC MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
PREPARES ITS COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT ANNUALLY AND ITS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE

PUBLIC




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART III,LINE 4

THE AMOUNT REPORTED AS BAD DEBT EXPENSE ON PART III,LINE 2 WAS DETERMINED
USING ACTUAL BAD DEBT WRITE-OFFS LESS RECOVERIES RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR
IAND AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET RESERVE WRITE OFFS WERE AT CHARGE
LEVEL THE ORGANIZATION HAS NOT ESTIMATED ANY AMOUNT OF BAD DEBT EXPENSE
IATTRIBUTABLE TO PATIENTS ELIGIBLE UNDER THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL
INSSISTANCE POLICY THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE TEXT OF THE FOOTNOTE TO
[THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THAT DESCRIBE THE ORGANIZATION'S
BAD DEBT EXPENSE THE ACTUAL TEXT OF THE FOOTNOTE HAS NOT BEEN USED BECAUSE
THE ORGANIZATION IS A MEMBER OF A GROUP WITH CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES AND ALLOWANCESNET PATIENT SERVICE
REVENUES ARE REPORTED AT THE ESTIMATED NET REALIZABLE AMOUNTS FROM PATIENTS,
[THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, AND OTHERS FOR SERVICES RENDERED THE ORGANIZATION'S
CHARGES ARE BASED ON RATES ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND HEALTH
SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION, ACCORDINGLY, REVENUE REFLECTS ACTUAL
CHARGES TO PATIENTS BASED ON RATES IN EFFECT DURING THE PERIOD IN WHICH THE
SERVICES ARE RENDERED CONTRACTUAL ADJUSTMENTS REPRESENT THE DIFFERENCE
BETWEEN AMOUNTS BILLED AS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE AND AMOUNTS ALLOWED BY
THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, AND ARE ACCRUED IN THE PERIOD IN WHICH THE RELATED
SERVICES ARE RENDERED THE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS IS BASED UPON MANAGEMENT'S
INSSESSMENT OF HISTORICAL AND EXPECTED NET COLLECTIONS THIS ESTIMATE
CONSIDERS BUSINESS AND GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, TRENDS IN HEALTHCARE
COVERAGE AND OTHER COLLECTION INDICATORS THROUGHOUT THE YEAR, MANAGEMENT
IASSESSES THE ADEQUACY OF THE ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS BASED
UPON ITS REVIEWOFACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND COLLECTIONS TO DATE OTHER
FACTORS,SUCH AS PAYER MIX, ACCOUNT AGING, APPROVED DISCOUNTS, DENIAL RATES,
IAND PAYMENT CYCLES ARE CONSIDERED WHEN ESTIMATING THE ALLOWANCES THE
RESULTS OF THESE ASSESSMENTS ARE USED TO DETERMINE THE PROVISION FOR BAD
DEBTS AND TO ESTIMATE AN APPROPRIATE ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS
[THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS ESTABLISHED GUIDELINES FORPLACING ITS SELF-PAY
PATIENT ACCOUNTS WITH AN OUTSIDE COLLECTION AGENCY AFTER COLLECTION
EFFORTS ARE EXHAUSTED, THE UNCOLLECTED BALANCES ARE RETURNED TO BE WRITTEN
OFF TO BAD DEBTS THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT MAINTAIN A MATERIAL ALLOWANCE
FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS, NOR DID IT HAVE
SIGNIFICANT WRITE OFFS FROM THIRD-PARTY PAYERS




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART III,LINE 8

THE COSTING SOURCE IS THE MEDICARE COST REPORT AND THE METHODOLOGY IS

MEDICARE ALLOWABLE COST TO MEDICARE REVENUES RECEIVED




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART III,LINE 9B

ONCE THE COLLECTION PROCESS HAS BEGUN, THE ORGANIZATION CONTINUESTO
MONITOR WHETHER THE PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR CHARITY CARE UNDER THE FINANCIAL
IASSISTANCE POLICY IF THE ORGANIZATION DETERMINES THAT A PATIENT QUALIFIES
FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE,INCLUDING ONCE THE COLLECTION PROCESS HAS BEGUN,
THE ORGANIZATION WILL APPROVE THE PATIENT FOR CHARITY CARE ONCE CHARITY
CARE HAS BEEN APPROVED, THERE IS NO FURTHER ATTEMPT MADE BY THE
ORGNANIZATION TO COLLECT COLLECTION EFFORTS WILL BE STOPPED AT ANY TIME
DURING THE COLLECTION PROCESS IF THE PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR CHARITY CARE UNDER
THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY FURTHERMORE,IF A PATIENT'S FINANCIAL
SITUATION CHANGES AT ANY POINT DURING THE COLLECTION PROCESS, THE PATIENT
MAY QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT SUCH POINT PATIENTS DETERMINED TO BE
ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF SERVICE MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR A REFUND OF PAYMENTS MADE IF IT IS DETERMINED THAT THE PATIENT WAS
ELIGIBLE FOR A REFUND OF PAYMENTS MADE IF IT IS DETERMINED THAT THE PATIENT WAS

ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT THE TIME OF SERVICE




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 2

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER GENERALLY EMPLOYS A MULTI-PRONGED APPROACH IN
IDENTIFYING COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS THESE APPROACHES ARE AS FOLLOWS 1
IANCCESSING EXISTING DATA SOURCES ON HEALTH CARE STATUS IN ITS PRIMARY SERVICE
IAREA (PSA) AS PREVIOUSLY REFERENCED, "BALTIMORE CITY'S HEALTH STATUS REPORT
2010" HAS HELPED PROVIDE THE HOSPITAL WITH KEY DATA ON THE MOST CRITICAL
HEALTH CARE CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PSA'S POPULATION THE CITY OF BALTIMORE
IALSO PREPARES NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH PROFILES EVERY 2-3 YEARS (EG IN 2008 AND
2011), WHICH PRESENT DEMOGRAPHIC, SOCIAL AND HEALTH OUTCOME INFORMATION AT
THE COMMUNITY LEVEL IN BALTIMORE CITY THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS
INSSESSMENT UNDERTAKEN BY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DURING THE 2012 TAXYEARTOOK
INTO ACCOUNT DATA OBTAINED IN THE 2011 NEIGHBORHOOD HEALTH PROFILES
PREPARED BY THE CITY OF BALTIMORE,IN PARTICULAR WITH RESPECT TO 18 COMMUNITY
STATISTICAL AREAS THAT REPRESENT DOWNTOWN AND THE COMMUNITIES EAST, WEST
IAND SOUTH OF THE CITY CENTER IN ADDITION, THE ORGANIZATION ACCESSES AND
REVIEWS OTHER STATE OF MARYLAND HEALTH CARE DATA BASES RELATED TO HEALTH
CARE NEEDS OF COMMUNITIES THAT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER SERVES IN ITS

PSA FURTHERMORE, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER REVIEWS PUBLICATIONS AND DATA
IAVAILABLE FROM ORGANIZATIONS IN WHICH MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PHYSICIAN AND
IADMINISTRATIVE LEADERSHIP ARE ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS AND MEMBERS SUCH AS
B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES, JOURNEY HOME, FAMILY CRISIS CENTER OF BALTIMORE,
IAND BALTIMORE HOMELESS SERVICES, AMOUNG OTHERS 2 PARTNERSHIPS, WORKGROUPS,
IAND MEMBERSHIP IN ORGANIZATIONS THROUGH THE WORKGROUPS AND PARTNERSHIPS
THAT HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED WITH KEY ORGANIZATIONS SUCH AS HEALTH CARE FOR
THE HOMELESS, BALTIMORE HOMELESS SERVICES, THE WEINBERG HOUSING AND
RESOURCE CENTER, MAYOR'S OFFICE ON EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, SEX AND FAMILY
CRIMES DIVISION OF THE BALTIMORE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT, TURN AROUND HOUSE
OF RUTH, FAMILY CRISIS CENTER OF BALTIMORE, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COORDINATING
COUNCIL,B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES AND FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS OF BALTIMORE,
ITHE HOSPITAL RECEIVED SIGNIFICANT INPUT AND FEEDBACK ON THE HEALTH CARE
NEEDS OF ITSIMMEDIATE SURROUNDING NEIGHBORHOODS AND COMMUNITIES THIS WAS
IACHIEVED THROUGH REGULAR MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS THROUGHOUT FY11
THROUGH PARTICIPATION OF THE HOSPITAL'S EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM IN
BUSINESS FORUMS SUCH AS THE DOWNTOWN PARTNERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP IN OTHER
ORGANIZATIONS, SIGNIFICANT FEEDBACK AND INFORMATION ON HEALTH CARE NEEDS
IAND GAPS WAS ALSO GATHERED 3 MERCY HEALTH SERVICES MISSION AND CORPORATE
ETHICS COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETS REGULARLY TO REVIEWAND
COORDINATE ISSUES RELATED TO MISSION INTEGRATION AND COORDINATION THIS
BOARD COMMITTEE ISINFORMED AND CLEARLY UNDERSTANDS THE SCOPE AND DEPTH OF
THE HOSPITAL'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT AND INITIATIVES IN SUMMARY, THROUGH A
QUANTITATIVE ASSESSMENT OF NEEDS BASED ON REVIEW OF CURRENT DATA SOURCES
IAND ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS IN SEVERAL COMMUNITY BASED ORGANIZATIONS, MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER HAS BEEN ABLE TO DETERMINE AND PRIORITIZE ITS COMMUNITY
HEALTH NEEDS FOCUS IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING APPROACHES REGULARLY
FOLLOWED BY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CONDUCTED ITS FIRST
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT,IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET
FORTH UNDER INTERNAL REVENUE CODE SECTION 501(R)(3)AND THE GUIDANCE
PROVIDED BY IRS NOTICE 2011-52, DURINGITS 2012 TAXYEAR MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
WILL DIRECT ITS COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS PLANNING TOWARDS ADDRESSING THOSE
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT
IN ACCORDANCE WITHITS IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 3

MERCY ATTEMPTS TO BE VERY PROACTIVEIN COMMUNICATING ITS FINANCIAL
IASSISTANCE POLICY AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION TO PATIENTS
ITHE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT
INFORMATION IS POSTED IN ALL ADMISSIONS AREAS,INCLUDING THE EMERGENCY ROOM
SUCH NOTICE ISPOSTED IN ENGLISH, SPANISH AND/OR OTHER LANGUAGE THAT WILL BE
UNDERSTANDABLE TO TARGET POPULATIONS OF PATIENTS UTLIZING HOSPITAL
SERVICES A COPY OF THE POLICY AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION
IS PROVIDED TO PATIENTS ORTHEIR FAMILIES DURING THE PRE-ADMISSION, PRE-
SURGERY AND ADMISSIONS PROCESS ADDITIONALLY,A COPY OF THE POLICY AND
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CONTACT INFORMATION IS PROVIDED TO PATIENTS OR THEIR
FAMILIES UPON DISCHARGE MERCY UTILIZES A THIRD PARTY,AS WELL ASIN-HOUSE
FINANCIAL COUNSELING STAFF, TO CONTACT AND SUPPORT PATIENTS IN
UNDERSTANDING AND COMPLETING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIREMENTS THEY
IALSO DISCUSS WITH PATIENTS OR THEIR FAMILIES THE AVAILABILITY OF VARIOUS
GOVERNMENT BENEFITS AND ASSIST PATIENTS WITH UNDERSTANDING THE
QUALIFICATIONS FOR SUCH PROGRAMS EVEN AFTER A PATIENT IS DISCHARGED, EACH
BILLING STATEMENT CONTAINS AN OVERVIEW OF MERCY'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
POLICY,A PATIENT'S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS, AND CONTACT NUMBERS FOR FINANCIAL
INSSISTANCE, FINANCIAL COUNSELING, AND MARYLAND MEDICAID FOLLOW-UP PHONE
CALLS BY HOSPITAL BILLING/COLLECTION STAFF MADE TO PATIENTS WITH UNPAID
BALANCES ALSO STRESS THE AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND CHARITY
CARE AVAILABILITY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER WILL MAKE AND EFFORT TO PROVIDE THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION,POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND INFORMATION IN
ENGLISH, SPANISH, AND/OR ANY OTHER LANGUAGE THAT WILL BE UNDERSTANDABLE TO
TARGET POPULATIONS OF PATIENTS UTILIZING HOSPITAL SERVICES MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER PROVIDES AND PROMOTES HEALTH SERVICES FOR THE PEOPLE OF BALTIMORE OF
EVERY CREED,RACE,ECONOMIC, AND SOCIALCONDITION IN THE SPIRIT OF THE SISTERS
OF MERCY WHO ARE ITS SPONSORS, MERCY CONTINUES TO HAVE A SPECIALCOMMITMENT
TO THE UNDERSERVED AND UNINSURED




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 4

LOCATED IN THE HEART OF DOWNTOWN BALTIMORE, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DRAWS
PATIENTS FROM THE GREATER BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN AREA FORITS LONGSTANDING
TRADITION OF COMPASSIONATE CARE, COMMITMENT TO QUALIFY AND PATIENT SAFETY,
IAS WELL ASITS PRIMARY CARE AND SPECIALIST PHYSICIANS MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S
PRIMARY SERVICE AREA ("PSA") WHICH COMPRISES 17 ZIP CODES IN BALTIMORE CITY,
INCCOUNTS FOR 60% OFITS TOTAL ADMISSIONS KEY DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS
OF THE PSA ARE AS FOLLOWS POPULATION1 THE PSA 2010 POPULATION IS 616,8022 PSA
POPULATION GROWTH IS PROJECTED TO REMAIN FLAT TO 2014 THISISIN CONTRAST TO
IA 3 1% PROJECTED GROWTH FORTHE STATE OF MARYLAND 3 SINCE 1990, THE
DISTRIBUTION OF BALTIMORE CITY RESIDENTS HAS SHIFTED TOWARDS OLDER AGE
GROUPS WITH A 6% INCREASE IN THE 40 YEARS AND OLDER POPULATION THIS TREND OF
IAN INCREASING OLDER POPULATION GROWTH IS EXPECTED THROUGH 2020 ETHNICITY
IAND AGE1 64% BLACK, 30% CAUCASIAN IN PSA BALTIMORE CITY'S BLACKPOPULATION
HAS INCREASED BY 5% SINCE 1990 2 APPROXIMATELY 62% OF PATIENTS SERVED BY
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ARE MEMBERS OF A RACIAL OR ETHNIC MINIORITIES, 65% ARE
WOMEN AND 53% ARE MEDICAID AND/OR MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES 3 12% OF THE
POPULATION IS 65 YEARS IN AGE OR OLDERINCOME1 PSA MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME
$39,1132 40% OF BALTIMORE CITY HOUSEHOLDS REPORTED AN INCOME OF LESS THAN
$30,000 THISIS ONLY 50% OF HE STATEWIDE MEDIAN INCOME OF $70,0173 THREE TIMES
IAS MANY FAMILIES LIVING IN BALTIMORE CITY HAD INCOME THAT WAS BELOW THE
POVERTY LEVEL COMPARED TO ALL FAMILIES IN MARYLAND OF NOTE, THE MAJOR
COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMS THAT ARE IDENTIFIED IN PART VI, QUESTION 5
"PROMOTION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH" DIRECTLY ADDRESS KEY HEALTH CARE NEEDS OF
THE POPULATION IN MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S PSA KEY FINDINGS FROM THE "BALTIMORE
CITY HEALTH STATUS REPORT 2010" BALTIMORE CITY VS STATE OF MARYLAND ON KEY
HEALTH OUTCOME MEASURES1 OVERALL MORTALITY RATE BALTIMORE IS 32% HIGHER2
LIFE EXPECTANCY BALTIMORE IS 7% LOWER3 INFANT MORTALITY BALTIMORE IS 64%
HIGHER4 LOW BIRTH WEIGHT BALTIMORE IS 68% HIGHERAS SHOWN BY THESE SELECT
INDICATORS, THERE IS A SIGNIFICANT HEALTH STATUS DIPARITY BETWEEN BALTIMORE
CITY'S RESIDENTS AND THE REST OF HTE STATE OF MARYLAND DUE TO ITS LOCATION IN
CENTER CITY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CARES FOR MANY OF THE AT-RISK, LOWINCOME
POPULATION IN THE COMMUNITIES THAT IMMEDIATELY SURROUND THE HOSPITAL THIS
IS BEST EVIDENCED BY THE LARGE PERCENTAGE OF EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS BY THE
MEDICAID, UNINSURED AND MEDICARE PATIENTS MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S COMMUNITY
BENEFIT SERVICE AREA (CBSA)IS DEFINED BY 15 OF HTE 17 ZIP CODES THESE ZIP CODES
WERE IDENTIFIED AND DETERMINED BASED ON EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT (ED) VISITS
DURING FY11 KEY DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS OF THE CBSA ARE AS FOLLOWS 1
THE CBSA POPULATION IS 487,0002 53% FEMALE ND 47%$% MALE3 71% BLACKOR
IAFRICAN AMERICAN, 24% WHITE, 5% ALL OTHER4 MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME
$37,3955 PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLDS WITH INCOME BELOW FEDERAL POVERTY
GUIDELINES 15 2%6 ESTIMATE PERCENTAGE OF UNINSURED PEOPLE 19%7 PERCENTAGE
OF MEDICAID RECIPIENTS 38%MEDICAID COVERED AND UNINSURED PATIENTS
IACCOUNTED FOR MORE THAN 66% OF THE FY12 EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS THERE ARE A
COUPLE NOTABLE REASONS FOR SUCH A HIGH MEDICAID AND UNINSURED PATIENT
POPULATION VISITING THE EMERGENCY ROOM 1 BALTIMORE CITY'S LARGEST HOMELESS
SHELTER AT GUILFORD AVENUE IS WITHIN THREE BLOCKS OF THE HOSPITAL 2 MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDES ALL OF THE MEDICAL STAFF (PHYSICIANS AND NURSING
PERSONNEL) FOR HEALTHCARE FOR THE HOMELESS (HCH), A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED
HEALTH CENTER, WHICH DELIVERS OUTPATIENT CARE TO A LARGE NUMBER OF HOMELESS
PERSONS IN BALTIMORE CITY THE HCH CLINIC IS LOCATED THREE BLOCKS FROM THE
HOSPITAL
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Explanation

PART VI, LINE 5

MERCY SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAMTHE SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM AT
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS A STAFF OF EIGHT EXPERIENCED HUMAN SERVICES
PERSONNEL WHO WORKIN CONJUNCTION WITH OTHER HOMELESS AND HUMAN SERVICE
PROVIDERS TO COORDINATE SERVICES FOR HOMELESS FAMILIES AND FAMI LIES AT
RISK FOR HOMELESSNESS THE PROGRAM'S GOALISTO HOUSE HOMELESS FAMILIES
AND TO PRO VIDE SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FOR A DEFINED PERIOD TO PREVENT A
RETURN TO HOMELESSNESS IN FY 2011, THE SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM AT
MERCY PROVIDES A COMPREHENSIVE RANGE OF COUNSELING SERVICES AND
COMMUNITY RESOURCES LINKAGES TO PATIENTS THESE SERVICES INCURRED DIRECT
COSTSOF$413,249 DURING FY 2014 MERCY FAMILY VIOLENCE RESPONSE
PROGRAMTHE MERCY FAMILY VIOLEN CE RESPONSE PROGRAM WAS DEVELOPED BY A
MULTIDISCIPLINARY STAFFTASK FORCE AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER TO PROVIDE
CRISISINTERVENTION AND SAFETY PLANNING FOR VICTIMS OF FAMILY VIOLENCE
(DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, CHILD ABUSE, ELDER AND VULNERABLE ADULT ABUSE)AND
SEXUAL ASSAULT WHO COME TO MERCY MEDICAL CENTER AND ITS PHYSICIANS FOR
TREATMENT THIS PROGRAM IMPROVES BALTIM ORE'S COORDINATED COMMUNITY
RESPONSE TO VICTIMS OF VIOLENCE, AND CREATES AN ALERT WORKFORC E AT MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER, SKILLED AT IDENTIFYING AND RESPONDING TO VICTIMS OF FAMILY
VIOL ENCE DUE TO ITS LOCATION WITHIN THREE BLOCKS OF THE CITY'S LARGEST
HOMELSS SHELTER AT GUIL FORD AVENUE AND CLOSE PROXIMITY TO HCH, MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER'S ER RECEIVES MANY VISITS FRO M HOMELESS PERSONS WITH
DECADES OF EXPERIENCE IN PROVIDING EMERGENT AND URGENT CARETO PO OR AND
HOMELESS POPULATIONS, THE HOSPITAL HAS ESTABLISHED KEY SERVICES FOR THE
MEDICALLY U NDERSERVED INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING A FULL TIME SOCIAL WORKER
ISAPART OFTHEERTEAMTO C OORDINATE CARE AND OTHER SERVICES FOR
HOMELESS PATIENTS WHO ARRIVE AT THE ER ER PHYSICIANS AND NURSES MAEK VISITS
TO BALTIMORE CITY SHELTERS TO PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING SERVICES 1 AD
MINISTRATION OF FLU VACCINATIONS TO RESIDENTS2 PRESENTATIONS ON
PARASITES AND INFECTIOUS DISEASE3 INFECTIOUS DISEASE PREVENTIONTHE
FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM (FNE)IS HOUSED AT THE HOSPITAL'S ER AND
PROVIDES 24/7 CARE TO PATIENTS WHO ARE VICTIMS OF SEXUAL, DOMEST IC, CHILD,
ELDER AND INSTITUTIONAL VIOLENCE FORENSIC NURSES PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE
FORENSI C MEDICAL INTERVIEWS, MEDICAL ASSESSMENTS, AND EVIDENCE
COLLECTION, AND ASSURE CRISISINTE RVENTION TO AN EVERINCREASING VOLUME
OFUNDERSERVED PATIENTS DURING FY 2014, THE FNE PROG RAM CONDUCTED 481
EXAMINATIONS AND IS THE DESIGNATED SITE FORPATIENTS IN BALTIMORE CITY IN
ADDITION, 140 EDUCATION PROGRAMS WERE CONDUCTED FOR COMMUNITY GROUPS
LOWBIRTH WEIGHT PROGRAM - DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICSMERCY MEDICAL CENTER
DELIVERED MORE BABIES, 2,877, THAN ANY OTHER HOSPITALIN BALTIMORE CITY IN FY
2012 OFTHESE BABIES, 10 6% WERE OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT AND 13 7% WERE
PREMATURE LOWBIRTH WEIGHT AND PREMATURITY ARE INTERTWINED AND CORR
ELATED AS CITED IN QUESTION #2,LOW BIRTH WEIGHT IS A KEY HEALTH STATUS
INDICATORTHAT IS MEASURED AND TRACKED BY BALTIMORE CITY DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH THAT MUST BE DECREASED IN INC IDENCE THE HOSPITAL HAS TAKEN A
LEADERSHIP ROLE THROUGH ITS ACTIVE PARTICIPATION IN "B'MOR E FOR HEALTHLY
BABIES", A LONG TERM INITIATIVE LED BY THE MAYOR'S OFFICE AND MANAGED BY BA
LTIMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO REDUCE THE INCIDENTS OF LOW BIRTH
WEIGHT DR ROBERT ATLA S, CHAIRMAN OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S DEPARTMENT OF
OBSTETRICS AND GYNECOLOGY,HAS A LEADE RSHIP ROLE WITHIN THIS WORKGROUP
THE GOALS OF "B'MORE FOR HEALTHY BABIES" ARE REDUCTION I N THE FOLLOWING 1
RATE OF PRE-TERM BIRTHS BY AT LEAST 10%2 RATE OF LOWBIRTH WEIGHT INFA NTS
BY AT LEAST 10%3 THE NUMBER OF DEATHS FROM UNSAFE SLEEP BY AT LEAST 10%OF
NOTE 74% OF THE BABIES CARED FORIN MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S NEONATAL
INTENSIVE CARE UNIT WERE EITHER M EDICAID BENEFICIARIES OR UNINSURED/SELF
PAY THIS POPULATION IS ESPECIALLY LINKED WITH LOW BIRTH RATE AND
PREMATURITY DUE TO POVERTY THAT CLOSELY RELATES TO UNHEALTHY LIFESTYLES, P
ARTICULARLY POOR NUTRITION AND INADEQUATE PRENATAL CAREIN ORDERTO
ENSURE 24/7 COVERAGE FORITS OBSTETRICAL PATIENTS, REGARDLESS OF THEIR
ABILITY TO PAY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROV IDED $1,771,702 IN PHYSICIAN
SUBSIDY FOR THIS SPECIALTY DETERMINING THE NEEDS IN THE COMMU NITY TO BE
ADDRESSEDSINCE THE INCEPTION OF THE COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORTING TO HSCRC,
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS CONSISTENTLY RANKED AMOUNG THE TOP QUARTILE OF
HOSPITALS IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND IN TERMS OF HTE PERCENTAGE OF OPERATING
EXPENSE DEVOTED TO COMMUNITY NEEDS PRO GRAMS ACCESS TO CARE FOR AT-RISK,
UNDERSERVED POPULATIONS HAS LONG BEEN A CORNERSTONE MIS SION FOR MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER MAJOR PROGRAMS TO SERVE THIS NEED INCLUDE OUR FUNDING OF
DI RECT PHYSICIAN CHARITY CARE ACROSS ALL SPECIALTIES AND THE PHARMACY
CHARITY FUND TO PATIEN TS WHO ARE UNINSURED AND UNABLE TO PAY IN ADDITION,
THE FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS OF BALTIMOR E (FCHB) IS A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED
HEALTH CENTER (FQHC), WHICH RECEIVES SIGNIFICANT FINANCI AL SUPPORT FROM
THE HOSPITAL FCHB, WITH A CLINIC
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PART VI, LINE 5

LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE MERCY CAMPUS, LARGELY SERVES THE MEDICAID AND
UNINSURED POPULATION SIN SURROUNDING COMMUNITIES BASED UPON PRIOR
NEEDS ASSESSMENTS, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER IDE NTIFIED THREE KEY AREAS OF
FOCUS FOR "MISSION DRIVEN HEALTH SERVICES" IN FY 2012 THEY ARE AS

FOLLOWS HOMELESSNESS THE NEED TO RESPOND TO AND ACTIVELY SUPPORT THE
MEDICAL PROFESSTI ONAL NEEDS OF ORGANIZATIONS THAT SERVE THE HOMELESS
POPULATION OF BALTIMORE EMERGENCY SERV ICES AS PROVIDED THROUGH THE
EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT, GIVEN THE LARGE PERCENTAGE OF POOR AND UNINSURED
PATIENTS WHO ACCESS THIS SERVICE LOW BIRTH WEIGHT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
DELIVER S MORE BABIESTO WOMEN AT ORBELOWTHE POVERTY LINE THAN ANY OTHER
HOSPITALIN BALTIMORE A SIGNIFICANT PERCENTAGE (>10%)OF THESE BIRTHS ARE
PREMATURE AND OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT ALL OF THESE PROGRAMS ARE INTERTWINED AS
THEY SHARE A COMMON THREAD IN THAT ALLUNDERSERVED AN D POORPOPULATIONS
OF BALTIMORE ARE THE PRIMARY RECIPIENTS OF MEDICAL SERVICES PROVIDED BY
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ON AND OFF ITS CAMPUS HOMELESSNESSTHE NUMBER OF
PEOPLE EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS HAS GROWN STEADILY OVER THE PAST 20
YEARS IN BALTIMORE AND THROUGHOUT THE ENT IRE NATION THIS NUMBER IS
EXPECTED TO CONTINUE TO RISE GIVEN THE DETERIORATING ECONOMIC C
ONDITIONS LOCALLY AND NATIONALLY THAT CAUSE HIGH UNEMPLOYMENT, LOSS OF
HOMES, REDUCED FEDE RAL ASSISTANCE TO MEDICAID AND OTHER SAFETY NET
PROGRAMS BALTIMORE'S HOMELESS POPULATION EXTENDS GREATLY BEYOND THOSE
WHO CAN FIND BEDS IN CITY AND OTHER NONPROFIT RUN SHELTERS M ERCY MEDICAL
CENTER IS DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN THE PROVISION OF MEDICAL SERVICES TO THE
HOMEL ESS POPULATION THROUGH THREE AREAS HEALTH CARE FOR THE
HOMELESSHEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELES S (HCH) WAS ESTABLISHED IN 1985 AND
PROVIDES ADULT, PEDIATRIC, AND GERIATRIC MEDICAL CARE, DENTAL CARE, MENTAL
HEALTH, HIV SERVICES, SOCIAL WORK AND CASE MANAGEMENT, ADDICTION TREA
TMENT, OUTREACH, PRISON RE-ENTRY, SUPPORTIVE HOUSING, AND ACCESSTO
EDUCATION AND EMPLOYME NT SINCE ITSINCEPTION IN 1985 (A 28-YEAR
PARTNERSHIP), MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS DIRECTLY EMPLOYED AND PROVIDED ALL
OFTHE PHYSICIAN AND NURSING STAFFTO HCH FOR MEDICAL SERVICES WHILE THE
HOSPITALIS REIMBURSED FOR THE DIRECT COSTS OFITS EMPLOYED CLINICIANS BY
HCH,I NDIRECT AND OTHER NON COMPENSATED COSTS CONTRIBUTED TO HCH WERE
$1,331,692 IN FY 2014 THE HOSPITAL EMPLOYS AND PROVIDES FOUR PRIMARY CARE
PHYSICIANS, TWO NURSE PRACTITIONERS, ONE P HYSICIAN ASSISTANT, AND THREE
REGISTERED NURSES TO WORK AT HCH MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, THROU GH ITS SOLE
MEMBER, MHS,IS GOVERNED BY A COMMUNITY BOARD COMPRISED OF CIVIC LEADERS
WHO A RE COMMITTED TO AND REPRESENT THE HEALTHCARE NEEDS OF THE
COMMUNITY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER EXTENDS MEDICAL STAFF PRIVILEGES TO ALL
QUALIFIED PHYSICIANS FORALLOFITS DEPARTMENTS A LL FINANCIAL SURPLUSES
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER GENERATES ARE USED EXCLUSIVELY TO FURTHER THE
MISSION OF THE ORGANIZATION COMMUNITY BOARD COMPRISED OF CIVIC LEADERS
WHO ARE COMMITTED TO AND REPRESENT THE HEALTHCARE NEEDS OF THE
COMMUNITY




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 6

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER IS A PART OF AN AFFILIATED HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, WHICH
INCLUDES A NUMBE R OF ORGANIZATIONS THAT ARE UNDER THE COMMON
GOVERNANCE OF MERCY HEALTH SERVICES THESE AF FILIATED ORGANIZATIONS WO RK
TOGETHER TO PROVIDE A RANGE OF HEALTHCARE SERVICES TO THEIR CO MMUNITIES
AMOUNG MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S AFFILIATES ARE SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS,
INC (SPPS), MARYLAND FAMILY CARE,INC (MFC), AND STELLA MARIS (SM) SPPS
PROVIDES SPECIALITY PHYSICIAN SERVICES TO PATIENTS OF MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER'S INPATIENT SERVICES AND OUTPATIEN T CLINICS AND TO OTHER MEMBERSOF
THE COMMUNITY THROUGHOUT CENTRAL MARYLAND AND BEYOND DURING THE 2013
TAX YEAR, SPPS PROVIDED $623,212 OF CHARITY CARE TO PATIENTS SEEN BY SPPS PHY
SICIANS SM OWNS AND OPERATES A NURSING HOME, A RESIDENTIAL AND HOME
HOSPICE SERVICE AND A HOME HEALTH AGENCY DURING THE 2013 TAX YEAR, SM
PROVIDED $273,000 OF CHARITY CARE TO ITS PATIENTS MFC PROVIDES PRIMARY CARE
SERVICES ON THE CAMPUS OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER, THROUGH OUT BALTIMORE
CITY,AND IN ANNE ARUNDEL AND BALTIMORE COUNTIES ADDITIONALLY, MFC
EMPLOYS AN NUMBER OF PHYSICIANS TO SERVE AS HOSPITALISTS, WHO CARE FOR
PATIENTS ADIMTTED TO MERCY MEDICAL CENTER ALSO, MFC EMPLOYS NURSE
PRACTITIONERS THAT PROVIDE SERVICES TO UNINSURED P ATIENTS IN MERCY'S
NURSERY AND CHILDREN'S HEALTH OUTREACH PROGRAM MFC INCURS SUBSTANTIAL
COSTS PROVIDING THE COMMUNITY WITH THE HOSPITALIST AND NURSE
PRACTITIONER PROGRAMS DURING THE 2013 TAX YEAR, MFC INCURRED A NET
OPERATING LOSS FROM PROVIDING THE HOSPITALIST PROGR AM OF $353,400 AND
FROM PROVIDING THE NURSE PRACTITIONER PROGRAM OF $1,826,618 MFC HAS AN
AFFILATION AGREEMENT WITH THE FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS OF BALTIMORE, INC
PURSUANT TO WHICH MFC ARRANGES FOR PHYSICIAN STAFFING FOR FHCB'S
DOWNTOWN CLINIC FHCBIS A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER DURING THE
2013 TAX YEAR, MFC PROVIDED $63,310 OF CHARITY CARE TO PATIE NTS SEEN BY MFC
PHYSICIANS IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING, THE AFFILIATED HEALTH CARE SYSTEM
PARTICIPATES IN A NUMBER OF PARTNERSHIP/WORK GROUPS, INCLUDING THE
FOLLOWING GROUP NAME HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESSPURPOSE AND MMC
PARTICIPATION HCH PROVIDES HEALTH-RELATED SER VICES TO REDUCE THE
INCIDENCE AND BURDENS OF HOMELESSNESS ITS HEADQUARTERS/CLINIC IS LOCA TED
THREE BLOCKS FROM MERCY ,NICHOLAS KOAS, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER VICE
PRESIDENT SERVES O N THE HCH BOARD OF DIRECTORS GROUP NAME BALTIMORE
HOMELESS SERVICESPURPOSE AND MMC PARTIC IPATION A PROGRAM WITHIN THE
MAYOR'S OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES RESPONSIBLE FOR MANAGING TH E CONTINUUM
OF CARE PROVIDED TO THE CITY'S HOMELESS POPULATION MERCY SUPPORTIVE
HOUSING P ROGRAM PROVIDES HOUSING COUNSELING AND CASE MANAGEMENT FOR
HOMELESS FAMILIES UNDER GRANT'S FROM THIS AGENCY GROUP NAME THE WEINBERG
HOUSING AND RESOURCE CENTERPURPOSE AND MMC PART ICIPATION BALTIMORE
CITY'S FACILITY PROVIDING 24/7 EMERGENCY SHELTER BEDS AND 25 BEDS FOR THE
MEDICALLY FRAGILE AS WELL AS PROGRAMS AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS MERCY
EMPLOYEES ASSIST WITH THE PROGRAM GROUP NAME MAYOR'S OFFICE ON
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENTPURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION MERCY SERVES ON THE
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS TASK FORCE FOR BALTIMORE CITY GROUP NAME SEX AND
FAMILY CRIMES DIVISION OF BALTIMORE CITY POLICEDEPARTMENT PURPOSE AND MM
C PARTICIPATION MERCY'S FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM WO RKS
COLLLABORATIVELY WITH THE B ALTIMORE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MERCY
PROVIDES THE FORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER PROGRAM IN THE METROPOLITAN

AREA GROUP NAME TURN AROUND,HOUSE OF RUTHPURPOSE AND MMC
PARTICIPATION ME RCY'S FAMILY VIOLENCE RESPONSE PROGRAM WORKS WITH TURN
AROUND, HOUSE OF RUTH AND OTHER ORG ANIZATIONS MERCY ALSO IS TAKING A
LEADERSHIP ROLE IN ESTABLISHING HOSPITAL-BASED FAMILY V IOLENCE RESPONSE
PROGRAMS AT OTHER MARYLAND HOSPITALS GROUP NAME FAMILY CRISIS CENTER OF
BALTIMORE (FCCB)PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION FCCBISA MAJOR REFFERAL
PARTNER TO MERCY F ORENSIC NURSE EXAMINER AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
PROGRAMS GROUP NAME DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COOR DINATING COUNCILPURPOSE
AND MMC PARTICPATION COLLEEN MOORE,COORDINATOR OF MERCY'S FAMILY
VIOLENCE REPONSE PROGRAM, SERVES ON THE ORGANIZATION'S STEERING
COMMITTEE GROUP NAME B'M ORE FOR HEALTHY BABIESPURPOSE AND MMC
PARTICIPATION BHBISA COALITION OF PHYSICIANS AMOU NG BALTIMORE CITY'S
MAJOR HOSPITALS THAT ADDRESSES WAYS TO REDUCE INFANT MORTALITY, PREMAT
URITY AND LOW BIRTH WEIGHT ROBERT ATLAS,M D CHAIRMAN OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
OBSTETRICS AN D GYNECOLOGY AT MERCY AND A RECOGNIZED EXPERT IN AT-RISK
PREGNANCY IS A LEADER WITH BHB GR OUP NAME FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS OF
BALTIMORE (FCHB)PURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION CHRISTOP HER THOMASKUTTY
AND LISA CONIC, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER VICE PRESIDENTS, SERVE ON THE BOARD O F
DIRECTORS OF FCHB, A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER THAT SERVES CENTRAL
AND SOUTH BAL TIMORE CITY GROUP NAME TOTAL HEALTHCAREPURPOSE AND MMC
PARTICIPATION JOHN LEPLEY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER VICE PRESIDENT, SERVES ON
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TOTAL HEALTHCARE, A FED ERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH
CENTER THAT SERVES CENTRAL




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 6

BALTIMORE CITY GROUP NAME CHASE BREXTONPURPOSE AND MMC PARTICIPATION
JUDY WEILAND, MERC Y MEDICAL CENTER VICE PRESIDENT, SERVES ON THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF CHASE BREXTON, A FEDE RALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTER THAT
SERVES CENTRAL BALTIMORE CITY GROUP NAME TOTAL HEALTHC AREPURPOSE AND
MMC PARTICIPATION JOHN LEPLEY, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER VICE PRESIDENT, SERVES
ONTHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TOTAL HEALTHCARE, A FEDERALLY QUALIFIED
HEALTH CENTER THAT S ERVES CENTRAL BALTIMORE CITY
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PART VI, LINE 7, REPORTS FILED
WITH STATES
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Form and Line
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MERCY MEDICAL CENTER (MMC)IS A LICENCED HOSPITAL MMC PROVIDES INPATIENT, OUTPATIENT
AND EMERGENCY CARE SERVICES PRIMARILY FOR THE CITIZENS OF THE BALTIMORE METROPOLITAN

AREA

PART V,SECTION A




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation
Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B, LINE 3 MERCY MEDICAL CENTERTOOKINTO ACCOUNT INPUT FROM REPRESENTATIVES OF
MEDICAL THE COMMUNITY SERVED BY THE HOSPITAL FACILITY,INCLUDING THOSE WITH SPECIALIZED KNOWLEDGE OF
CENTER OR EXPERTISE IN PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNITY LEADERS, AND LEADERS OR REPRESENTATIVES OF LOWINCOME

AND UNDERSERVED GROUPS SERVED IN THE COMMUNITY IN PARTICULAR, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
CONDUCTED IN-PERSON INTERVIEWS WITH LEADERS OF NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATIONS,ELECTED OFFICIALS,
CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF COMMUNITY HEALTH CLINICS, FOUNDATION EXECUTIVES, ADVOCATES FORTHE
HOMELESS AND ELDERLY, MINISTERS OF LOCAL CHURCHES, AND PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERTS (SUCH AS AN EXPERT
ON AGING AND OLDER ADULT SERVICES IN THE BALTIMORE REGION, AN EXPERT RELATED TO PROVIDING
HEALTH CARE ACCESS TO UNINSURED, AND PHYSICIAN LEADERS)




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation
Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B, LINE 6I IN CONNECTION WITH CONDUCTING THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT,
MEDICAL |MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTED AN IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY TO HELP ADDRESS
CENTER THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT BY THE END OF

ITS 2013 TAX YEAR, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAD ALREADY UNDERTAKEN NUMEROUS STEPS TO BEGIN
IMPLEMENTING THE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY MERCY MEDICAL CENTER APPROVED A FY 2015 BUDGET,
WHICH INCLUDED SPECIFIC FUNDING FORACTIONS TO BE TAKEN PURSUANT TO THE IMPLEMENTATION
STRATEGY IN ADDITION,IN ORDER TO HELP MEET THE IDENTIFIED NEED OF GREATER ACCESS TO CARE FOR
HOMELESS PATIENTS, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HIRED A PATIENT NAVIGATOR WHOSE JOB FUNCTIONISTO
FOCUS ON IMPROVING ACCESSTO CARE FORHOMELESS PATIENTS THE COST TO MERCY MEDICAL CENTER OF
EMPLOYING THIS PATIENT NAVIGATOR WAS $42,819 FURTHERMORE, VIA OUR PARTNERSHIP WITH HEALTHCARE
FOR THE HOMELESS, 1,680 REFERRALS WERE MADE TO MERCY SPECIALISTSIN TAX YEAR 2013 OF THAT NUMBER,
67% WERE KEPT APPOINTMENTS FURTHERMORE,IN ORDERTO HELP MEET THE IDENTIFIED NEED OFIMPROVED
CARE COORDINATION WITH THE CITY'S FQHC'S STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETINGS HAVE BEEN UNDERTAKEN WITH
KEY REPRESENTATIVES FROM BALTIMORE CITY FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTERS (FQHCS) FINALLY,
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER HAS INITIATED DISCUSSIONS WITH KEY BALTIMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT STAFF
TO BEGIN OUTLINING STRAGIES FORIMPROVING BIRTH OUTCOMES AND PRE-NATAL CARE FOR EXPECTANT
MOTHERS




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation

Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B, LINE 7 THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL NEEDS OF MERCY'S COMMUNITY, WHICH WERE IDENTIFIED
MEDICAL |INTHE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT, ARE STAGGERING IN DEPTH AND BREADTH THIS IS DUE TO
CENTER MERCY'S LOCATIONIN THE MIDDLE OF A POOR, URBAN CITY THAT HAS HEALTH CHALLENGES AND DISPARITIES

THAT ARE NOT EVIDENT IN OTHER PARTS OF THE STATE OR COUNTRY AS A RESULT, MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
INTENDS TO FOCUS ITS LIMITED RESOURCES ON A DEFINED NUMBER OF HEALTH NEEDS WITHIN THE
COMMUNITY,INCLUDING (1)POORACCESSTO CARE AND INFREQUENT CARE FOR THE HOMELESS, (2) POOR
BIRTH OUTCOMES AND PRE-NATAL CARE FOR EXPECTANT MOTHERS, (3)POOR CARE COORDINATION WITH THE
CITY'S FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTERS, (4)POOR CARE PROVIDED TO VICTIMS OF VIOLENCE AND
ADDICTION, AND (5)INADEQUATE HEALTH EDUCATION TO SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION WITHIN MERCY
MEDICAL CENTER'S COMMUNITY THE HEALTH CARE NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE HOSPITAL'S COMMUNITY HEALTH
NEEDS ASSESSMENT THAT THE HOSPTIAL WILL NOT ATTEMPT TO ADDRESS ARE HIGH RATES OF HEART DISEASE
AND CANCER THE DETERMINATION OF THE NEEDS THAT MERCY WOULD NOT ATTEMPT TO MEET PURSUANT TO
THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT WAS BASED UPON WHETHER OTHER ORGANIZATIONS OR
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES WERE BETTER PLACED TO RESPOND TO SUCH HEALTH NEEDS THAN MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER CONSIDERABLE LOCAL AND STATE RESOURCES ARE CURRENTLY INVESTED IN THESE KEY CAUSES OF
PREMATURE DEATH FURTHERMORE, TWO LARGE, HIGH QUALITY ACADEMIC MEDICAL CENTERS (JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDICAL SYSTEM AND UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MEDICAL SYSTEM) EXIST WITHIN WALKING DISTANCE OF
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER MERCY MEDICAL CENTER BELIEVES THAT JOHNS HOPKINS MEDICAL SYSTEM AND THE
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MEDICAL SYSTEM MAY BE BETTER SUITED TO ADDRESS THESE COMMUNITY NEEDS,
GIVEN THE SIZE AND SPECIFIC MAKEUP OF THEIR CARDIOLOGY AND CANCER PROGRAMS WHILE MERCY MEDICAL
CENTER DOES NOT PLAN TO CREATE NEWSTAND ALONE PROGRAMS IN THESE TWO HIGH PRIORITY FIELDS, WE DO
PLANTO CONTINUE OUR EFFORTS TO REDUCE THESE TOP CAUSES OF PREMATURE DEATH THROUGH OUR
EXISTING CLINICAL PROGRAMS AND BY IMPROVING CARE COORDINATION AND HEALTH EDUCATION IN THE
COMMUNITY SETTING




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation
Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B,LINE 11 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER PROVIDED EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY
MEDICAL | NECESSARY CARE TO PATIENTS THAT QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT NO CHARGE OR REDUCED-COST
CENTER BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE FORINCOME (UP TO APPROXIMATELY 400% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES)

AND TAKING INTO ACCOUNT OTHER CONSIDERATIONS, AS DESCRIBED BELOWIN ORDER TO QUALIFY FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY,A PATIENT MUST BE
AUS CITIZEN ORPERMANENT LEGAL RESIDENT WHO QUALIFIES UNDER AT LEAST ONE OF THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS 1 A PATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME AT ORBELOW 200% OF THE FEDERALPOVERTY LEVEL, WITH
LESS THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR FULL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE
FORM OF FREE MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE 2 A PATIENT NOT OTHERWISE ELIGIBLE FOR MEDICAID OR CHIP WHO
IS A BENEFICIARY/RECIPIENT OF A MEANS-TESTED SOCIAL SERVICES PROGRAM,INCLUDING BUT NOT
NECESSARILY LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING PROGRAMS, IS DEEMED ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE
FORM OF FREE MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE,PROVIDED THAT THE PATIENT SUBMITS PROOF OF ENROLLMENT
WITHIN 30 DAYS UNLESS THE PATIENT OR PATIENT'S REPRESENTATIVE REQUESTS AN ADDITIONAL 30 DAYS A)
HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN IN THE FREE OR REDUCED LUNCH PROGRAMB) SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITIONAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SNAP)C)LOW-INCOME-HOUSEHOLD ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAMD) PRIMARY ADULT
CARE PROGRAM (PAC), UNTIL SUCH TIME ASINPATIENT BENEFITS ARE ADDED TO THE PAC BENEFIT PACKAGEE)
WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN (WIC)3 A PATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME AT ORBELOW 400% OF FEDERAL
POVERTY LEVEL, WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS QUALIFIES FOR PARTIAL
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM OF REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE THE AMOUNT OF
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THIS CASE IS BASED ON A SLIDING SCALE OFINCOME AND SHOWN IN THE ATTACHED
TABLE AND OTHER FACTORS 4 A PATIENT WITH (I) FAMILY INCOME AT ORBELOW 500% OF FEDERAL POVERTY
LEVEL, (IT) WITH MEDICAL DEBT INCURRED WIHTIN THE 12 MONTH PERIOD PRIORTO APPLICATION THAT
EXCEEDS 25% OF FAMILY INCOME FOR THE SAME PERIOD, AND (IIT) WITH LESS THAN $10,000 IN HOUSEHOLD
MONETARY ASSETS WILL QUALIFY FOR PARTIAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THE FORM OF REDUCED-COST
MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE THE AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN THIS CASE IS BASED ON A SLIDING
SCALE OF INCOME, AMOUNT OF MEDICAL DEBT, AND OTHER FACTORS A)AN ELIBILE PATIENT OR ANY IMMEDIATE
FAMILY MEMBER OF THE PATIENT LIVING IN THE SAME HOUSEHOLD SHALL REMAIN ELIGIBLE FOR REDUCED-COST
MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WHEN SEEKING SUBSEQUENT CARE AT MERCY MEDICAL CENTER DURING THE 12-
MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING ON THE DATE ON WHICH THE REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE WAS
INITIALLY RECEIVED B)TO AVOID AN UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER'S
DETERMINATIONS OF ELIGIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, A PATIENT ELIGIBLE FOR CARE UNDER
PARAGRAPH 4 A SHALLINFORM THE HOSPITAL OF HIS OR HER ELIGIBILITY FOR THE REDUCED-COST MEDICALLY
NECESSARY CARE 5 AN UNINSURED PATIENT WITH FAMILY INCOME BETWEEN 200% AND 500% OF FEDERAL
POVERTY LEVEL WHO REQUESTS ASSISTANCE QUALIFIES FOR A PAYMENT PLAN 6 A HOMELESS PERSON
QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 7 A DECEASED PATIENT, WITH NO PERSON DESIGNATED AS DIRECTOR
OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS,OR NO ESTATE NUMBER ON FILE AT HTE APPLICABLE REGISTRARS OF WILLS
DEPARTMENT, QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 8 A MEDICAID PATIENT WHO HAS A REMAINING BALANCE
AFTER MEDICAL ASSISTANCE QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 9 MERCY MEDICAL CENTER MAY ELECT TO
GRANT PRESUMPTIVE CHARITY CARE TO PATIENTS BASED ON INFORMATION GATHERED DURING A DEBT
COLLECTION PROCESS FACTORS INCLUDE PROPENSITY TO PAY SCORING, ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION IN
OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS, AND OTHER RELEVENT INFORMATION 10 A PATIENT WHO DOES NOT QUALIFY UNDER
THE PRECEDING CATEGORIES MAY STILL APPLY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, AND MERCY MEDICAL CENTER WILL
REVIEWTHE APPLICATION AND MAKE A DETERMINATION ON A CASE-BY-CASE BASIS ASTO ELIGIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FACTORS THAT WILL BE CONSIDERED INCLUDE A) FIXED INCOME SUCH A SOCIAL
SECURITY,RETIREMENT OR DISABILITY WITH NO ADDITIONALINCOME SOURCES AVAILABLE B) MEDICAL
EXPENSES AND/ORC) EXPENSES RELATED TO NECESSITIES OF LIFE COMPARED TO INCOME FORALL PURPOSES OF
THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, "HOUSEHOLD MONETARY ASSETS" MEANS ASSETS THAT ARE CONVERTIBLE
TO CASH IN DETERMINING A PATIENT'S MONETARY ASSETS FOR PURPOSES OF MAKING AN ELIGIBILITY
DETERMINATION UNDER THIS FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, THE FOLLOWING ASSETS ARE EXCLUDED, (1) THE
FIRST $10,000 OF MONETARY ASSETS, (2)EQUITY OF $150,000 IN PRIMARY RESIDENCE, AND (3) RETIREMENT
ASSETS TO WHICH THE IRS HAS GRANTED PREFERENTIAL TAX TREATMENT AS A RETIREMENT ACCOUNT,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, QUALIFIED AND NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation
Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B, LINE 18E THE HOSPITAL FACILITY OR AN AUTHORIZED THIRD PARTY DID NOT UNDERTAKE
MEDICAL ANY OF THE COLLECTION ACTIONS NOTED IN PART V,SECTION B, LINE 17 BEFORE MAKING REASONABLE
CENTER EFFORTS TO DETERMINE ANY PATIENT'S ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY

IN ORDERTO HELP DETERMINE PATIENTS' ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
POLICY THE HOSPITAL UNDERTAKES A NUMBER OF ACTIONS, INCLUDING NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY ON ADMISSION, NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
POLICY PROIOR TO DISCHARGE, NOTIFYING PATIENTS OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IN
COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE PATIENTS' BILLS, AND DOCUMENTING ITS DETERMINATION OF WHETHER
PATIENTS WERE ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE HOSPITAL'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

POLICY




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Explanation
Line
Reference
MERCY PART V,SECTION B, LINE 19D THE HOSPITAL FACILITY PROVIDES A DISCOUNT OF AT LEAST 10% OFFOF
MEDICAL GROSS CHARGES FOR THE PROVISION OF EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE TO ANY
CENTER INDIVIDUAL THAT IS ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE HOSPITAL FACILITY'S FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE POLICY PURSUANT TO THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION (HSCRC)ALL-PAYOR
SYSTEM FORHOSPITALS IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND, THE GREATEST DISCOUNT OFF OF GROSS CHARGES FOR
THE PROVISION OF EMERGENCY AND OTHER MEDICALLY NECESSARY CARE PERMITTED TO ANY COMMERCIAL
INSURER OR MEDICARE IS ONLY 6% AS A RESULT, THE HOSPITAL FACILITY WAS ABLE TO DETERMINE THAT THE
MAXIMUM AMOUNT CHARGED TO INDIVIDUALS THAT WERE ELIGIBLE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER THE
HOSPITAL FACILITY'S FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY WAS NOT GREATER THAN THE AMOUNT GENERALLY
BILLED TO INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE INSURANCE COVERING SUCH CARE
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1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
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Form and Line
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Explanation

MERCY
MEDICAL
CENTER

PART V,SECTION B, LINE 21 THE HOSPITAL DOES NOT CHARGE ANY INDIVIDUALS THAT ARE ELIGIBLE FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AN AMOUNT EQUALTO THE GROSS CHARGES FOR ANY SERVICE THE HOSPITAL
USED THE CHARGEMASTER RATES FOR A SERVICE AS ASTARTING POINT AGAINST WHICH REDUCTIONS ARE
APPLIED TO DETERMINE THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY BILLED TO PATIENTS ELIGIBLE UNDER THE FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE POLICY
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Schedule I . . . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments and Individuals in the United States 201 3
Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule I (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
52-0591658

m General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants orassistance?. . . . . . . . . - s e e e e e e e e e e e e e ¥ Yes ™ No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds n the Unlted States

m Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to
Form 990, Part 1V, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space 1s needed.

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section | (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | or assistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)

(1) MARYLAND 501(C)(4) 80,000 SUPPORT THE WORK
MATERNITY ACCESS OF THE COALITION
COALITION INC INCLUDING PUBLIC
2423 MARYLAND AVE EDUCATION AND
SUITE 300 IADVOCACY

BALTIMORE,MD 21218

2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1 table. . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ .« .+« .+ .+« . . |

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthelinel table. . . . . .+ .+ + .+ +« « o & & & 4 4w e e a e e .

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50055P Schedule I (Form 990) 2013



Schedule I (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part III can be duplicated If additional space Is needed.

(a)Type of grant or assistance

(b)Number of
recipients

(c)Amount of
cash grant

(d)Amount of
non-cash assistance

(e)Method of valuation
(book,
FMV, appraisal, other)

(f)Description of non-cash assistance

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2, Part I1I, column (b), and any other additional information.

Return Reference

Explanation

PART I, LINE 2

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CONTRIBUTED $80,000 TO MARYLAND MATERNITY ACCESS COALITION,INC ,A SECTION 501(C)(4)
ORGANIZATION THAT IS ORGANIZED AND OPERATED EXCLUSIVELY FOR SOCIAL WELFARE PURPOSES THE COALITION PUBLICLY
ADVOCATES FORAND SUPPORTS LEGISLATION, REGULATIONS, AND PROGRAMS DESIGNED TO MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE HEALTH CARE
ACCESS FOR MARYLAND MOTHERS AND BABIES THE PURPOSE OF THE CONTRIBUTION WAS TO SUPPORT THE WORK OF THE COALITION

INCLUDINGITS PUBLIC EDUCATION AND ADVOCACY EFFORTS

Schedule I (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 23.

2013

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule J (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658

Employer identification number

m Questions Regarding Compensation

la

Check the appropiate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items

[T First-class or charter travel [T Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[T Travel for companions [T Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [T Health or social club dues or initiation fees

[T Discretionary spending account [T Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes in line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, officers, including the CEO /Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a?

Indicate which, If any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply Do not check any boxes for methods

used by a related organization to establish compensation of the CEO /Executive Director, but explain in Part III
I_ Written employment contract

I Compensation survey or study

I_ Compensation committee
[T Independent compensation consultant

[T Form 990 of other organizations [T Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization

Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment?
Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate In, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III

Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part I1I

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
inPartIII

If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)?

Yes | No
ib
2
4a No
4b No
4c No
5a No
5b No
6a No
6b No
7 Yes
8 No
9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 Page 2

Im Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule ], report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (11) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII

Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)-(in) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual

(A) Name and Title (B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of (F) Compensation
(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other other deferred benefits columns reported as deferred
compensation iy reportable compensation (B)(1)-(D) In prior Form 990
P compensatlon compensatlon
See Additional Data Table

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 Page 3

m Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for PartI, lines 1a, 1b, 3,4a,4b, 4c,5a,5b,6a,6b,7,and 8, and forPart II
Also complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

PART I, LINE 3 CEO'S COMPENSATION PART I, LINE 3 THE ORGANIZATION RELIED ON A RELATED ORGANIZATION AND THAT RELATED ORGANIZATION
USED THE FOLLOWING METHODS TO ESTABLISH THE TOP MANAGEMENT OFFICIAL'S COMPENSATION 1 COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 2
INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT 3 COMPENSATION SURVEY ORSTUDY, AND 4 APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OR
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

PART I, LINE 7 THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE APPROVES NON-FIXED PAYMENTS FOR MANAGMENT BASED ON THE DEGREE OF MEETING CORPORATE
PRIORITIES ESTABLISHED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES THE CORPORATE OBJECTIVES ARE DESIGNED TO ADVANCE THE ORGANIZATION
IN THE AREAS OF QUALITY CARE, PATIENT SAFETY, PATIENT SATISFACTION, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

52-0591658

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Form 990, Schedule J, Part II - Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

(A) Name

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(C) Deferred

(D) Nontaxable

(E) Total of columns

(F) Compensation
reported In prior Form

] (i) Bonus & compensation benefits (B)(1)-(D) 990 or Form 990-EZ
(i) Base incentive (iii) Other
Compensation compensation compensation

THOMAS MULLEN () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CHAIR, EX OFFICIO () 740,657 0 162,422 11,500 9,500 924,079 0
KIM BUSHNELL (1) 214,120 0 0 3,300 11,500 228,920 0
DIRECTOR (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SCOTT SPIER MD SR (1) 373,839 0 53,818 11,500 18,500 457,657 0
VP/DIRECTOR (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JOHN TOPPER SR VP () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
& CRO/TREASURER (n 399,827 0 55,500 11,500 19,500 486,327 0
SUSAN FINLAYSON ) 352,502 0 48,562 7,650 8,500 417,214 0
SR VP/DIRECTOR (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JUSTIN DEIBEL SR VP (1) 264,374 3,750 0 7,500 19,500 295,124 0
& CFO/DIRECTOR (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MICHAEL MULLANE (1) 302,165 0 43,313 7,650 18,500 371,628 0
DIRECTOR (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JAMES LEVY MD m 304,499 37,500 12,307 15,300 18,500 388,106 0
PHYSICIAN (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WILMA A 'S ROWE MD 0] 502,901 201,742 0 7,650 19,500 731,793 0
SR VP (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MICHAEL SAMBAT MD 0] 222,312 215,992 0 5,608 19,500 463,412 0
SR VP (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ALBERT HAN MD SR 0] 191,537 205,192 0 5,119 2,350 404,198 0
VP an 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DAVID BRIGHT MD () 166,621 203,492 0 0 8,500 378,613 0
PHYSICIAN (n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Schedule K . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions, 20 1 3
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.
= Attach to Form 990. I See separate instructions. "
Department of the Treasury kInformation about Schedule K (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.
Internal Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
52-0591658
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(g) Defeased behalf of (i) Pool
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date i1ssued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose Issuer financing

Yes No Yes No Yes No

MARYLAND HEALTH &

A :Li:%RR'IETDyCATIONALFAC 52-0936091 574217 XX8 08-03-2006 35,000,000 |2006 REPLACEMENT GARAGE X X X

MARYLAND HEALTH &

HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2007 A REPLACEMENT
B AUTHORITY 52-0936091 574217129 11-08-2007 154,956,168 TOWER X X X

MARYLAND HEALTH &

HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC

C AUTHORITY 52-0936091 01-16-2013 50,210,000 (2013 REFUND 2007D BONDS X X X

MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2009 PARTIAL CONVERSION

D AUTHORITY 52-0936091 5742174275 12-16-2009 30,000,000 2008 BONDS X X X

m Proceeds |

A B C D
1 Amount of bonds retired 2,980,000 6,666,000 4,765,000
2 Amount of bonds legally defeased
3  Total proceeds of issue 35,952,865 170,176,129 50,210,000 30,000,000
4 Gross proceeds In reserve funds 12,579,000
5 Capitalized interest from proceeds 1,492,333 18,613,677
6 Proceeds in refunding escrows
7 Issuance costs from proceeds 330,107 1,508,050 210,000
8 Credit enhancement from proceeds
9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds 34,130,425 128,742,923
11 Otherspent proceeds 8,812,500 50,000,000 30,000,000
12 Other unspent proceeds
13 Year of substantial completion 2008 2010 2010 2008
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

14 Were the bonds 1ssued as part of a current refunding i1ssue? X X X X
15 Were the bonds Issued as part of an advance refunding i1ssue? X X X X
16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X X X X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X X X X

allocation of proceeds?

Private Business Use
A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned X X X X

property financed by tax-exempt bonds?
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond- X X X X

financed property?

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50193E Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
m Private Business Use (Continued)
B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business use
X X X X
of bond-financed property?
b If"Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed X X X X
property?
c Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property? X X X X
d If"Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?
4 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities .
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government L3 0760 %
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used In a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section 0160 %
501 (c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of lines 4 and 5 0920 %
Does the bond i1ssue meet the private security or payment test? X X X X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond financed property to a
nongovernmental person other thana 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were X X X X
Issued?
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or disposed of
c If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations sections
1141-12 and1 145-2?
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified
bonds of the iIssue are remediated in accordance with the requirements under X X X X
Regulations sections 1 141-12 and 1 145-27
LCIAEAA Arbitrage
A B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T? X X X X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?
a Rebate not due yet? X
b Exception to rebate?
c No rebate due? X X X
If you checked "No rebate due” in line 2¢, provide In
Part VI the date the rebate computation was performed
3 Is the bond issue a variable rate issue? X X X X
4a Has the organization or the governmental iIssuer entered X X X X
into a qualified hedge with respect to the bond issue?
b Name of provider MERRILL LYNCH
Term of hedge 30 000000000000
d Was the hedge superintegrated? X
e Was the hedge terminated? X

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013

Page 3
LC1aEAA Arbitrage (Continued)
B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds Iinvested In a guaranteed investment X X X X
contract (GIC)?
b Name of provider GE FUNDING
Term of GIC 4250000000000
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market X
value of the GIC satisfied?
6 Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary
X X X X
period?
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor
X X X X
the requirements of section 1487
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure
that violations of federal tax requirements are timely i1dentified X X X X

and corrected through the voluntary closing agreement program If
self-remediation 1s not available under applicable regulations?

.m Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions).

Return Reference

Explanation

DATE REBATE COMPUTATION
PERFORMED

PERFORMED 08/29/2012

ISSUER NAME MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC AUTHORITY DATE THE REBATE COMPUTATION WAS PERFORMED
09/27/2011 ISSUER NAME MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC AUTHORITY DATE THE REBATE COMPUTATION WAS



Return Reference Explanation

THE AMOUNT IN PART II,LINE 3 "TOTALPROCEEDS" IS NOT EQUALTO THE AMOUNT IN PARTI,COLUMNE
"ISSUE PRICE" THE "TOTAL PROCEEDS" FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE INCLUDES INVESTMENT EARNINGS ON THE
PROCEEDS

TAX EXEMPT BONDSI,BOND
A &BPARTII,LINE 3



Return Reference Explanation

TAX EXEMPT BONDSIBOND [THE ISSUANCE COSTS FORTHESE BOND ISSUANCES WERE NOT PAID OUT OF THE PROCEEDS FROM THE BOND
D,AND BONDSII BOND A &C,[ISSUANCES RATHER, THE ISSUANCE COSTS WERE PAID OUT OF REGULAR OPERATING FUNDS OF THE
PART II LINE 7 ORGANIZATION



Return Reference Explanation

THE TOTALPROCEEDS OF THE ISSUE ARE LESS THAN THE GROSS PROCEEDS IN RESERVE FUNDS AND OTHER
SPENT PROCEEDS FOR THE BOND ISSUANCE BECAUSE FUNDS PLEDGED TO THE SERIES 2001 BONDS, WHICH
WERE REFUNDED BY THIS BOND ISSUANCE, WERE TRANSFERRED (AS PART OF THE BOND ISSUANCE)INTO THE
DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND HELF FOR THIS BOND ISSUANCE

PART II, BOND D
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Schedule K . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions, 20 1 3
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.
= Attach to Form 990. I See separate instructions. Open to Public
Department of the Treasury kInformation about Schedule K (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. P .
Internal Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
52-0591658
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(g) Defeased behalf of (i) Pool
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date 1ssued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose Issuer financing
Yes No Yes No Yes No
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2010 PARTIAL CONVERSION
A AUTHORITY 52-0936091 5742176K6 04-01-2010 30,000,000 2007 BONDS X X X
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2011 BONDS REFUNDING
B AUTHORITY 52-0936091 574218AM5 02-11-2011 39,889,140 2007 B AND C X X X
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2011 BBONDS REFUNDING
(o AUTHORITY 52-0936091 06-09-2011 34,890,000 2007 B AND C X X X
MARYLAND HEALTH &
HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FAC 2012 BONDS REFUNDING
D AUTHORITY 52-0936091 574218EZ2 04-25-2012 51,737,448 2001 BONDS X X X
m Proceeds
A B (o D
1 Amount of bonds retired 2,000,000 900,000
2 Amount of bonds legally defeased
3  Total proceeds of issue 30,000,000 39,889,140 34,890,000 51,737,448
4 Gross proceeds In reserve funds 4,029,000 5,488,000
5 Capitalized interest from proceeds
6 Proceeds in refunding escrows
7 Issuance costs from proceeds 789,808 851,860
8 Credit enhancement from proceeds
9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds
11 Other spent proceeds 30,000,000 35,110,419 34,890,000 50,376,825
12 Other unspent proceeds
13 Year of substantial completion 2010 2010 2010 2003
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
14 Were the bonds Issued as part of a current refunding i1ssue? X X X X
15 Were the bonds Issued as part of an advance refunding i1ssue? X X X X
16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X X X X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X X X X
allocation of proceeds?
Private Business Use
A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned
X X X
property financed by tax-exempt bonds?
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond- X X X
financed property?

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50193E Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
m Private Business Use (Continued)
B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business use
X X X
of bond-financed property?
b If"Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed X X X
property?
c Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property? X X X
d If"Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?
4 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government L3
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used In a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section
501 (c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of lines 4 and 5
Does the bond issue meet the private security or payment test? X X X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond financed property to a
nongovernmental person other thana 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were X X X
Issued?
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or disposed of
c If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations sections
1141-12 and1 145-2?
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified
bonds of the iIssue are remediated in accordance with the requirements under X X X
Regulations sections 1 141-12 and 1 145-27
LCIAEAA Arbitrage
A B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T? X X X X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?
a Rebate not due yet?
b Exception to rebate?
c No rebate due? X X X X
If you checked "No rebate due” in line 2¢, provide In
Part VI the date the rebate computation was performed
3 Is the bond issue a variable rate issue? X X X X
4a Has the organization or the governmental iIssuer entered X X X X
into a qualified hedge with respect to the bond issue?
b Name of provider
Term of hedge
d Was the hedge superintegrated?
e Was the hedge terminated?

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013
LC1aEAA Arbitrage (Continued)

5a

Page 3

Were gross proceeds Iinvested In a guaranteed investment
contract (GIC)?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Name of provider

Term of GIC

Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market
value of the GIC satisfied?

6

Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary
period?

7

Has the organization established written procedures to monitor
the requirements of section 1487

Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action

Has the organization established written procedures to ensure
that violations of federal tax requirements are timely i1dentified
and corrected through the voluntary closing agreement program If
self-remediation 1s not available under applicable regulations?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

.m Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions).
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Schedule K . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions, 20 1 3
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.
= Attach to Form 990. I See separate instructions. "
Department of the Treasury k-Information about Schedule K (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.
Internal Revenue Service Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER
52-0591658
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(g) Defeased behalf of (i) Pool
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date i1ssued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose financing

Issuer
Yes No Yes No Yes No

MARYLAND HEALTH & HIGHER
EDUCATIONAL FAC

A AUTHORITY 52-0936091 10-22-2013 18,065,000 [REFUND 1996 BONDS X X X
Im Proceeds |
A B C D

1 Amount of bonds retired 455,000

2 Amount of bonds legally defeased

3 Total proceeds of Issue 18,065,000

4 Gross proceeds In reserve funds

5 Capitalized interest from proceeds

6 Proceeds in refunding escrows

7 Issuance costs from proceeds 155,000

8 Credit enhancement from proceeds

9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds

10 Capital expenditures from proceeds

11 Other spent proceeds 17,910,000

12 Other unspent proceeds

13 Year of substantial completion 2000

Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

14 Were the bonds 1ssued as part of a current refunding i1ssue? X

15 Were the bonds issued as part of an advance refunding Issue? X

16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X

17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X

allocation of proceeds?
Private Business Use
A B C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned
property financed by tax-exempt bonds?

2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property?

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50193E Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
m Private Business Use (Continued)
C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business use
of bond-financed property?
b If"Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed
property?
c Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property?
d If"Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?
4 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government L3
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used In a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section
501 (c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of lines 4 and 5
Does the bond issue meet the private security or payment test?
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond financed property to a
nongovernmental person other thana 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were
Issued?
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or disposed of
c If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations sections
1141-12 and1 145-2?
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified
bonds of the iIssue are remediated in accordance with the requirements under
Regulations sections 1 141-12 and 1 145-27
LCIAEAA Arbitrage
A B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T? X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?
a Rebate not due yet? X
b Exception to rebate?
c No rebate due?
If you checked "No rebate due” in line 2¢, provide In
Part VI the date the rebate computation was performed
3 Is the bond issue a variable rate issue? X
4a Has the organization or the governmental iIssuer entered X
into a qualified hedge with respect to the bond issue?
b Name of provider
Term of hedge
d Was the hedge superintegrated?
e Was the hedge terminated?

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013
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LC1aEAA Arbitrage (Continued)
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds Iinvested In a guaranteed investment X
contract (GIC)?
b Name of provider
Term of GIC
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market
value of the GIC satisfied?
6 Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary X
period?
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor X
the requirements of section 1487
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

Has the organization established written procedures to ensure
that violations of federal tax requirements are timely i1dentified
and corrected through the voluntary closing agreement program If
self-remediation 1s not available under applicable regulations?

.m Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions).
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Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

k- Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
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k= Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.
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OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 201 3

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Employer identification number

52-0591658

Return Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A,
LINEG

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC ("MHS"), A 501(C)(3) CORPORATION, IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF MERCY

MEDICAL CENTER, INC ("MMC")




Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART
VI, SECTION A,
LINE7A

THE PRESIDENT OF MHS SERVES AS AN EX OFFICIO VOTING MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MMC AS THE
MEMBER OF MMC, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS ELECTS ALL OF THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MMC
ALL OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MMC BOARD SERVE AT THE PLEASURE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS AND
ARE SUBJECT TO REMOVAL BY THE MHS BOARD




Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990,
PART V|,
SECTION A,
LINE7B

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS EXERCISES AUTHORITY OVER MMC THROUGH ITS RIGHT TO APPOINT AND REMOVE MMC
BOARD MEMBERS IN ADDITION, MHS, AS THE MEMBER, IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS A) TO APPOINT
MEMBERS TO MMC'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS, B) TO REVIEW AND APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE THE STRATEGIC PLAN, ANNUAL
BUDGET AND THE ANNUAL OPERATING GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF MMC AS RECOMMENDED TO MHS BY MMC'S BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, C) TO EVALUATE THE PERFORMANCE OF MMC'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND OPERATING
MANAGEMENT, D) TO REMOVE BOARD MEMBERS OF MMC IN ITS DISCRETION AT ANY TIME, E) TO APPROVE THE MISSION
AND VISION THAT GOVERN MMC'S OPERATIONS, F) TO HAVE ULTIMATE RESPONSIBILITY FOR MMC'S QUALITY ASSURANCE,
PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT, UTILIZATION REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT, AND G) TO APPOINT, REAPPOINT AND TAKE
ANY CORRECTIVE ACTION RELATED TO THE MEDICAL STAFF OF MMC (THE "MEDICAL STAFF") IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
MEDICAL STAFF BY LAWS OF MMC THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS REQUIRE THE APPROVAL OF AND AFFIRMATIVE CORPORATE
ACTIONBY MHS A) ANY DISPOSITION OF ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF MMC'S ASSETS, DISSOLUTION, LIQUIDATION,
WINDING UP OR ABANDONMENT OF MMC, B) ANY AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OR BY LAWS OF MMC
OR OF THE MEDICAL STAFF BY LAWS OF MMC, C) ANY BORROWING OR LENDING BY MMC OR THE ISSUANCE OF ANY
GUARANTEE BY MMC IN AN AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED BY MHS FROM TIME TO TIME, D) ANY MERGER,
CONSOLIDATION OR INSTITUTIONAL AFFILIATION WITH ANY OTHER AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED FROM
TIME TO TIME BY MHS ULTIMATELY, THE CORPORATION IS CONTROLLED BY MHS'S 28-PERSON COMMUNITY BOARD, WHICH
INCLUDES 24 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AS NOTED ABOVE CORPORATION OR OTHER ENTITY, AND E) THE PURCHASE OR
SALE OF ASSETS FOR AN AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF AN AMOUNT SPECIFIED FROM TIME TO TIMEBY MHS ULTIMATELY, THE
CORPORATION IS CONTROLLED BY MHS'S 28-PERSON COMMUNITY BOARD, WHICH INCLUDES 24 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
AS NOTED ABOVE




Return
Reference

Explanation

FORM 990,
PART V|,
SECTION B,
LINE 11

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC ("MHS"), THE SOLE PARENT OF THE CORPORATION, HAS A POLICY WHICH REQUIRES THE
CORPORATIONS 990 TO BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW BY THE MHS BOARD AND/OR THE MHS BOARD EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE PRIOR TO ITS FILING AT ITS MARCH 18, 2015 MEETING, MHS BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
RECEIVED A COPY OF THE CORPORATION'S DRAFT FORM 890 THE MHS CFO PROVIDED A POWER POINT PRESENTATION
REGARDING THE DRAFT AND THERE WAS AN OPPORTUNITY FOR QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSION FOLLOWING FURTHER
REVISION OF THE DRAFT 990 AND PRIOR TO ITS FILING, IT WAS MADE AVAILABLE IN FINAL FORM TO ALL MEMBERS OF
THE MHS BOARD AND THE CORPORATION'S BOARD FOR THEIR REVIEW ANY ADDITIONAL COMMENTS/QUESTIONS FROM
BOARD MEMBERS ARE RESPONDED TO PRIOR TO FILING THE FORM 990




Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 990, MHS HAS A WRITTEN CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY THAT COVERS MHS AND ALL OF ITS DIRECT AND INDIRECT
PART V|, SUBSIDIARIES THE INDIVIDUALS COVERED UNDER THE POLICY INCLUDE ALL TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS (INCLUDING
SECTION B, | ALL SENIOR AND EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS) AND MEMBERS OF ANY COMMITTEE WITH BOARD-DELEGATED POWERS
LINE12C UNDER THE POLICY, EACH SUCH PERSON IS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE AN ANNUAL DISCLOSURE FORM REGARDING

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS THAT HE OR SHE, OR ANY FAMLY MEMBER, HAS WITH ANY OTHER ORGANIZATION THAT DOES
BUSINESS WITH MHS OR ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG OFFICERS, TRUSTEES AND
DIRECTORS THE COMPLETED DISCLOSURE FORMS ARE REVIEWED BY THE MHS BOARD CHAIR AND BY THE MHS CEO OR A
DESIGNEE. IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL DISCLOSURE, ANY PERSON WHO IS COVERED BY THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
POLICY HAS AN ONGOING OBLIGATION TO DISCLOSE THE EXISTENCE OF ANY ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL CONFLICT TO THE
BOAURD OR THE BOARD COMMITTEE IN WHICH THE MATTER ARISES FOLLOWING THE DISCLOSURE, THE PERSON MAY
MAKE A PRESENTATION, BUT MUST THEN LEAVE THE MEETING AND THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OR COMMITTEE
SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER A CONFLICT EXISTS UNDER THE POLICY, A CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS WHEN AN
INDIVIDUAL'S OWN PERSONAL INTERST WOULD, OR MAY, INTERFERE WITH HIS OR HER IMPARTIALITY REGARDING THE
MATTER IF A CONFLICT EXISTS, THE PERSON MAY NOT BY PRESENT DURING DELIBERATIONS ON THE MATTER OR VOTE ON
T THE BOARD OR COMMITTEE, AFTER CONDUCTING SUCH ADDITIONAL DUE DILIGENCE AS IT DETERMINES IS APPROPRIATE,
SHALL MAKE A DECISION ON THE MATTER BASED UPON WHETHER THE PARTICULAR PROPOSAL IS FAIR, REASONABLE
AND IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE ORGANIZATION




Return Explanation
Reference
FORM 990, THE ORGANIZATION'S BOARD HAS ADOPTED A COMPENSATION POLICY (THE "POLICY") FOR COVERED INDIVIDUALS
PART V|, PURSUANT TO THE POLICY, A COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD OF THE
SECTIONB, | ORGANIZATIONS PARENT CORPORATION WAS ESTABLISHED TO REVIEW THE COMPENSATION OF ALL EMPLOY EES
LINE15 SPECIFIED AS HAVING A SUBSTANTIAL INFLUENCE OVER THE ORGANIZATION AND WHO RECEIVE REMUNERATION FROM

THE ORGANIZATION THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE IS ADVISED BY AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT,
WHICH OPINES TO THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE THAT THE LEVEL OF COMPENSATION PAID AND THE PROCESS BY
WHICH COMPENSATION IS ESTABLISHED MEET APPLICABLE IRS REASONABLENESS AND "SAFE HARBOR"' STANDARDS THE
OUTSIDE COMPENSATION CONSULTANT PROVIDES DATA OF COMPENSATION PROVIDED AT SIMILAR ORGANIZATIONS TO
ENSURE THAT THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT COMPENSATE IN EXCESS OF MARKET NORMS MERCY HEALTH SERVICES,
INC (THE CORPORATION'S SOLE MEMBER) HAS A WRITTEN POLICY REGARDING THE REVIEW OF PHY SICIAN COMPENSATION
TITLED "AMENDED AND RESTATED PHY SICIAN COMPENSATION REVIEW " THE POLICY APPLIES TO ALL MHS SUBSIDIARIES,
INCLUDING THE CORPORATION, AND IT SETS OUT THE PROCESS AND PROCEDURES FOR ENSURING THAT PHY SICIAN
COMPENSATION IS APPROPRIATELY REVIEWED AND DETERMINED TO BE CONSISTENT WITH FAIR MARKET VALUE UNDER
THE POLICY THE REVIEW AND DETERMINATION MUST BE DOCUMENTED IN WRITING THE POLICY ADDRESSES INTERNAL
REVIEWS THROUGH BENCHMARKING OF PHY SICIAN COMPENSATION AGAINST NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED COMPENSATION
SURVEY DATA, THE USE OF INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS AND REVIEW BY THE MHS BOARD
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE THE POLICY FURTHER REQUIRES THAT ALL COMPENSATION REVIEWS BE PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MHS CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY




Return Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART V|,
SECTION C, LINE 19

THE GOVERNING DOCUMENTS OF THE ORGANIZATION, ITS CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY, AND ITS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE ORGANIZATION UPON REQUEST




Return Reference Explanation

FORM 990, PART X]|, NET ASSETS TRANFER TO AFFILIATES -3,886,855 CONTRIBUTION -2,768,561 CHANGE IN POST RETIREMENT
LINES OBLIGATION -34,426 ROUNDING -10




Return Explanation
Reference
PART X, MERCY HEALTH SY STEM, INC AND ITS SUBSIDIARES INCLUDING THE ORGANIZATION FILING THIS FORM 990, UNDERGO A
QUESTIONS 2 CONSOLIDATED AUDIT OF THEIR FINANCIAL STATEMENT THAT COMPLIES WITH SINGLE AUDIT ACT/OMB CIRCULAR A-133
AND 3 - AUDITS | REQUIREMENTS DUE TO THE EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS THE ACCOUNTING FIRM OF DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN

LLP HAS ISSUED AN UNQUALIFIED OPINION REGARDING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN CONFORMANCE
WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED AUDIT STANDARDS AND THE SINGLE AUDIT ACT/OMB CIRCULAR A-133 REQUIREMENTS
FOR THEFISCAL YEAR THAT CORRESPONDS TO THE TAX REPORTING Y EAR GOVERNED BY THIS FORM 990




Return Explanation
Reference
PART V|, MERCY HEALTH SERVICES, INC ("MHS"), A 501(C)(3) CORPORATION, IS THE SOLE MEMBER OF MERCY MEDICAL CENTER,
LINE1B INC ("MMC") MHS IS GOVERNED BY A 28-PERSON BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OF WHOM 24 ARE INDEPENDENT BOARD

MEMBERS THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MMC IS CURRENTLY MADE OF 6 DIRECTORS THE PRESIDENT OF MHS SERVES AS
AN EX OFFICIO MEMBER OF MMC'S BOARD AND THE BALANCE OF THE MMC BOARD MEMBERS ARE ELECTED BY, AND
SUBJECT TO REMOVAL BY, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF MHS ONE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MMC BOARD IS
INDEPENDENT SEVEN OF THE BOARD MEMBERS ARE COMPENSATED AS EMPLOY EES EITHER OF MMC OR A RELATED

ORGANIZATION LISTED IN SCHEDULER, PART Il
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. . . OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships :
(Form 990) = Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 20 1 3
= Attach to Form 990. Ik See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury k- Information about Schedule R (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to P_ublic
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

52-0591658 .
IEEREHEl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) N
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Total iIncome End-of-year assets Direct controlling
or foreign country) entity

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling Section 512(b)

or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity (13) controlled
entity?

Yes No
(1) MERCY HEALTH SERVICES INC SUPPORT MD 501(C)(3) 509(A)(3) No

301 ST PAUL PLACE

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2173382

(2) MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION INC FOUNDATION MD 501(C)(3) 170(B)(1)VI MERCY HEALTH Yes

301 ST PAUL PLACE

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2173656

(3) SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC SPEC CARE MD 501(C)(3) 170(B)1 III MERCY HEALTH Yes

301 ST PAUL PLACE

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-1495113

(4) MARYLAND FAMILY CARE INC PRIMARY CARE MD 501(C)(3) 170(B)1 III MERCY HEALTH Yes

301 ST PAUL PLACE

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2046586

(5) STELLA MARIS INC NURSING FACLT MD 501(C)(3) 509(A)(2) MERCY HEALTH Yes

2300 DULANEY VALLEY

TIMONIUM, MD 21093
52-1419602

(6) MERCY TRANSITIONAL CARE SERVICES INC SKILLED NURSE MD 501(C)(3) 509(A)(2) MMC Yes

301 ST PAUL PLACE

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-1968440

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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Page 2

EETREiid Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) (6)) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity| Legal Direct Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V-UBI | General or| Percentage
related organization domicile| controlling income(related, |total income |end-of-year| allocations? |amount in box| managing | ownership
(state or entity unrelated, assets 20 of partner?
foreign excluded from Schedule K-1
country) tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes No Yes | No

-14¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] g (h) 0]
Name, address, and EIN of Pnmary activity Legal Direct controlling | Type of entity Share of total Share of end-of- Percentage Section 512
related organization domicile entity (C corp, S corp, Income year ownership (b)(13)
(state or foreign or trust) assets controlled
country) entity?
Yes No
(1) GREENLEAF INSURANCE INSURANCE C] MERCY MEDICAL |C 19,345,069 64,012,224 100 000 % Yes
CO LTD
PO BOX 1363
GRAND CAYMAN, CAYMAN
ISLANDS KY1-1108
C]
52-0591658
MEDICAL PRACT MD MHS C Yes

(2) VASCULAR SPECIALTY
SERVICES INC

341 N CALVERT ST STE 200
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-1995474

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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Transactions With Related Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c No
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) 1le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g | Yes
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) 1h | Yes
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) li | Yes
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j | Yes
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l No
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im| Yes
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in| Yes
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1lo | Yes
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p No
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q | Yes
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r | Yes
s Othertransfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s | Yes

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)

See Addritional Data Table

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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IEEYTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Pnmary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V?UBI | General or Percentage

domicile Income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) Income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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.m Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN: 52-0591658
Name: MERCY MEDICAL CENTER

Form 990, Schedule R, Part II - Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations

(a)

Name, address, and EIN of related organization

(b)

Primary activity

(o)
Legal domicile
(state
or foreign country)

(d)
Exempt Code
section

(e)
Public charity
status
(if section 501 (c)

(30

(f)
Direct controlling
entity

(9)
Section 512

(b)(13)
controlled
entity?

Yes No

(1)MERCY HEALTH SERVICES INC

301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2173382

SUPPORT

MD

501(C)(3)

509(A)(3)

No

(1)MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION INC

301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2173656

FOUNDATION

MD

501(C)(3)

170(B)(1)VI

MERCY HEALTH

Yes

(2)SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC

301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-1495113

SPEC CARE

MD

501(C)(3)

170(B)1 III

MERCY HEALTH

Yes

(3)MARYLAND FAMILY CARE INC

301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-2046586

PRIMARY CARE

MD

501(C)(3)

170(B)1 III

MERCY HEALTH

Yes

(4)STELLA MARIS INC

2300 DULANEY VALLEY
TIMONIUM, MD 21093
52-1419602

NURSING FACLT

MD

501(C)(3)

509(A)(2)

MERCY HEALTH

Yes

(5)MERCY TRANSITIONAL CARE SERVICES INC

301 ST PAUL PLACE
BALTIMORE, MD 21202
52-1968440

SKILLED NURSE

MD

501(C)(3)

509(A)(2)

MMC

Yes




Form 990, Schedule R, Part V - Transactions With Related Organizations

(a) (b) (o) (d)
Name of other organization Ttrssz(aac_tslc;n Amount Involved Method of determining
amount involved
MERCY TRANSITIONAL CARE SERVICES o] 1,991,014 FMV
MERCY TRANSITIONAL CARE SERVICES R 3,748,013|FMV
MERCY TRANSITIONAL CARE SERVICES S 1,536,093|FMV
STELLA MARIS INC N 1,204,042 FMV
STELLA MARIS INC S 603,875|FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC ] 636,747 FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC M 280,000| FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC N 102,457,825(FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC o] 64,162,126| FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC Q 2,725,813|FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC R 18,772,223 FMV
SAINT PAUL PLACE SPECIALISTS INC S 15,563,374 FMV
VASCULAR SERVICES N 753,076 FMV
VASCULAR SERVICES o] 1,981,568 FMV
VASCULAR SERVICES Q 215,016| FMV
VASCULAR SERVICES R 2,086,496| FMV
VASCULAR SERVICES S 74,310/ FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE H 501,094| FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE ] 1,412,723|FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE M 149,475 FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE N 33,821,641|FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE o] 25,450,627| FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE Q 462,366 FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE R 4,720,203 FMV
MARYLAND FAMILY CARE S 7,684,651 FMV




Form 990, Schedule R, Part V - Transactions With Related Organizations

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of other organization Transaction Amount Involved

type(a-s) Method of determining
yp amount involved

MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION N 1,064,863|FMV

MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION o] 1,167,554 FMV

MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION S 888,862|FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES o] 2,392,509 FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES N 4,121,027| FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES S 219,921| FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES M 546,677| FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES R 6,466,613 FMV

MERCY HEALTH SERVICES S 5,789,571| FMV
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of '1rusiees
Merey Health Services, Inc and Subsidmries
Baltunore, MD

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Merey lealth Services, Inc. and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of operations and changes 1n net assets and cash flows for the year then ended and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managenient i~ responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolhdared financial
statements m accordance with accountng principles gencerally accepted i the United States of
America Thes includes the design, mmplementation and maintenance of mternal control televant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are fiee from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to expiess an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audir the financial statemments of Greenleaf Insurance Company, Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary, which statements reflect total assets of $64,012,224 and $63 487,208 as of fune
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. and total revenues of $20.897,06% and $12,399.591 for the yeats
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respecuvely. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been funnished to us, and our opinion, 1nsofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Greenleaf Insurance Company, Led, 1s based solely on the report of the other auditors, We
conducted ou audit i accordance with auditing standards generally accepted m the United States of
America Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obrain reasonable
assurance about whether the consalidated financtal statements are free of material nusstatement,

An audit mvolves pertormimg procedures to obtamm audit evidence about rthe amounts and
disclosurcs 1 the financial stazcments. The procedures selected depend on the audiors” judgment.
mcluding 1he asscssment of the usks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethut
due to fraud or eror, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
refevant to the enuny’s preparanon and fan presentation of the finanaal statements m order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate i the arcumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinton on the effectvencss of the entty’s mternal control Accordingly, we expiess
no such opauon. An audir also includes evaluaung the appropuateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates madc by management, as well as
evaluaung the overall presenration of the consolidated financial statements
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The Board of Trustees
Merey Tealth Services, Ine and Subsidiaties
Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur audit opnion.

Opinion

In our epmien based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the 2014 consolidated
{inancial statements referred to above present fairly, mn all mateinal respects, the consolidated
financial posiion of Mercy Health Scrvices, Inc and Subsidiaties as of June 30, 2014, and the
consolidated results of 1ts operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended
n accordance with accounting princples generally accepted 1 the United States of America

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements as of June 30, 2013, were audited by Cohen, Rutherford, + Kmght, P 0,
certain of whaose sharcholders joined Dixon Hughes Goodman L1LP as of June [, 2014, and whose
report dated October 10, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinton on those statements.

Report on Supplementary Information

Owan audut was conducted far the purpose of forming an opinion on the 2014 consolidated financral
statements 1~ 1 whole The 2014 consoldaung information on pages 66 — 69 1» presented for
purpuses of addinonal analysis of the consohdated financial statements rather than to present the
financial position, resulrs of operations, and cash flows of the individual companies, and 15 not a
recuited part of rhe financial statements, Such informanon 1s the responsibility of management and
was derved from and relates divectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements The 2014 information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied 1 the audit of the 2014 consolidated finaneial statements and certam additional procedures.
including companng and reconciling such information directly to the underlying aceounting and
othe1 records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other addinonal procedutes m accordance wath auditing standards generally accepted o the UInited
States of America 1o our opmion, the 2014 mformation 1s farly stated m all materal respects
relation to the 2014 financial statements as a whole. The 2013 consolidatnng intormation on pages 660
— 09 was subjected o the audiung procedures applied m the 2013 audit of the finaneial starements
by Cohen, Ruthertord, + Kmght, P C.. whose report on such informatem srared thar 1t was farly
stated 1 all mareral respecrs in relavon to the 2013 financial statements as 2 whole

Lixeon fﬁﬁhég éEEt{Mff LLF

Tysons, Virpin
Seprember 8, 2014



Mercy Health Setvices, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollars 1n thousands)

June 30,
2014 2013
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
(Zash, cash cquivalents and short-term mvestments by 87189 § 81,451
Cugrent portion of funds held by ttustee or authority -- Noge I3 11.634 12,949
Resdent prepayment deposits 1496 637
Panent accounts recervable, ner -- Naofe B3 43,217 43,660
ther amounts 1ecetvable, net 0,937 3.319
(Curtent piedges 1ecervable, net -- Noze 4,181 4,907
Iirventory 7,808 7.527
(ither carrent assets 5,157 4,548
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 160,619 158 994
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net -~ Nofe D 546,087 548,626
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS
Punds hddd by austee or authonty, less cuitent portion -- Nute 4 23130 23201
Boatd dessgnated and donor restiieted mwvestments -- Nese 1 141,941 130500
Restircied cash, cash equivalents and investments O-h,138 062,018
Long-term mvestiments [0.981 15976
Lung-term pledpes recervable, net -- Nore € 8,462 10,175
Iin cstmcnts i and advances o affiliates -- Naofe GG 920 329
Resmsurance balances teceivable or tecoverable -- Note I 4,150 10018
Onher assets -- Note F 23,536 16.:433

TOTAL ASSETS 3 986903  $ 976,311

Sce notes to the consohidated financial statements



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets - Continued
(Dollars 1 thousands)

June 30,
2014 2013
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current matutiues of long-term debt -+ Noze | B 9,267 % 8.507
Accounts payable and acarued expenses 83,223 75,915
Remdent prepayment deposits 495 0306
Consteuctuion retamnage 9] 2,042
Line of credit 3,000 8,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,985 95,190

Long-term debo-- Nate [ 431,799 441,525
Provision fo1 outstanding losses -- Naze J 51,599 58,205
Postretrement obhganon -- Note Al 6221 5575
Intetest rate swap habihties -- Nose / 29,804 28,843
Ovther long-term habidies —- Nave 11 13,204 11442
TOTAL LIABILITIES 633,673 640,779

NET ASSETS

U'niestiected 322,805 33,625
Tempotany restricted -- Noze P 28,307 20,7249
Permanently resuicted —- Neodes Poand 17 2178 2178
TOTAL NET ASSETS 353,290 335,532

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -- Na#ei 1. [ [,
MoNCR and U

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSE'TS

o

986,963 § 9706311

See notes to the consolidated financial statements



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Dollars in thousands)

REVENUE
Patienst service revenue
(et of allowances and discounts) -~ Nodes B and 8
Provision for bad debts

Net patient scrvice revenuc

Crther operatng revenue
Net assets released from restriction used for operations

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES -« Nore ()
Salanies and benefits
Medical and surgical supplics
Phatmacy supphes
Other expendable supplics
Professional fees
Insurance
Orther puichased serviees
Interest eapense
Repaies
Depreaanon and amortizanon

TOTAL EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Isvestment mcome - Nofe F
Net umealzed gams on wadmy securttics — Note B
Gam (loss) on caily extmgusshment of debt
Unrealized gan (Joss) on mterest 1ate swaps
Equity m jomt ventures - Nose G
T.oss on assct disposal
vsset abandonment -- Note X
Other
NET OTHER INCOME

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

Changes to post teurement plans obligauons -- Neter M and N
Net assets released from restrictnons tor te puichasce of
Property and equipment
INCREASE IN
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Sce notes to the consolidated financial statements

Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013
§ 008,042 % 0603249
(22719 (30,285
585,324 572964
32,520 25,990
3,860 3304
621712 002,348
338,000 330,572
55.979 54,336
34.76Y 32,848
27.304 26,027
10,208 15,324
24812 25.397
49.804 53%,392
19,729 10,617
12,340 10,970
40,087 37,545
619 181 (UG, 633
2,531 (1,285)
5450 4,010
10,155 1334
(365) 2,049
(961) 13,407
S8R 546
(Lo) (7N
(G12) {7.826)
U7 (652)
13,339 13,540
16,370 9,255
(3 2039
2845 3404
T 19180 5 15,638




Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
(Dollars m thousands)

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  restricted restricted Total

Net assets, June 30, 2012 $ 287987 % 31,369 % 2178 % 321,534

Excess of revenue over expenses 9,255 0 { 9.3255
Net assets rcleased from

testrictons for the purchase

of property and equipment 3,444 {3444 0 0
Restricted gfts, bequests,

and contributions (B 5,198 0 5.198

Changes to post rearement plans

obligations -- Nefes AL aud N 2939 0 0 2934
Net assets released from

1osiuctons used for operations 0 {3394 N (3,39

Change in net assets 15,638 {L.6HY 0 13,998

Net assets, June 30, 2013 $ 303625 % 20729 % 2178 S 335532

Tixcess of 1evenue over expenses 16,370 0 9] 16,370
Net assets 1eleased from

restricuons for the puichase

of property and equipment 2,845 {2845 0 0
Restucted gifts, bequests,

and conuibuuons 0 5,282 () 5,282

Changes 1o post retirement plans

obhgatons -- Natee Al and N {3 0 ( (35
Net assets 1eleased from

restticdons used {or operatons 0] {3.860) { (3.86()

Change in net assets 17,180 (1422) 0 17,758

Net assets, June 30, 2014 $ 322805 % 28307 0% 2078 0§ 353,290

See notes to the consolidated financial statements



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change m net assets
Adjustunenss to reconcle change 10 net assets to ner cash and
cash equivalents provided by operating actvites
Depreaation and amornzation
Loss (gan} on interest 1ate swaps
Loss on asset disposal
Gam in equity of joint ventures
Realized and unreahzed gams on board designared
and donor restricted mvesments
Restricred gifts, bequests, contribunons, and 1esticted
mvesunent income
T.oss {gaut) on carly extinguishment of debt
Provision for bad debts
Decrease (increase)
Patient accounts recetvable, nct
QOther amounts recervable and nvestments i and advances ro affiliates
Pledges recevable
hrventory
Ovther current assets
Inciease (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Provison for cutstandmyg losses
Post-retirement obligation
Other long-term labilines
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease (inciease) m short-tetm myvestments
Puichases of property and equpment
Net ncrease i resteted cashy cash equivalent and mvestiments
Net decicase (increase} 1n funds held by nustee o1 authouty
Net deciease (increase) n board designated and donor
1esticted srvestments
Net decicase in long tetm invesiments
Tleciease (increase) m other assets
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
USED IN INVIESTING ACTIVITIES

(contnued)

Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013
i) 17758 § 13,998
40,087 37.545
961 (13,497)
14 17
(588) (546}

(3,083)

(7.722) (8,181
365 (2,649)
22,719 30,285
(22,275} {38.262)
1,659 (6,953)
2,439 2984
{28 (175)
{609 643
7,308 (2.223)
{6,006} 20,047
o646 (1,034
1,822 (1,015)
44,251 27.001
1,025 ([97)
(33,553) (31712)
{2.0M) (13,357)
1.386 (241)
2012 (7,120)
4,205 11,338
(4777 1,379
(36.002) (38.017)



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Dollats 1n thousands)

Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds {tom restiicted gifts, bequests. contributions,
and testicted mvestment income B 7,722 $ 8,181
Net burrowmg under line of credit agreement 0 8.000
Debt retrement (18.195) {55,0306)
Piroceeds {rom 1ssuance of long term debt 18,005 55412
Repavment of long term debt 6924 {8347
Deferred financing cost (155) (431}
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1487 7.779

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,762 (4,137

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 78,793 82,030

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR § 85555 ¢ 78793

See notes to the consolidated financial statcments



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organezation, Basis of Pieventation and Pruaples of Consaliditian

Merey [lealth Services, Inc. (MIIS) was formed tor the purpose of supporong, benefiing, or
carrymg out some or all of the purposes of Mercy Medical Center, Inc {Medical Center or MMC).
Stella. Maris, Inc (SMI), the physictan practice groups comprising the Pliysician Enterprise (as
further described below) and Mercy FHealth I'oundanon (MHE) MHS 15 the sale member of the
Medical Center, SMI, the Physician Enterpusce and MIIF - MHES prepares its consohdated financial
statements on the acerual basis of accounting. The accompanying consohdated financial statements
include MMC, SMI, the Physician FEoterprisc and MITF. All materal miercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminared

1. Mercy Medical Center, Inc.

The Medical Center, a subsidiary of MHS. provides mpatient, outpauent, and emergency
care services prunarily for the anzens of the Balumore metopelitan arca In additon, the
following cntues are wholly owned subsidiarics of the Medical Center:

Name of Subsidiary Tax Status

Meroy Transitional Cae Services, Ine (M1C)

Promder o itbaoite ver v Ty exempt

Gieenleaf Inswance Compam, Lid (GIC)
Promder of o i geerad dnd

malpraine wrerage o S Foreign subsuliary
2. Stella Maris, Inc.

SMI, a subsidiaty of NS, s the sule member of the Stella Mans Operating Corporarion, as
well as the Cardinal Shechan Center, Incorporated (CSCy - SMI provides sub-acute, hospice,
long-term care and adult day cate to panents in the central Marvland service area, wathin ats
412-bed long-tum care facility.

CSC s engaged 1 mamtamung and providing care and housing of aged and intirmed
persons  CSC owns St Elizabeth Hall, 0 200-unn aparoment complex for the clderly



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Orgamzation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
3. Physician Enterprise

The Physician Enterprise mcludes Maryland Fanuly Care, Inc. (MFC), 5t Paul Place
Spectalists, Inc (SPPS), and Maryland Specialty Services, LLC (MSS) MSS 1s the sole
member of Tutherville Hematology and Oncology, LLC and 1s the sole stockholder of
Vascular Spectalty Services, Ine These entities provide primary care and specialty services
within the Balhmore arca. MFC, SPPS and MSS are wholly owned/controlled subsidiaries of
MHS

4. Mercy Health Foundation, Inc.

MHF, a subsidiary of MIIS, was formed to coordinate and strengthen the fundraising
function on behalf of MHS

Tucome Taves

MHS, MMC, SMI, MEFC, SPPS. MEIF, and MSS are nor-for-profit orgamizations exempt from
tedetal ncome taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Inteinal Revenue Code, and are therefore not
subject to fedetal income tax under current meome tas regulations  MHS subsidiartes otherwise
exempt from federal and state taxation are nonectheless subject to raxation at cofporate tax rates at
both the federal and state level on thar unrelated busiess mncome,

Current accounting standards define the threshold for tecogmizing uncertam mceome tax return
positions 11 the financal smtements as “mote likely than nod” that the posioon 1s sustamnable, based
on 1ts technical mertts, and also provide gudance on the measutement, classificatton and disclosure
of tax return posttons in the financial statements Alanagement believes there 1s no unpact on MHS
accompanying consoldated finanaal statements related to uncertam meome tax positions

-10-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policics - Continued
Unrestrzcied, Temparandy Restricted, and Pernranently Resiricied Net Liets

Unrestricted net assets represent contributions, gifts, and grants which have no donor-imposed
restrictions or which arse as a result of operanions Temporauly restricted net assets are subject to
donor-imposed supulations that may or will be met either by sausfymg a specific purpose and/ot the
passage of wme Permanently resiricied net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be matntained 1n perpetutty. Generally, the donors of these assets pettmut the use of all or part
of the income cained on related mvestments for specitic purposes (see Nodes P und 1.

Ceash Ligerajents aied Short-Terr Dnvesdnents

MIIS and certain of 1t subsidiaries invest in money market funds and U S Treasury Bills, which are
highly hquid and have an otiginal maturny of minety days or less These financial mstruments are
considered cash and cash equivalents and are reconded at cost, which approximates fair value Short-
term investments are highly liquid assets that have an ongmal maturity between three months and

ONC year.
Restrpcted Carshr, Cash Liguiralents, cnd Divestnients

Resuicted cash, cash cquivalents and investments represent funds required for interest rate swap
collateral, funds that have heen sct aside to cover a portion of GIC’s estimated outstanding claims,
and donor restncted funds om permanently and temporauly restricted net assets Collateral posting
requirernents for mrerest rare swaps are based on credit ratings and the net hability posiion of the
INTCICST 1Ate SWAP Agreements out::tandmg \r June 30, 2014, resuicted cash, cash cqul\*ﬂ]ents and
investments of $10,630 was set aside for interest 1ate swap collateral and $53.502 was set aside to
cover estmated ourstanding clams and donor restrcted funds At June 30, 2013, restricted cash,
cash equivalents and investments of $11,082 was set aside for mterest rate swap collateral and
$50,366 was sct aside 1o cover estimated outstandimg claums and donor restriered funds

Turestiments

Investments nclude marketable securities with readily determinable fair values based on quoted
market prices Unrestricted mvestment mcome or losses are tepot ted 1n the consolidated statements
of operatons as part of excess of revenucs over expenses unless the mcome s restucted by donor or
law Investments receved by gift or bequest are reported at farr value ar the date of the donation
investment mcome and changes in the far value of temporanly restiicted and permanently restricted
mvestments ae recorded as increases or decreases o unrestucted, temporarily restucted or
permancntly rostucted net asscrs 1n accerdance with the worms of the donor's onginal gift or bequest

-11-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Orgamization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Luvestments - Contrited

Investments also mnclude investments 1 hmted partnerships and other alternative mvestments,
which are made n accordance with the mvestment policics of MIS and ate monitored through
quartetly performance reviews, ‘The bimited parmerships acquire, hold, mvest, manage, disposc of,
and otherwise deal in and with securinies of all kinds and descripuons Publicly traded securities age
valued using generally accepted pucing services selected by the fund managers of the hmated
partnerships Sceuritics not valued by such pricing setvices are valued upon bid quotations obtained
fiom independent dealets i the secuntics. 1n the absence of any independent quotations, sccurities
are valued by the fund managers on the basis of data obtained from the best available sources.

Although the vauous fund managers use thew best judgment at estmanng the far value of the
alternative mvestments, there are mherent limttations m any valuaton technique. Therefore. the
value 15 not necessartly indicative of the amount that could be realized m a current transaction.
Future events will also affect the estimates of farr value, and the effect of such events on the
esiimates of the fair value could be material {sce Noze K)

Danor Restraied Gifis

Uncondinional promises to give cash and othor assets are reported at fair value at the datc the
promiuse 15 receved. Conditonal pronuses 1o give and mdications of intentions ro give are reported
at far value at the date the pift 15 recened  The gifts are reported as either temporarily or
permanently 1estucted support 1f they ate reecived with donor supulauons that mit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restaction expires, that 15, when a supulated ume restriction ends or
PUIPOSC TESTICTION 18 accomplished, temporanly restricted net asscts are reclassificd to unrestricted
net assets and reported 1 the accompanying statements of operations as net assets released from
restrictions

Lirzenionies

Inventarics are stated at the lower of cost, dereimined by the fistun, firsst-out method, or market.
Deferred Uincireing Cais

Costs meurred m obtammg and 1ssuing the Manland [Tealth and Higher Tducauonal Facilicies
Authonty bends have been caputalized  These eapenses are being amortized over the term of the

bonds using the siaght-hne method Aecumulated amottization unounted 1o 32367 and $2,273 at
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectrvely



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollais in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Net Patwent Nervwe Revenne and  Allowences

Net patient setvice revenue are reported at the estumared net realizable amounts from patents, third-
party pavers, and others for services rendered  MMC charges are based on rates cstabhshed by the
State of Maryland [ealth Scrvices Cost Review Commussion; accordingly, revenue reflects actual
charges to patients based on tates 1 effect duting the period 1 which the scrvices are rendered (see

Note £ SMI and Physician Lnterprise are paid for services based on negotiated contracts with
commercial payers and fee schedules with Medicare and Medicasd.

Conttactual adpstments represent the difference between amounts billed as patient service 1evenue
and amounts allowed by thnd-party payers, and are accrued 1 the pertod in which the related
se1vices are rendered

The provision for bad debts 15 based upon management’s assessment of historical and expected net
collections This estimate constders business and general economic conditions, trends in healthcare
coverage and other collecuon mdicators Throughout the year, management assesses the adequacy of
the allowance for uncollectible accounts based upon 1ts review of accounts 1ecervable and collecnion-
to date  Other factors, such as paver s, account aging, approved discounts, demal rates, and
payment cycles ate considered when esnmating the allowances. The resuits of these assesstnents are
used 1o determuine the provision for bad debts and to esnmate an appioprate allowance for
uncollectible accounts  MITS follows established gmdelines for placing its self-pay patient accounts
with an outside collecuon agency  After collection cfforts are exhausted. the uncollected balances
are 1cturnied to the appropiiate MELS eniities to be wuitten off to bad debts MHS does not maintain
4 matetial allowance for uncollectible accounts from third-paity payets, nor did 1t have significant
write offs trom thurd-patty payers

-13-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Net Patéent Serraee Revense and Aflonanees - Contened

NMedicare reimburses MTC and SNI under a prospective payment system (PPS) for skilled nursing
facthty services, under which facilities are paid 2 fixed fee for virtually all covered services. Under
PPS, cach pauent's chnical status i evaluated and placed mto a payment category.  The patient's
payment category dictates the amount that the provider will recerve ta carc for the patient on a daily
basis  The per diemi 1ate covers (1) all routine mpatient costs currently paid under Medicare Part A
(i) certam ancillary and other tems and services previously covered separately vnder Medicare
Part B on a "pass-through” basts: and (1) certain capital costs.

The composition of patient service revenuce (net of contiactual allowances and discounts) as of June

30 15 as {ollows.

2004 2013
Federal programs (hMediear ¢/ Medicad) ¥ 321,138 $ 297 804
Other thud party payvers 262,870 280,737
Self pav 24,034 24,6018

% oUB042 % 603,249

Charity Care

‘The Medseal Center provides medically necessary services without charge, or at amounts less than its
establshed rates, to patients who qualify for chanty care under s financial assistance policy.
Because the Medical Center does not pursue collecnon of those amounts determmed to quabfy as
chanty care, they are not teported as a component of net patient service revenue or paflent accounts

recervable (sce Naze B)

The critena for qualifving for chamty care applied by the Medical Center include famuly income, net
assers, and the size of the patent's bill relatve to the patients ability to pay  Discounts are provided
to patients who ate unable wo pav based on a shding scale that 1s applied for fanuly mcomes up to
approximately 40070 above the 115 Department of Tealth and Human Services {TTHS) Poverty
Guddhines.  Free care 15 provided to patients wath famly incomes up 10 approximately 200 above
the HHS Poverty Guudelnes

Chanty care will be provided to patents who qualify unde the NMedical Center’s financml assisiance
policy at any ume. Once the Medical Center determuimes that the pauent quahfies for chaney care,
the Medical Center makes no further attempt to collect on the amount qualitying tor chanry care.

Certan other controlled subsidizries of MIIS also provide scrvices withour chatge, or at amounts
less than thar established tates, w patients who quabify for chanty care under their respectne
firancial assistance pobaes

-14-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Lnpansient of Long-1aved Tyt

MHS accounts for long-hved assets 1n accordance with applicable guidance on accountng for
imparment or disposal of long-lived assets.  Such puidance requires that long-lived assets be
reviewed for impalsment whenever events or changes m crcumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable  Recoverabihity of asscts to be held and used 1s measured
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an assct to future net cash expected o be genetated by
the asset T the cariying amount of an asset exceeds 1ts esumated future cash flows, an impairment
charge 15 recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fawr value
of the asscr. Assets o be disposed of are 1epotted at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell. Management believes that no asset imparment existed at June 30, 2014 and 2013

Prapersy and Lgnipaent

Property and cquipment are recorded at cost Donated property and equipment are recorded at fair
value at the date of the donaton  Depreciaton 1s provided on the straight-ine method over the
estunated useful Ines of the assets, which is forty years for buildings and the parking center and
ranges from three to ten voars for machinery and equipment

The cost of softwase 13 capitalized provided the cost of the project 1s at least $5 and the expected Lie
18 at least 3 veats. Costs include payment 1o vendors tor the purchase and assistance m s
wstallaon, payroll costs of employees direetly mvolved 1 the software mstallation, and interest
costs of the seflware project if financed by debt  Prehnunary costs to document svsiem
tequirements, vendor selection, and any costs before software purchase are expensed. Capitalization
of costs will generally end when the project 15 completed and the software 15 ready to be used
Where unplementation of the project 1s 1 phases, only those costs mcurred which furtha the
development of the project will be capitalized. Costs incurred to mamntain the system are expensed.

Resedesit Preperysment Depasety

SMI's puvate pav restdents are requited to make a non-interesr bearing prepayment of two months’
room and board ar the nme of admission At the time of discharge or acceptance by Medieal
Assistance or similar government assistance programs, any prepayment remaming after applicarion
to the resident™s outstanding Il wall be refunded. At fune 30, 2014 and 2013, resident prepayment
duposits of approxunately 3495 and $636, respectively, were mvested m short-tom mvestments



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Derziatove Lnsiriirents

Current accountng standards require that an entity recogmze all dervative mstruments as either
assets or labilities i the ~tatement of financial position and measurc those mstruments at tair value,
MIIS has cntered mto inferest rate swap agreements to manage its interest rate risk (see Notes [ and
K} The interest rate swaps do not qualify for hedpe accounting under current accounting standards,
therefore, management accounts for the derrvauve instruments as speculatve derivative nstuments
with the changc m the fair value reflected mn the accompanying consoliduted statements of
opetations as a component of other non-operaung mcome  Net settlement payments ave reported
as a component of mterest cost, with the exception of the payments associated with constiucton
acts thies that are capitalized. Entenng into interest rate swap agreements involves to varying degrees
elements of credit, default, prepayment, matket and docomentation risk 11 excess of the amounts
tecognized on the consolidated balance sheets Such nisks mvolve the possibility that there will be no
hquid market for these agrecments, the counterparty to these agreements may default on it
obligation to pertoum, and thete may be unfavorable changes in interest rates.

Acconintrng Fastemreates

The preparation of financial statements 1 conformty with accounting principles generally accepted
in the Ulnited States of .Amcrica requires management to make estimares and assumptons that affeet
the reported amounts of assets and labiities and disclosure of contingent assets and habihues at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
tepotting period \ccordimgly, actual results could ditfer from those estunates.

Meanzugfud Ulse Lncenteres

Under certam provisions of the American Recovery and Ranvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), federal
ncentive payments are avatdable to hospitals, physiclans and certain other professionals when they
adops, mmplement or upgrade cernficd clectronic health zecord (LITR) technology o1 hucome
“meanmgtul users,” as defined undar ARRA, of IR technology m ways that demonsorate
improved qualiey, safety and cffecuveness of care Tncentive payments will be paid out over varying
transitional schedules dependmg on the type of mcenuve (Medicare and Medicad) and reeipient
(hospital or clgble provider) Eligible hospitals can attest for both Medicare and Medicasd
mncentives, while physicians must select to attest tor either Medicare or Medicaid mcentives. For
Medicare incentives, eligible hospitals recetve payments over fout years while cligible physicians
recetve payments over five years. For Medicard incentives, elipible hospitals recerve payments based
on the relesant State adopied payment strucrure and physicians recetve payments over six vems

-16-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note A - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued
Meanzngfud Uhe Ineeniives - Countinned

MITS 1ccogmzes TIIR incenuves when 1t is reasonably assured that BIIS will successfully
demonstrate compliance with the meamngful use crtevia. During the year (nded June 30, 2014,
certain hosprals and pbysicians of MHS sabsfied the meanmgful use cnteria As o result, MIS
recognized $5,596 and $0 of EIIR incentives during fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectvely, 1 other

C
"
N

operaling revenue.
Tawess of Revenre Orer Tinpenses (L penses orer Revene)

The consolidated statements of operatnons include excess of revenue over expenses (Capenses over
revenue)  Changes i unrestricted net assets which ate excluded from excess of revenue over
cxpenscs (C.\penses Over chcnuc), consistent with industry practce, mnclude unrealized gainq and
losses o mvestments other than trading secunues, permanent transfers of assels (o and from
affillates for other than goods and services, and contributions of long-lived assets gncluding asscts
acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the puposes of
acquizing such assets).

Activites that result in gains or losses unrelated to the primary operations of MHS are considered to
he 1'1()1'1('}PL‘1.]rlﬂg.
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements - Continued
{(Dollars in thousands)

Note B — Patient Accounts Receivable, Allowances, and Charity Care

Patient accounts recetvable consist of the tollowing at June 30.

2014 2013
Gross patient accounts teceivable bt 152287 % 180,537
Lgss
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
contractual adjustmeants (79.782) (75,705)
Third party advances (29.288) (31072

g 43,217 $ 43,000

Approximately 4% and 30%. of gross patient accounts recervable were due from Medicare and
Medicard at both June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

‘The net cost of charity care provided by MIIS toraled $19,942 and $14,944 for the vears ended June
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  The cost of charty care was calculated by applyiay the cost-to-
charge ratio to the total amount of charges foregone for cach of the controlled subsidiaries of MHS
that provide charity care  The net cost of chanty care was determined net of any patient-related
revenue due to slhiding scale payments or other patient-specific sources, and mcludes both direet and
indirect cost of rendering care. The net cost of chamy care is notr repotted net of the

uncompensated care fund net receipts (see Note f)

Additionally, MHS and certain of 165 controiled subsidiaries provide snucrured tepayment plans fo
patents without collateral

-18-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
{(Dollars in thousands)

Note C - Pledges Receivable, Net

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, pledges recervable were $13,625 and $16.530, respectively, less an
Alowance for uncollectuble pledges of $333 and $529, respectively, and a discount of $649 and
$919, respectively. The expected payment of the pledges 1ecavable less the uncollecrible pledges
at June 30, 2004 are as follows

2015 b L18]
20106 2792
2017 1.031
2018 435
2019 839
Thereafter 375
12,043
l.ess current poruon 1,181
J.ong-term poroon § 8,402
Note D - Property and Equipment
Property and cquipment, at cost, consists of the followmg at June 30
2014 2013
Bukdings and mprovements % 575,697 § 555,000
Machmery and cquipment 193,394 222073
Parking centes 41,234 41,221
Construchon-u-P Ogress +.206 28,538
Land 18,976 11181
833507 858,104
Accumulated deprecianon {287 420) {300 183)

-19-
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)
Note E - Funds Held by Trustee or Authority

[Funds held by trustee or authorty, which consist primarnly of cash and government obhgations (at
tair value), are limited as to use as tollows at June 30

2014 2013
Debt service reserve $ 22005 % 21917
Debt serice fund 11,634 12,949
Reserve for replacements and reswdual recespis 1,035 1.284
34,764 30,150
Less current poruon 11,034 12,049
FLong-term poruon b3 23,130 §% 23.201

Note F - Board Designated and Donor Restricted Investments

Board designated nvestments are set aside by the board of trustees for costs relating to replacement
or improvencnt of extstng assets, o 1o cover the cost of services rendered as charity care and other
programs Al board designated investments are unrestricied, as the board at its discretion may
undesignate the use of such funds. Donor restricted mvesunents have been mited by donors to a
spectilc purpose,

Board destgnated and donor restricted mvestments consist of the following at June 30

2014 2013
Equuty ) 73810 % 57,54H)
Fixed matarity 35840 34,715
Cash 25322 31217
Alternauves G969 7034

$ 141041 % 130,500

Fach of the alternatuve mvestments owned by MFLS gepreserus less than thice-quaaters of one
percent of cach respectve alternative mvestment fund as of fune 30, 2004 and 2013

-20-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Deollais in thousands)

Note F - Board Designated and Donor Restricted Investments - Continued

The investments above have been allocated, by sourcc, as follows ac June 34,

2014 2013
Board designated % 126277 § 115,860
Donor restricted (temporary) 15,004 14,640

B 141941 ¢ 1301500

Permanently restricted donor mvestments at June 30, 2014 and 2013 of $2,178 aic reported as
restricted cash.

Parnings on investments ate as follows for the years ended June 30.

2014 2013
Unrestricted.,
Intercst and dividends % 2164 % 1,361
Ner realized gains 3,292 2.649
Untcalived gams on tradmg: securities 10,155 1.334
$ 15611 % 5 34

Note G - Investments In and Advances to Affiliates

Investments in and advances to affiliates mclude a joint venture n which the Medical Center has an
ownctship mtetest of 5070 Investments in which the ownership mterest 1s less than 20%0 are carned
at cost, and mvestments tn which the ownershyp mterest is at laast 20% and less than 51%0 are
senerally carrted on the equity method.
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars 1n thousands)
Note G - Investments In and Advances to Affiliates - Continued

MI1S has mvestments totaling $920 and 329 at june 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, in the following
joInt ventures:

Percentage of ownership Investment
Joint venture Business purpose 2014 2013 2014 2013
Premier Purdhasmg Capiral halance in group
Partncs, Inc purdiasing organt wion n/sa n/a 9% Q20§ 320
Moeter Rudge, Inc CONUNMWING GLee Lerrement
aymmuniry 50% 0 500 4 0

3 920 % 329

MHS recorded non-operating mcome ot $588 and $546 related 1o the operations of the mvestments
in joint venturcs for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, MIIS recerves rebates
tfrom Premict Purchasing Partners, Inc which are nerted wath associated supplies expense,

Note H - Other Assets

Orther assels consist of the following at June 30

2014 2013
\miontizable assets, net B 12205 % 8,926
Deferred compensanon pian assers {(see Noze [.) 6,184 5,738
Health inyurance prepayment [.118 944
Ovdher mvestments RB3

$ 16,433

Note I - Reinsurance Receivable/Recoverable and Provision for Outstanding Losses

GIC management based the proviston for losses at Junc 30, 2004 on a report dated july 2014
prepared by GIC’s mdependent actuaries, Complete Actuarial Solutions Co. of Bethesda, Maryland.
In thetr report, the actuaries estimate outstanding Josses at an expected conlidence level, on an
undiscounted basis, 1o be $45.560 and $47,126 net of ransurance as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively s of June 3, 2014 and 2013, GICs provision for outstanding Josses was $51,599 and
F58.205. 1especnvely. and the remsurance recervable for such losses was 54150 and $10.018
respectively, after factoning m actual losses pad o Jupe 30th ‘The cstmates provided by the
actuaries are based on the historical dara of the progiam blended 1agether wath relevant mnsurance
mndustny foss development siatisucs,



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note I - Reinsurance Receivable/Recoverable and
Provision for Outstanding Losses - Continued

In the opmen of the GIC management, the provision for outstandimg losses relating to losses
reported and losses incurred but not repotted at the consolidated balance sheet dates 1s adequate to
cover the expected ultumate liabiity of GIC However, due to the nature of the msurance risks
assumed, these provisions ate necessanly estimates, and could vary from the amounts ultimately
patd

Conststent with most compantes with similar nsurance operations, GI(2s provision for outstanding
losses 1s ulumately based on management's reasonable expectanons of furure events. Tt 1s reasonably
possible that the expectadons assoctated with these amounts could change 1 the near teem (ic.,
withi: one year) and that the effect of such changes could be matesial to the consolidated financial
statements

GICs cstunated provision for outstanding losses exceeds GIC's tetention s by 34,150 and
$10.M8 for the vears ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively ‘Lhese losses are remsured with
ransurers as described n Neoze R, Sclf Insurance Program sccnon, and accordingly are recorded as
remnsurance balances recoverable 1n the consolidated balance sheets

In the event that G1C’s remsurers are unahle to meet then oblipatons under the reinsurance
agreements. GIC would sull be hable to pay all losses under the mnsurance policies 1t 1ssues, but
would only recetve reimbursement to the extent the remsurets could meet their above mentioned
abligattons. GIC considers that all amounts mcluded m remsurance balances recervable and
recaverable m the accompanymg consolidated buance sheers wall be collected m full from the

1CINSUrers
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
{Dollars 1n thousands)

Note J-Long - Term Debt

Long-term debst consists of the following at June 30

MITITHEA Revenue Bonds, Maar Moduwal Cenrer Tasuce Seres ) 2007 mterest rate
rangmig from 4 25%0 o 5 50%0, duc Julv | 2042

MITITIEEA Revenue Bonds, Merar Medial Centar Tssue, Senes 2013, vanable mnterest
rate tanging tom 1 21%a 10 1 24%, due July 1, 2042

My Revenue Bonds, Moo NMediaal Conter Tesue Setes 2002, inreiest jare
tangmig fiom 4% o 5%%, duc July 1, 2031

MY Rovenue Bonds, MMetae dadial Center Tssue Sates 2001, mrerest rate

ranging from 3.00% to 6 25% duc July 1T 2031

AMEEHT By Rovenue Bonds, Mag Medial Centar Issue, Remes 201118, vanable
tnrerest rate {1,590 and 162 ar Junc 30, 2004 and 2013, respoctively), due july 1,
2037

MITTIE A Revenue Bonds, Baa MModual Conra Tasuc, Seres 2006; imterest sate
5649, due July 1, 2036

MEIELRY Revenue Bonds, Mera Modhial Cenrar Tesue, doney 2007 8B oand G
{wnyerred), interest rate 3 879 0; due July 1. 2021

NMITHILY Y Revenue Bonds, AMerar Medial Conter Tssoc Scaes 2008 (asnverted),

mmteiest rate 3 99%, duc July 1, 2022
MITII Y Revenue Bonds, deras Medieal Conter Tssuc, Saes 19960, imtaiest nare

mngig flom 4 55% to 6 50%e, duc July 1, 2026

AMITITRIY Revenue RBonds, Moor Modwal Conrcr Issug, Soes 20838, vanable
wmterest mte {1 50%0 at June 30, 2014, due Julv T 2020
MUY Revenuve Bonds, Stella Mans Tesnel Semes 19970 sanable anterest 1ate
(0 08% 0 and O 1% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respean ehy); due 2021
LIV mongage loan, intetest rate 2 60190, due 2016
Cthes
To1tal long-term debt
Less:
Net unamortteed disaount

C wirent pormon

Long -tenm portion

24

2014 2013

% 148,290 § 149,755
50,210 50,210

45,995 49,695

38,970 39,870

34,800 34,800

32,020 32,645

28,000 20,000
25235 27,570

0

19,105

17,610 {}

11,095 12,200

5,059 5,100

14 169

44,514 450,699

448 570

0,267 8,597

$ 431,799 § 441,523




Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note ] - Long-Term Debt - Continued

Prneipal payments on long-term debt are as follows for the vears ended june 30:

2015 § 9,267

20106 9,434

2047 9.675

2018 8,948

2019 11,601
Thereafter 392,589
§ 441584

Pursuant to an amcended and restated Master Loan Agreement, as supplemented (the “Loan
Agreement”), the Obligated Group members have tssued debt through Maryland Health and Higher
Lducational Facihtics Authoriny (“MIHIEFA”). Carrently the Medical Center, MHS and NMHI
comprise the Obhgated Group. Each Obligatcd Group imanber 1s jomntly and severally liable for the
repayments under the obligations of the loan agreement As sccurity for the performance of the
obligauons of the Obligated Group members under the Toan Agreement, the Obligated Group
members have granted to MITTTFF \ a sceurnty interest in their recerpts, subject to certain permutted
encumbrances. In addinon, the NMedical Center has mortgaged to MHHLEPA certain real and
personal propetty of the Medical Center under 2 Mortgage fiom the Medical Center to MITHELA,
as amended and supplemented. The Loan Agiecment contams certain restrictive, financial and
nonfinancial covenants Under the terms of the Toan Agreement and other loan agreements, certain
funds are required to be mamtamed on deposic with the trustee or MHHEFA to provide fox
repayment of the obligations of the Obhgated Group (see Naote I5)



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note J - Long-Term Dcbt - Continued
Merey Medical Center Lssue, Serey 2007 (10 B, C, and D)) Bonds and Series 2007 B, € Converted)

In QOctober 2007, MITHEL.\ authorized the 1ssuance, sale and delivery of 1ts $305.000 Revenue
Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Tssue, Scries 2007 (A, B, C and D) The proceeds wete loaned by
MHHLEEFA to MMC to finance the construction of 2 new replacement hospital facithity The proceeds
were also used to refinance the MHHLEFA Pooled Loan Revenue Bond.

On Aprl 1, 2010, $30000 of the Revenue Bonds Serres 2007 B and C was converted to Bank
Qualified Revenue Bonds held by a commercial bank The 2007 B and C (converred) Bonds
refinanced $18.080 of the $54,000 2007 Senes B and $11,920 of the $50,000 2007 Series C. Prncipal
repayment on the convetted bonds seues began July |, 2012 and 15 paid annually through the
tetmmation date The termmanon date s July 102024 The converted bonds will be subject to
mandatory purchase by MMC on April 1, 2020 at thewr par value, unless the bank and MMC agree 1o
an extension. Interest accrucs at a fixed rate of 3 87%  The monthly intetest pavments are made
directly to the bank During 2011, the remamming $70,00¢ of the Series 2007 B and C Revenue Bonds
were refunded with proceeds from rwo separate Revenue Bond 1ssues; MMC Issue, Serics 2011 and
MM Issue Seres 2011 5.

Principal repayment of the MMC 1ssue Sertes 2007 Bonds began July 1, 2008 and 1s scheduled 1o be
pald annuaﬂ‘}.’ [hj_‘rmgh ;ui\ [, 2042 O the Serres 2007 A Bonds ($155“00 Revenue Bonds), interest
accrues at a fixed rate ranaing from 4.0 to 5 5070 The Series 2007 A Bonds are net of an originu
sue discount of $875, which 1s beng amortzed over the life of the bonds using the straight hine
method. The Series 2007A Bonds require a debt service reserve fund. The balance of the debr
service reserve fund at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $12,579 and $12,520, respectively (sec Nose I3)
Interest 1s payable sem-annually on January Ist and July Ist Prior to redemption the 830,000 Sciies
2007 D Bonds accrued wntetest ar a variable rate based on the prevaling interest rate m effect as
determned by the Runarketing Agent on each Caleulauon Date



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
{(Dollars in thousands)

Note J - Long-Term Dcbt — Continued
Morcy Medzeal Center Loae, Serves 2007 (1, Bo Coand D) Bonds and Serves 2007 B, C (Canverted) - Conliinned

Durmg 20173 the Senies 20070 Bonds were refunded with proceeds from the 2013 Bond 1ssue. The
varable rate of interest was set to be the lower of the Maxunum Rate as defined by the Indenture
and the minmmum rate that would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell all of the bonds. The Serics
2007 D Bonds wate wsued net of an origmal 1ssue discount of §225, which was being amortized
over the hfc of the bonds using the straight hne method. Payment on the Scriecs 2007 D Bonds was
secuted by a $50,000 wrevocable letter of credit from Wells IYargo Bank  An annual letter of credit
fee equal to (L3870 was payable quarterly by MMC. The letter of credit was termmated when the
Series 20070 Bonds were refunded

1o lower the cost of capital of the hosputal replacement project, MMC entered mto two mterest rate
swap agreements Tn JAugust 2007, a fixed spread basis swap was entercd 1into with a nooonal
amount of $210,000. Pursuant to the swap agreement, MAC pays the counter party a fixed mterest
rate cqual o the USD-SIFMA Mumcipal Swap Index and receives intetest at a variable rate equal o
the sum of 679 of the USD-T.IBOR-BBA and 1) 54°4. The mterest rate swap agreement tcrminates
on Augusi 20, 2037 The interest rate swap does not qualify for hedge accounting under generally
accepted accounting principles, At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the interest rate sxwap
was ($6,765) and ($6.779). respecuvely, and 15 included m other long-term labihties m the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, an
unrealized gain (lus~) on interest rate swap totaling $14 and ($1,271), respectively, 15 reflected m the
accompanying consolidated srarements of operauons.

During October 2007, MNMC cntered mto a fixed payer swap with a notional amount ot $65.000.
Pursuant to the swap agreement, MMC pays the counter party a fised rate of 4 093% and recetves a
vartable 1ate cqual 1o the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index The interest rate swap agrecment
termunates on julv 1, 2042 At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the interest rate swap was
($13,462) and (§12.292), respectvely, and 15 imcluded m other long-term  liabiliies 1n the
accompanying consolidated balince sheers. An unrealized gan (loss) on mnterest rate swap foraling
($1,170y and $ 14,329 15 veflected 1 the accompanying consolidated statements of opetations for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 1he mterest rate ~wap does not qualify for

hedge accounung under gencrally accepted accounting principles.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
{Dollars in thousands)

Note J - Long-Term Debt — Continued
Mercy Medreal Center Iisae, Serves 2013 Bands

In January, 2013, MHIIEFA authonzed the 1ssuance, sale and delivery of 1ts $50,210 Revenue
Bonds, Merey Medical Centet, Sertes 2013, ‘The proceeds wete loaned by MHHEFA to MMC 10
refund the $50,000 Series 20070 Bonds. The bonds were issued as noa-bank quabfied revenue
bonds and directly purchased by a commercial bank  The direct bank purchase termunates on
January 16, 2020 at which tine the bonds will be subject to a mandatory purchase at thewr par value
by Aerey Medical Center unless the bank and Mercy Medical Center agree to an extension.

The hoands bear mterest at a varable rate equal to 30 day LIBOR ames 70%, plus | 10%a. Interest s
1 ) P

paid monthly  Prncipal repayment of the Series 2013 Bonds begins July 1, 2014 and 15 scheduled to

be patd annually through July 1, 2042

AMerey Medral Center Lisue, Sermes 2012 Bondy

In Apnl 2012, MHTIFFA authorized the 1ssuance, sale and delivery of 1ts $49,995 Revenue Bonds,
Merey Medical Center Tssue, Series 2012 The proceeds were loaned by MIITTEFA to MMC to
refund $49,480 agaregare princgpal amount of the Mercy Medical Center Issue, Series 2001 Bonds.
The bonds nclude an original 1ssue premmum of $1,742, which 1 being amoruzed over the hfe of the
bonds using the straight ine method The bands require a debr service resarve fund The balance of
the debt service reserve tund at June 30, 2004 and 2013 was $5.488 and $5,467, respectively (scc
Nete T3).

Prmcipal repayment of the MAC Issue, Series 2012 begins July 1, 2023 and 15 scheduled to be paid
annually through July 1, 2031 Interest accrues at a rate varying from 4 0% 1o 5 0%« The nrerest 1s
paid senu annually on January 1 and July 17

On Decembaer 1, 2004, the Medical Center entered 1nto a fixed Spreﬂd basis swap agreement 1n order
ter reduce the cost of capital with 1espect to the Series 2001 Bonds by removing the tax sk to bond
holdets and transternng the sk to the Medical Center. The fixed spread basis swap matures on
December 1, 2024 and the exchanges of cash tlows with the counter party began Mach 1, 2005
The nogonal amount of the swap s $30,000. Pursuant ta the swap agreement, the Medical Center
pavs the countur party a variable rate equal to the USD-SIFMA Municipal Swap Index and 1ccaves
mtetest al a vauable rate equal to the sum of 67%0 of USD-LIBOR-BB \ and 0.60°  The mrciest
rate swap does not qualify tor hedpe accountng under generally accepted accounting principles

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fawr value of the interest rate swap was $839 and $781, respecuvely
and 15 meluded 10 other long-term labilites 1n the accompanying consolidarcd balance sheets  An
untcalized gain (loss) on mterest 1ate swap totahng $58 and ($214) 15 reflected 1n the accompanying
conscldated ~tatemenrs of opcrauons for the fiscal years ended Junc 30, 2014 and 2013,

respectively
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Note | - Long-Term Debt — Continued

Merey Meckcad €ontor Lssie. Serves 200 T Bondds

In February 2011, MITHELA authonzed the ssuance, sale and delivery of s $40.770 Revenue
Bonds, Mercy Medical Center Tssuc, Series 2011, The ptoceeds were loaned by MITIFEFA to MMC
to refund $35,110 aggregate principal amount of the MMC Issue, Series 2007 B and C Bonds. The
bonds were 1ssued net of an otiginal 1ssue discount of $881, which 1s being armoruzed over the hife of
the bonds using the straght fine method. The bonds require a debt service reserve fund. The
balance of the debt savice reserve fund at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,029 and $3.930,
respectively (see Note 17)

Pimcipal repasment of the MMC Tssue, Sewes 2011 Bonds began july 1, 2012 and 15 scheduled 10 be
[ ! Zan jul; -

pasd annually through July 1, 2031, Interest accrucs at a rare varving from 3.0% to 6.25%¢ ‘The
mnterest 1s pavable senu-annually on January M and July 1%

Merey Medeal Ceater Lsswe Sereer 201718 Bounds

In fune 2011, MHHLI'A authorized the ssuance, sale and delivery of s $34.890 Revenue Bonds,
Merey Medieal Center Tssue, Sertes 2011B 'The proceeds were loaned by MHHEDA o MMC 10
tetund $34,890 ageregate principal amount of the MMC Issue, Series 2007 B and ¢ Bonds ‘The
bonds were ssucd as non-bank qualbfied revenue bonds and directly purchased by a commeraial
bank. The direct bank purchase terminates on June 9, 2021 at which ume the bonds will be subject
in a mandatory purchase at therr par value by MMC unless the bank and MM aprce to an

ealension

The bonds bear mterest at a variable rate equal to 30 day LIBOR plas 1 5% timies 69% o, plus 445
Interest 1s pad monthly  Prncipal repayment of the Series 20118 Bonds begins July 1, 2032 apd 15
scheduled to be pad annually through July 1, 2037

Alercy \ledeal Conter rane, Serves 2006 Boneds

In August 2006, MHHILDA authoured the 1ssuance, sale and delivery of $35.000 of herey Medical
Center Scuies 2006 Revenue Bonds, The procecds wete loaned by MHHEEA to MNMC m order to
finance the construction of a new parking garage as well as the finanang of certain rouune capital
eapenditures

Puncipal repavment of these bonds began on July 1, 2009 and 1s paid annually through July 1. 2036

~

Intetest s pud scmiannually on January 1 and July 17 Intcrest acorues ata fixed rate of 5 69%a
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Note ] - Long-Term Debt — Continued
Alerey Medweal Conter Lssue, Seviee 2006 Bondy - Continited

Simultancously with the ssuance of the bonds, MMC entered into an mtcrest tate swap agreement
with a counter party with a nouonal amount of $35.000 to convert the fixed rate stiucture to a
variable rate Under this agreement, MMC will recerve a fixed miterest rate ot 5.14°%« and pay to the
counter party the USD-STFMA Municipal Swap Index. The interest rate swap agreement terminates
on August 3, 2016 The mterest rate swap does not qualify for hedge accounnng under generally
accepted accounung punciples. The value of this contract 1s based on two components (1) the
accrued but unpaid periodic cash tlows and (1) the termination value as defined n the agreement. By
defininon, the termunation value 1s equal to the bond amount multiplicd by the difference between
fughest price i the matketplace and the bonds base piice (100%0). The bonds are currently callable
at par (100°0) and the call price would be the highest price i the marketplace on the valuation date
This 15 due to the fact that MHS would be economucally inciined to call the bonds ar par versus
paying any tetmmation payment on the swap and the boads aie cattied on MITS” books at pat With
MHS prepated to call the bonds at par, the market price should mnmediately converge on the vall
price Addwonally, MLIS has the right to optionally terminate the conuact The counter party doces
not have the rght 1o optionally terminate the agreement. The counter party can only tenmmate the
agicemont prior to its stated maturity if an event of default or an addihional tevmination (vent exists
Thercfore, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the swap was sero.

In anvcpauon of the transaction, MMC entered into a forward mrerest rate swap agreement on June
28, 2006 with 1 notonal amount of $35,000 in order to convert the varable swap rate to a tiaed rate
Pursuant to the swap agreement, MMC pays the counter party a fixed mterest tate of 3970% and
recetves a varlable 1ate equal to 67% of the USD-LIBOR-BBA The mterest 1ate swap agreoment
termunates on July 1, 2036, The interest rate swap does not quabty for hedge accounting under
generally accepted accounting principles. At June 30, 2074 and 2013, the far value of the interest
rate swap was ($7,332) and ($7,238), respectively and 15 included 1 other Jong-term liahilities 1n the
accompanying consohdared balance sheets. An unrealized gain (loss) on mtetest rate swap totaling
(394 and $3,381 15 reflected  the accompanying statements of operations for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

Mercy Medna/ Center Lune, Series 2008 (Converted)

1o juby 2008, NMHHI FA authonzed the ssuance, sale and delivery of its $35,325 Revenue Bonds,
Merey dedreal Center Issue, Senes 2008, the proceeds of which were loaned by MHHIWA to MMC
1w order to retund the MMC Sertes 2003 Bonds On December 16, 2009, $30,000 of the Sceries 2008
Bonds was converted to Bank Qualified Revenue Bonds wuh a fised interest rate penod of
approximatels twehve vears. The bank at its diseretion has the night to call the converted boods at the
seventh and wnth year anmiversary. Prinaipal sepayment of the converted bonds began July 1, 2011
and s pad annually through July 1, 20220 Intercst accrucs at a fined rate of 399327,
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Note J - Long-Term Debt — Continued
Mercy Medual Conter Jysne, Serwes 2008 (Conrerted) - Continned

‘The monthly mterest payments on the Scries 2008 Bonds wete made directly to the bank. Puncipal
repayment of the Sertes 2008 Bonds began on July 1. 2009, and the portion of those bonds that were
not converted to Bank Qualified Bonds were fully paid on July 1, 2011,

Meroy Medecal Center Lssues, Serves 1996

In May 1996, MITITEFA authorized the sssuance, sale and debivery of nts $30.000 Revenue Bonds,
Merey Medical Center Jssue, Series 1996, the proceeds of which were loaned by MHHLEA to MMO
in order to finance and refinance the costs of the 1996 project The 1996 project constsred of rthe
construchon, acquistiion, renovation, and equipping of ceitan hospital facilities including certain
mpatient upgrades, ambulatory care faclities, operaung rooms, bulding mfiastructure, and
adminstrative and support service facilities.

I'he Series 1996 Bonds were 1ssucd net of onginal wssue discounts of $302, which are bemng
amortzed over the life of the bonds using the sttaight iine method Interest 1s payable semi-annually
on January st and July 1st. Prcipal repayment of these bonds began on fuly |, 2004 and 1» paid
annually through July i, 2022

In 2006, MNC entered into an agreement with a thurd party to run 2 tender process tor the enure
balance of the callable Scries 1996 Bonds that totaled $19,700. MMC gave investors the choice of
aceepting a 17w incremental premium over the cxisting call premium 1 exchange for tendenng ther
bonds  Any wnvestor not tendering therr bonds had thewr bonds redcemed  at the applicable
redemption price Through the exccution of a traditional bond agrecment, the third paity agreed 10
purchase the bonds from those mnvestors who ndered then bonds.,

1o convert the underlying fixed rate structute to a varable rate, sinmleancously with the purchase of
the bands, MMC entered mto two interest rate swap agreements with a counter party with notonal
amounts of $13.840 and $4,355 The two nterest rate swap agreements with the counterpartly werce
amended on July 25,0 2011 Pursuant to the amended swap agieements, the counter party pays 10
MM 2 fixed mierest rate of 5.75% and 5 625%0 and 1eceives a vagable rate cqual to the TISD-
SITALA Municipal Swap Index and 1.55% The mterest rate swap agreaments were scheduled ta
termunate on July 25, 2014 The interest rate swaps did not quality for hedge accounting under
gencrally accepied accounung principles The value of this contract was hased on two components
) the accrued but unpaid periodic cash flows and (1) the tetmmaton value as defined m the
agreement By dchimion, the termumaton value was equal 1o the bond amount multiphed by the
hfference between lughest price m the marketplace and the bonds base price (100%4)
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Note J - Long-Term Debt — Continued
Merey Medecal Center Lssner, Server 1996 - Continued

Dusing October 2013 MMC refunded the Scries 1996 bonds with proceeds from the Series 20138
bonds {(sev neat page). In conjunction with the refunding of the Seues 1996 bonds, two mterest rate
swap agreements that effectvely converted the fined rate structure to a varlable strucrure, with the
notienal amounts of $§13,84) and §4,355 were termunated  These interest rate swap agrecments were
sel 1o lermate on July 25, 2014 and were no longer needed with the now vanable rate stiucture of
the Series 2(M 318 bonds.

‘The bonds were callable at par (1000} and the call price would be the highest puce m the
marketplace on the valuation date, This s duce to the fact that MHS would be cconomically meclined
10 call the bonds at par versus paying any termination payvment on the swap and the bonds are
catrted on MHS books at par With MHS prepated to czll the bonds at par, the market price should
immediately converge on the call price Additionally, MTIS has the nght to optonally terminate the
contract The counter party docs not have the nght to opuonally ternunate the agreement The
counter party can only terminate the agreement prior to its stated matarty 1f an event of default or
an additional termination event exists ‘Therefore, as of June 30, 2013, the fanr value of the swap was
ZCTO,

On June 28, 2006, to convert the structure back to a fixed rate, MAMC entered nto a forward rate
swap agreement with a notlonal amount of $18,741 Pursuant to the swap agreement, MM pays the
counter party a fixed interest rate of 4031%e and recerves a varable rate of 67Y0 of the USD-
I.IBOR-BBA. The mterest ratc swap agreement teimiunates on July 1, 2026 The intcrest tate swap
does not qualify for hedge accounting under generally accepted accounting principles. At June 30,
20014 and 2013, the fair value of the interest tate swap was (§3,084) and ($3,315) respecuvely and 15
included 1n other long-term habilities m the accompanying conschidated balance sheets An
unreahzed gan on mierest rate swap totaling $231 and $1,272 15 retlecied m the accompanymg
consolidated statements of operavons for the fiseal vears ended June 30, 2044 and 2(1 3,

respectively
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Note J - Long-Term Debt - Continued
Mercy Medival Center Insie, Serves 201 3B Bondy

In October, 2013, MHHEFA authorized the issuance, sale and delivery of s $18,065 Revenue
Bonds, Mercy Medical Center, Series 20138, The proceeds were loaned by MHHFI'A to MMC to
tetund the $18.195 Series 1996 bonds. The bonds were 1ssued as a non-bank qualified revenue
bonds and directly purchased by a commercial bank  The duwect bank purchase termunates on
October 22, 2023, at which time the bonds will be subject to a mandatory purchasc at then par value
by NMC unless the bank and MMC agrec to an extension. The bonds bear infcrest at a varmable rate
equal to 1 35% plus 78% of onc-month LIBOR  Interest and principal 1s paid monthly  Principal
repayment of Series 201313 bonds began on December 1, 2013 and the final payment will be on July
1, 2026

Sttt Merde Laae, Sevies 1997 Bonds

The Scries 1997 Bonds were 1ssued to finance the acquisiion by SMI of Stella Marts Operating
Corporation and CSC; to advance refund certain nursing home revenuc bonds previously 1wsued by
MIITIEF.A, Stella Marts Tssue, Sertes 1991, and to tefinance certam outstanding indebtedness of dhe
acquired corporations.

Prncpal repayment of these bonds began on July 1, 2001 and 1s paid annually (hrough July 1, 2021,
All bonds are subject to redemption prior to matunty beginnig Match 1, 2001, Inierest 1s accrued
al a vartable rate based on the prevaling mterest rate n cffect as deternuned by the Remarketing
Agent on each Caleulation Date, Interest on the bonds is payable monthly

Under the pravisions of the bond agreciment, SMI has granted to MIHLILA @ security interest in all
of 1s 1eal property and the assignment of its leases  Tn addition, payments on the honds are secured
by an nrevocable letter of credit provided by M& I Bank An annual letier of credut fee, equal to
1 294 of the tetter of credit amount, 15 payable quarterly by SMT The letter of credit expires July

2020
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Note ] - Long-Term Debt - Continued
Stella Maris Lsswe, Seriey 1997 Bosnds - Comtinged

Under the terms of the bond indenture, SMI 1y required to mamram certam deposits with a trustee,
The bond indenture agreement also requires SMI to saosty certain measurces of financial
petformance as long as the bonds arc outstanding,  As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, SMI was 1n
compliance with the financial covenant requirements of the bond mdenture.

HUTY Mo toage oan

The mortgage loan from the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) was
used by CSC to construct St. Flizabeth Hall. This ongmnal note was refinanced durng the yeat
cnded June 30, 2013 The onginal terms of the note reflected an interest rate of 6.875%0 pet
annum with monthly mstallments of $43, mcluding mrtetest, with the tinal payment due November
1. 2020

From July 1997 through December 2005, CSC recerved authotzation from TTUD to suspend 1ts
monthly principal and interest payments of $43  The unpaid interest during this deferral perod was
accrued On Deeember 21, 2012 the ongnal ocutstanding debr was refinanced with a new
outstanding face amount of §5,202 and the unpmid mnterest accrued dutmg the deferral period was
forgiven, resulting 1 a gain on exanguishment of debt of $2,049 “The cureent note reflects an
mterest rate of 2 64%% per annum with monthly mstallments of $20, mcluding 1nterest, with the final
payment due January 1, 2046 The current notc requires motlgage nsurance of 0455 of the
average annual outstanding principal balance deteimined annually for the duration of the note.
Concurrent with these monthly mortgage payments, St. Ehizabeth Hall 1s requared to make monthly
payments of $23 derived from the savings of the new note to a Debt Service Savings Reserve lund
through May 2029 {or purposes stipulated by a Debt Service Savings Agreement  Also concurrent
with these monthly payments, St. Blizabeth Hall 15 required to make monthly payments of R 1o a
reserve tund for the replacement of property and equipment  These payments are required until the
mortgage matures and are ncluded 1n Board designated and danar resticted mvestments. Al
disbursements from this tund are conungent epon HUD's prion approval

The babiliy of CSC under the mortgage notc s tmited o the underlying value of the real estare
callareral plus other amounts deposited wath the lender.
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Note ] - Long-Term Debt - Continued
Lane-of-Credit

‘The Medical Center has a $20,000 operating ine of eredit and an addinonal $1,000 operaung line of
credit (for teascs) with M&T Bank, and a $15,00( line of credit for cquipment and construction with
PNC Bank wluch tesmmnated January 2013 and was replaced by a $15.000 Iine of credit agreement
with Wells Iargo Bank during December 20113 .\t June 30, 2014, the $20,000, $15,000 and $1,000
operating lines of credit had $8,000, $0 and $0 outstanding, respectively LAt June 30, 2013, the
$20,000 and $1,000 operating hnes of credut had $8.000 and §0 cutsianding, respectvely, As of June
30, 2014 and 2013, the inrerest rate on the outstanding $8,000 hne of credir draw was 2 34%0 and was
based on two hundred and fifieen basts pownts above the greater of one-month LIBOR, with an
mterest pertod duration of one day The $15,000 hne of credit bears inrcrest at U 85%0 above the daily
one month LIBOR on the outstanding principal balance  The $20,000 operating line of credut
agreement is scheduled to remain m etfect unul all obliganons are paid in fuli or termunated by the

Bank.
Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by MITS 1 cstunating the tair wvalue of s
financial mstruments:

Casy and cashy equivalents, patient avconnts receirable, other antnuty 1eceivable, accommty payable and
accrsted expenses, due to third party payers and wnsiincteon refutnager The carrying amounts repotted
in the consolidated balance sheets approxmate fan valuc.

Shorti-term mvestnients, funds held by frastee or anthonty and board devignated and donar restruted
srestments: Fair values, which are the amounts reported 1 the consolidated balance shects,
ate based on quoted market prices, 1f available, or estumated using quoted matket prices tor
simitlar securities

Iong-term debt: Fair values of revenue bonds and other debt are hased on current traded
values. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the farr value of long-term debr was approxumately

$450.635 and $450,290, respecuyely
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Note K - Fair Value of Financial Inscruments - Continued

Current accounting standards define fawr value as the piice that would be tecetved to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a Jability m an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, and establish a thiee-level hietarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency
of inputs to the valuaton of an asset or liability as of the measwrement date. ‘The three levels of
inputs that may be used to measure fair value are:

Level | Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities include debt and equity sccurities that are naded in an active exchange market, as
well as U.S "I'reasury securities

Level 2. Observable input ather than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not acuve; or other inpurs that are ohscrvable
or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantally the full term of the assets
o1 liabilities. Level 2 assets and habihines mclude debt securnities with quoted market prices
that are traded less frequently than eschange-naded mstruments This category generally
includes certain ULS povernment and agency mottgagc-backed debt sccurities, corporate-
debt securities, and alternative investments

Level 3 Unobservable iputs that are supported by Inile o1 no market acuvity and rhat are
sipnficant to the fair value of the assets or Lhabilitics Level 3 assets and habihies mclude
financial nstruments whose value 1» determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or suular technmiques, as well as msiruments tor which the determination of
farr value requires significant management judgment or esumanon ‘Lhis category generally
includes certain private debt and equity instruments and alternative vestments.

The followng discussion describes the valuagon methodologies used for financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value The techniques utlized 1n esumating the fair values are affected by
the assumptions used, mcludng discount rares and estumates of the amount and fiming of future
cash flows Care should be exercised m duving conclusions about the business, value, o1 financial
position of MIIS based on the fair value mformanon of financial assets and habiities presented
helow,
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Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

Fair value estunates are made at a specific pont m time, based on avallable marker nformation and
judgments about the financial asset or liabilin, including esumates of the nming, amount of expected
future cash flows, and the credit standing of the 1ssuer In some cases, the fawr value estumates cannot
be substantiated by compatison o independent markets. Tn addition, the disclosed fan value may
not be realized in the mimmediate settlement of the financial asset or lhabihity Furthermore, the
disclosed fair values do not reflect any premuum or discount that could result from offering for sale
at one ume an cantire holding of a particular financial asset or hability Potenual taxes and other
expenses that would be wcurred 1 an actual sale or sctdement are not reflected mn the amounts
disclozed.

MHS uses technuques consistent with the market approach for measuring fair value of 1s Level 2
and Tevel 3 assets and Labilies, The matket approach s a valuanion technique that uses prices and
other relevant information generated by market transacnions mvolving idenucal or comparable assets
or habilities. Fair values of cquuty sccunties and fixed matority securities have been determined by
MHS from observable market quotations, when available Private placement sccurities and other
cquity securities where a public quotation 1s not available are valued by using broker quotes Cash
equivalents comprise short-term fixed matunity securities and caurying amounts approximate fais
valucs, which have been determuned from public quotanons, when available, Money markets and
certificates of deposit compnse short-term fined matunty sccunties The carrying amounts
approxtmate fair values, which have becn deternuned f1om public quotanons, when available.

MHS hLolds alternative mnvestments that ate not traded on natonal exchanges or over-the-counter
markets MH3 15 provided informanion on a net asset vale per share for these mvestmients that has
been calculated by the funds of funds” managers (who are mvestment advisors registered wath the
Sccuritties and Fxchange Commisston) based on information provided by the managers of
underlymg funds  ‘These tavestments are accounted for under the equity method which
approstmates fau vatue,

Fair value of the interest rate swaps represent, or are derived from, md-market values. Mid-market
prices and mputs may not be observable, and instead valuauons may be derwved [tom proprictary or
other pricing models bascd on certanr assumptions regarding past, present and fuiere market
condizons Somc nputs may be theoreuen), not empuical, and require subjective assumptions and
judgments Valuations may be based on assumptions 13 (o the volatlity of the underlymg sccutity,
basket or mdex, mlerest rates, exchange rates, dividend srelds, conelations botween these or other
factons, the mpact of these factors upon the v alue of the sccunty (including any embedded options), as
well as 1ssuer funding rates and credit spreads (actual or approximated; o1 addiwonal relevant factors
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Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

The foliowing table presents MHS fan value bieraichy for finzncial wstruments measured al fair

alue on a recutring basts as of June 30, 2014

Total Fawr

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Board designared and donor
restricted mvestments:
Cashoand cash cquivalonts
ash b 163 ¢] by 0 % 164
Neoney market funds 0 6,191 ( 6,191
Commoacl papar 8] 125
th 125
FEqug scounoes
Mutual fund-
Intcinaoonal large capy cole DGEA 4] 4 0.65%
lemerging, markars 15,137 [¢] O 15,137
Domaesac inutual Tand g.116 0 ( Q116G
Commean stocks
I Eealsheare -4,505 0 ( 4.505
Ulnihnies 282
0 (] 282
1'mancials 5,634 3] O 5.634
Clonsumne staples 2185 O N 2,185
Consunmicr disercosnany 3673 9] ¥ 3873
DNlarerals 1,204 v 8] 1,204
ICncagny L 875 0 0 1835
Informanon wehnologzy 5,390 8] ] 8,390
Poed i 5965 0 0 5,965
UR ML uE 21.338 f B 2123
o ?%{:‘{EN‘{EE&% \r-«:/"l,\dn;]l VHAI ‘:lq‘n 3S1t 1 CCULIpT 4,582 9] &} 4.5582
s rreasary Bosuwds 0 1,219 0O 1,219
CGovernnment ageney onds ] 1% O 15
CGovanunent ageney maortpage backed sccursoes (] a4z
0] 642
Gionvvernment agency pools 0 4,981 [§] 4081
Corporate bonds
S ad sero coupon 0 '7' ¢l 17
Assct wcked scouates 0 27 0 2107
Bankmg 0 H20
0 826
I mancial §] 2,304 (8] 2,309
Lnddusriinl 0 7IAR 0 TAAS
livetmatenal (other glc.lm] corrp bonds) 0 1,851 ¥} 1.881
Avssct hcked scouites 1,238 12348
Collernized morrgage boacked 0 a5 [§] 25
'*I‘bf:‘li'l 'Wd!‘l‘ﬁi%é‘éi@rﬁl‘il—“h and dono: 0 R 4 7,580
'{‘&-‘é\‘hl;‘feﬂ INVeSIINnents ‘}Sfﬁr’?t 301 ‘5!‘4 (r,‘),—lij 1 1} ,53(1;
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Note K - Fair Valuc of Financial Instruments - Continued

‘Fotal Fair

Assels Levell Level 2 Eovel 3 Value
Restnicted funds
Cash b 2,381 F 0 % 0 b 2,384
NMoncy muher lund 9] 1761 (8] 1,761
Cernficate ol doposic O 1,567 9] 1 567
1 quin
Niaraal find
Texchange padad 0,775 ¢} 0 6,775
Pomeynng markers 5,204 Al ) 5.2
Naorigaee scouraes fund D41 Q a PRI 3
Lgun aneome fund 1,989 9] 0 1,989
lurepean cauy Fund 3G+ 0 0 361
Joaaced miatoany
U & tretsuny notws 24777 [§] 8] D477
LS gpovaunmiont and wgence s
NMorterige backed scounoes 3] 428 ¥} 420
Corporate and toragn onds
I maanciil {1 ALl40 §] 3,110
ladusteeal 1} 1,768 [¢] 1,768
Creher {3 378 () 378
Aaset Lacked 3] §] [N 1)
Nuucapal bonds V] 4 5062 t 1,502
Toreal restricted funds 50,534 13,0604 O 64,138
Cash and cash cquivalents
Ca-h 62,070 3] O G207
Noney marker fond ) 17 2415 th
Coertificte ol dopro-at 5.737
I'ned mcome mutuad Dands 285 0 3]
Ioachange moaded fund 74 a 0
Lyoamesue mutaal eqgunty funds 1133 0 0
Toztal cash and cash cquivalents 62,533 23030 3]
Short tern Investmernts
NToney mulor fund 3] 369 0 360
Cerulicaw of daposit 1) 1,264 1) 1.2604
1T'otal short term Immvestments (9] 134 0 1.6
Toral cash, cash equivalents and
short tcim mvestmonts 62,533 230650 1) =T, 189
Long term mvesuncnts
_ash
1 o cuttency ] 1400 9] 1410
Ty od mmatunn
TS ticsuary nowes 3,267 8] 8] 3267
'S gosorimicar md agencws
Crovernmont agrency miortgape bochaed secumtic s (8] 1415 Q) 4405
Clovaiment agoney poals 9] (419 1) [£19]
Corporae Bonds
i mancud 0 P81 8l 1,511
Idustzal (8] 2835 ] 2,035
latcinnonal tothar globat conpr romdsy ) [ 0 G35
Proznd Funed 556 v QO 356
NMumcipal bond- [} LR 9] 1,143
Total long teom investmeonts 3,025 T 158 v [RERT Y|
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Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

TFotal Fair

Assels Level i Level 2 I.evel 3 Value
Funds held by tiustee (curtent)
Aoncy m et B L3 b 113,030 F (R 14,0030
Ii~ed mataniry
(O CLONTICNT BeNCY Mo tes 1} 1.595 0 1,595
Total funds held by trustee (cuarrent) 0 11634 4] 11,634
Funds held by trustec (non-cuirent)
C.a~h 1.035 4] y] 1,035
Noney martket [ 146 0 100
I ned mananny
LTS mavaernment and agoncies ) 21,005 3] 219005
¢ eruficare of deposn O t 0 3]
Funds held by trustece (non-cuirent) 1.035% 2240195 3} 2313
Tatal funds held by 1trusice 1,035 33,729 1) 34,7643
‘Total assets Farr value ¥ 213,697 3 118,345 b O 971 & 3303
Laabilines
Interest rare swap s () % 29 804 29 Hud
Total habhlities ar fanr value ¥ 9] ) 0 5 29,804 % 20 803
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Notc K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table presents MHS' fair value hierarchy for financial istruments measured at faw

value on o recurring basis as of june 30, 2013,
Tortal Fasr
Asgcis Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value

Board designated and donor
restricted investments

oash and casb equivalents

Cash % 194 E 0 ¥ ) » 191
Dloncy marker funds [ 27173 1) 27173
Clommearaal paper (4] 300

{) Z(HY

1. g, TUT1IY v L ST 13l

Cuaafifcae ol deposn ¢} 245
0 245
lguiy securimes
Mlhuatea] Dands
Intanavonal buge cap cose 8,050 ) 0 w4150
Intermanaonal cmce g mualkets 92016 4] 4] DG
Lomesue muad fund Gy mcome TR t} 0 TET4
Clommeonn stochs
Tcaltheawe 3,477 0 0 3477
Ulrihnes 172
th 0 172
Tanancsals 4,594 ] 4] 1,551
Cesmunict ~taples 1,7v4 [ 4] T
Consumar disorcionan 3503 [§] ) 3,703
Mawennls 1G71 [}] [} 1,071
Taned MR 1,655 ) % 1655
U P RS raa H e e he o FFEeN :;Gg% 1] t ?;88‘%
Urfyi@eghiiaae e and agencies 5,217 0 0 5217
R fdmanaiy g ond~ aH 814 0 56
Iroroign stocks/ Aamcican dopoat 1ecept 2793 0O “ ,"_’,b,s‘])(":}
Ciovernmont aoeney bonds 0 3,028 [§] 3,028
Glovarnment ave gy o irage backod securnies 0 1.611 (] 16l
Clavernment ageno [roeols « 5008 [§] 5098
¢ ormpotate bonds
Sy md scto coupon ] 19 ) 19
Boanbays 7] 351
[§] 351
I 1ancyal () 2034 ) 2131
| ERTS TN RRE | ) 4,97y [§] oTa
It raancnad vorthor plobal conp Bond sy 3] 1,25 r 1,259
Ao L haet el securines 4] 1,172 8] 1172
Collucrscd morntragze Ladkhad seeurues a 155
Total board desagunated and donor n =5
testncted investments n4.463 39,01} T3 130,500
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

To1al Fan

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Value
Restnicted funds
Cash T 0,015 * ) (M- 615
Coralifeate of dopreosic 4] 5,307 [§] s 3,397
Ity
Nunaal fund
I .nchange vaded 7,131 1) 4] 7131
I'meremg markers 4,847 O a 4847
12ommiesoe mutual Mund 1,735 0 9] 1,735
I'ved maturty
LT3 mrcanuny notes 15,391 y (4 15,341
LPs govanmmon and agoncics
NMorgrage backed secunines 0 10,212 t Jo242
Corporare and Norogn bonds
Imancial 1) 1,958 th 1,058
Indusinal 0 1,944 3] 1,949
ihea bl S84 8 589
Blumcgpyal boads 0 5,804 [ 58921
Tortal restucted funds 36,019 26,029 [} 62048
Cash and cash equiy alents
C.a~h 630101 Al 0 63011
Dloney markar uand 0 11075 (3 14,075
Coeztificane of depeosar 0 1,342 0 1,312
Franed mowont -muaroal fands 221 Q ¥ 201
Irgquuies excluioe taded 77 0 N s
I qquittic s-domcsize muatual couuiny funds O O 1 N
Total cash and cash equuvalents 013,370 15,417 0 8,705
Short icrm investments
Noncy sk 0 1,014 0 10014
Dloney markod fand 0 83 0 BN
Coorofic e o ddepreoasn 4l 1,201 0 1,261
Total short ternm mvestiments 0 2,058 () 26058
Total cash, cash cquuvalents and
short term investmaents 03376 18,075 0 #1451
Lony torm invostimenes
I oreign curreiney ¥ 231 ) A6l
I~y ed mamne
112 preasucy it~ 5542 3] 3] 5,542
Lls govenmment and agenoes
L'~ 11casuy bonds 4] 0 0 (]
Cronarnmue s agency bonds (3 H540
) ]850
Clovernment g ney otz bchad secunues [§ OGO
9] 0662
Clovernmuont avcnoy pools [ 1,857 () tra”
Corporae Bonds
I*ranciad } 1,545 9] I 515
Inctustaial 1] 1,108 3] T.T63



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

Total Faix

Assets Lcvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuc
Funds held by trastee (cuntent)
Norney kot i3 0 ¥ 3,067 & 3 + =067
1 aned ooy
CIOVOLIMMICT ARCIY 1L 0 3082 [ 39082
Total tunds held by rrastee (Current) 0 12,049 4 12,044
Funds held by trustee (non-current)
Mones m kot 8} 1,438 4] 1,438
Tacd miatutsy
LIS gosvarsunont and agoncies 0 225531 0 22531
Corulicat o deposn 0 132 1 152
Funds held by trustee (nen-correned 0 24101 0 24101
Towal funds held by rrustee 9] 32,1 54) 1) 20,150
Teotal assets fann value 5 169 4000 % 142,697 % ETEE T 320,131
Lialslhimies
Tirczest tare s aps 5 } b % 28,843 % 2,843
‘Toral liabilites at farwe valuc S (3 0 % 28843 % 28,8543

During fiscal vear 2014 MIIS transferred $3,300 from tevel 2 securittes to level 1 sccurittes m
accotdance with M11S investment comnuttee decision to reallocate the porttolio During fiscal year
20013, MHS nansferred $7,000 from level 1 fixed matunty and moeney market fund sccurtties to level
2 fised maturiy secutities, and tansfeired $5.000 from level 1 securnties moncey mathet fund
securtties to level 3 securites in accordance with MIIS mnvestment committee decision ro reallocate

the portfolio

Included m alteinatve mvestments as of June 34, 2014 arc three classes of hedge funds ot funds
with farr values of $891 (Fund A), $364 (Fund B) and $5,751 (Fund C)

hquidation and redempuons are suspended undl the fund can hquadate its undetlying holding. Tund

{fund A and B are 1n

C 15 redeenable calendar quarterly with 65 days advance notice. Included m alternatnre 1nvesunents
as of june 30, 2013 are three classes of hedge funds of funds with fair values of $1,249 (und Ay,
480 (I'und 1) and $5,304 {Trund O,
suspended untl the tund can hquidare 1ts undeilying holding Fund C 15 redeemable calendar

Fund A and B are in hqudauon and redemptions are

quarterh wath 65 days advance nonce Thete are no unfunded commirments for any of die hedge
fund of funds tor either 2014 or 2013
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)
Note K - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

Lhe tollowing table 1s a tollforward of the consolidated statements of financal positon amounts for
inancial mstruments classified by MHS withm level 3 of the valuation hierarchy detined above.

Interest rate

Investments sWaps

IMan value June 30, 2012 $ 2363 % (H2.340)
Usnealized gmns, net 356

13,497

Puichases 5000 0

Redempuons (685) 0

Jran walue June 30, 2013 7034 (28,843)
Untealieed gamns (losses), net 501

o1y

Puichascs O ¢ 29 ,804!3

D S o . PR =

Note L - Pension and Profit Sharing Plans

MIEIS has a gualified 401{k) pian covering substantially all cmploycees of the Medical Center and SMI
who have completed at least one year of service and are at least twunty-one years of age. MITS
makes an annual contribution on behalf of all ehgible employees based on cither the employec's
cantributions o the 401(k) plan or their annual compensation.  MIIS will march, on a dollar for
dollar basts (hased on age and years of service thresholds) the amount contnibuted by the employ ee.
not 1o exceed 6% of the employee's salary.  MHS' contribuuons to the 401(L) plan for all
pattctpants employed prior to April 1, 1997 for Medical Center employees or July 1, 1997 tor SMI
employces, vest at a rare of 25% ¢ annually and completely vested on Apnl 1, 2001 for Medical Center
emplovees and July 1, 2001 for SMI employees. MITS' contributions for all participants employed
on o atter Apud 1, 1997 for Medical Center employees or ) aly 1, 1997 for SMI employees vest atter
four vears of service, with no vesting prior to four years of service Conutbutons under s plan
rotaled approximately $-H401 and $4,292 tor the years ended June 34, 2014 and 201 3, respectively

‘The Medical Center has 2 nonqualitied deferred compensation plan for certam executives and
physicians  The deferred compensation plan provides for severance and supplemental renrement
benetits us defined m the plan Compensation expense 1clated to the deferred compensation plan
was S1,221 and $954 for the years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,  Lotal deferred
compensation obligations of $6,184 and $5,738 arc included mn other long-term habilines 1 the
accompanylng consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)
Note L - Pension and Profit Sharing Plans — Continued

The fawr values of deferred compensanion plan assets fawr value on a recurnng hasis as of June 30,
2014 by assel category arc as follows (see Noses H and Ky

Total Fair

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value

Equaty
Mutnaal funds

Internanonal large cap core % 74§ 0 % n s 474

TEmerging matkets 45

{1 (} 45

Domestic mumal fund-equity income 4,116 (} 0 4.110
IFMved manuaty

Tond fund £ s 3 =555

‘Phe fan values of deferred compensation plan assers on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2013 by
assct category ate as follows (see Nates TT and K)
Total Fair

Asserts Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Equity
Auteal funds
Internaaonal large cap core % 388 B 0 % 0 % 38R
Emeciging maikets 37
8] {0 37
Domestic mutual fund-equity income 3,358 0 0 3,358

[vxed matunty

Bond fund = S Sraeas =+ =050
Thore were ne significant transters between level 1 and level 2 far value investments for the vears
ended June 3, 2614 and 2013
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Daollars in thousands)

Note M - Post-Retirement Benefit Plan

MEIS has an unfunded contbutory health and medical post-retirement benefit plan avadable o all

ehgible employees whu meet certain age and length of service tequirements. “The plan provides for

health and medical benefits mcluding primary carve physician and spectalist visits, hospitalization and

cimergency care, prescraption drugs, vision care, and Medicare supplemental coverage

The following table sets forth the components of the MHS obhigaton at June 3t

Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obhganon at begiuung of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuanal (gain) loss
Lumployer potton of benetits paid

Benefit obligaton at end of vear

Change in Plan Assets
Lmployer conubuucn
Plan paipcpant’ contribution
Medhcare Part ID 1eunbursement
Benefits paud

Fau wvalue of plan assets at end of year
Fund stars

Accrued post-reticement benefit cost
Tess current pornon, mcluded in accounts payable

and acciued expenses

Total accrued post-retirernent benetit cost, long-rerm potion
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2014 2013

) 5755 % 7,741
08 95

262 240

433 (2.066)

(163 1255)

0,385 5755

163 255

4011 A8l

82 70
(646) (706)

§] 0

(6.385) (5.755)
(6,385) (5,755)

(161 (1803

% 16221 % (5,575




Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note M - Post-Retirement Benefit Plan — Continued

Net pertadic post-retirement benefit cost ncluded the followmg tor the years ended June 30

2014 2013
Service cost - benefits atteibuted to service dwnyr the period ) 98 g 95
Tuterest cast on accumuiated post-renrement benefit obligacon 262 240
Net amottzanon (120) (128)
Net post-teticment benetit cost $ 2% 5 207

The weighted average dicount rate used in determiming the accumulated post-retirement bencfit
abligation (APBO) for the plan was +.25% and - 5"% for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
tespecively  l'or measurement purposes, the health care cost rend rates used m determuning the
APBO for the plan were 7 0% and 7.5% 1 2014 and 2013, respectively  Increasing the health care
cost trend tates by 1% would mcrease the APBO by $1,176 and aggregate service and interest cost
by $84 at june 30, 2014

Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan

MIHS had a pension plan that was termmunated on April 1, 1997 and estabhshed a renement annuity
plan under which cettan participants of the terininated plan were entitled o annuity payments.
Participants 1n the plan mclude (a) the retirees and beneficiaries entided to benefits from the
terminated plan on Apul 1, 1997 and (b) other parncipants with benefirs worth more than $4 that
dected an annuity. All benefits are vested and based on the frozan accrued benetits at Apnl 1 1997

-47-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
{Dollars in thousands)

Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan — Continued
The measutement dates for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 were June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013,

tespectively The foliowing table sets forth the funded status of the renrement anputty plan and
amounts recognized 10 accompanying consolidated financial statements

2014 2013

Change in Benefit Obligation
Beneflt oblgation at begmning of year $ 3.877 % 10,119
Inteicst cost 371 375
Acaral loss (pam) 33 (407
Benefits pad (1.130) (1,210}
Benefit obhgaton at end of yea 8145 8877

Change in Plan Assets

Fan value of plan assets at beginming of year 4,701 5,434
Acruarial return on plan assets J04 377
Benefits pad (1,130} (1,210
Fai: value of plan assets at end of year +.029 4,701
Funded status/acerued bencfit cost $ 115§ (4,176)

The discount rate was +25% and 4 50% for 2014 and 2013, 1espectnely. The expected rate of
return on plan assets was 6.50°% for 2014 and 2013, The accompanying consocldated net pension
cost was $338 1 2014 and $364 1 2013,

MHS capected rate of rcturn 1s evaluated annually and = based on the current interest rate

cnvionment, rate of mnflanon, allocaton of the plan assets among various mvestment options and
uther market conditions.
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

{Dollars in thousands)
Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan - Continued

The weighred-average asset allocations 1n the plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, by asset carcgory

were as follows

June 30,
2014 2013

Asset Category

Tiquuty securities 384, 45%%

Fixed inconie bond fund 3480 29%4

hixed mecome alternatves 118, 139

Cash and cash equuvalents 14" 10%

Equity alternatives 3¢y 3
Total 100° & 100 o

MHS asset allocation guidehnes at Tune 30, 2014 are as foliows,

Ranges Tatget Allocation

Total equity A0-05". 5074
1Domesac equuty 30-65H", 40%
Internatonal equity 0)-15%4 10%

Equity alternatives 0-50% %%

Fixed marturity alternatives - o™, 359,

Cash -20%, 15%¢
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan - Continued

The fair values of plan assets on a recurning basis as of June 30, 2014 by assel category are as

tollovs:

Total Fair

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash 0 i 0 % 1
MMoney market funds 0 578 4] 578
Fquty alternative 0 0 10 110
Frned mataity alternatsve )] ] 438 438
Iixed matuity
Bond fund 0] 1.063 O 1,063
Tnteinational mutual tund 0] 305 0 305
Equity scomites
Muwal funds
[nternatonal mutual funds
Tnrernattonal Iy ge cap coce 352 0 0 352
Fmelging matkets a4
() 0 99
(lobal 204 4] 0 204
Domestc mutual fund Bt} 2 £ 80
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Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan - Continued

The fair values of plan assets on a recurring basts as of fune 30, 2013 by asset category are as

follows:

Total Fair

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash 8] 1 0 % 1
Money market funds 0 477 0 477
leuuty alternative 0 0 15] 151
Fixed matunty alternaove 0 0 603 603
l'txed mararity
Bond fund 0 1.060 0 1,660
Inteinanonal mutual fund 0 298 0 298
Equty securitics
Mumal funds
Intetnanonal mutual funds
Large cap core 322 0 0 322
Iimerging markets 275 0 0 275
Global 92 0 0 92
[Domestic mutual funds L2 0 0 1,042
Common stocks
Healthcare 29 0 0 29
TUtihiues 12 0 0 12
linancials Y5 0 0 95
Consumet staples % 0 0 )
Consumer discretionans 55 0 u 55
Materals 19 4] 0 19
Energy 13 9] 0 13
Informaton technolog 40 g] 0 40
[ndustrais 33 0 0 83
Foregn stocks/ Amercan depost 1ecupt 26
0 U 26

There were no significant transfers between leve 1and level 2 fair value invesiments for the yvears

ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

-51-



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note N - Retirement Annuity Plan - Continued

~

Included 1n alternative mvestments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are hedge funds of funds warh fair
values of $548 and $754. respectively  The funds are redeemable semiannually with no puor
required redemption notce. There are no untunded commitments for any of the hedge fund of

funds for cither 2004 o1 2013

The following table is a rollforward of the far value amounts for financral mstruments classified by

the plan wathin level 3 ot the valuauon hierarchy above

Alternative

Investments
Fin value fune 30,2012 $ 899
Untealized gans, net 44
Redemptons (194)
Faw value june 30, 2013 754
Unrealized gawns, net 51

The {ollowing benefit payments, wluch reflect expected futute service, as approprate, are expected
to he pad.
Benefit Payments

2015 $ 1,086
2016 1,020
2017 953
2018 884
2010 8144
Nent 5 years 3,053

Note O - Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paymenis tor mncerest, net of amounts capualized and swap payments, were $19.629 1n 2014
and §19,513 10 2013 Caperahized interesi related to construcnon activities includes interest payments
to creditors on bonds, net p:l_ymcntb/’lccrzpl‘: fo counterpaities on interest rate SWap arrangements,

and mcome teceved on rustee-held funds.



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Dollars in thousands)

Note P - Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporartly 1esnicted net assets are available tor the following health care services at June 30.

2014 2013

Caputal improvements ¥ 11598 % 14,737
Deparmmental expenses 9,505 T2
Pastoral care 4516 5,008
Rescarch progiams 1,256 1,187
Indigent care 1,139 1,117
Educaton programs 202 187
Oiches 91 51

% 28,307 % 29,729

Permancntly restricted ner asscts consist of the following at June 30

2014 2013
SMT Tlospice Eadowment ¥ 1055 & 1,055
Wemberg Endow ment 1,000 1,600
D1 Goodman Endowment 123 123
] 2178 % 2178

Note Q - Functional Expenses

MHS and s subsidiaties provide general heaih care services to patients within thetr geographic
location  Expenses telated to providing these services are as follows for the years ended une 30:

2014 2013
Health care services $ 456,982 % 455,250
Admimsnatn ¢ and support services 162,199 151,383

% 619181 % 606,633
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Note R - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Lotogation

MIIS has outstanding litigation wvolving claims brought against it in the noimal course of busmness
Lingation in the nommal course of business, as well as responses to clums and investganons
described below, can be expensive, lengthy and disruptive to normal business operations Morcover,
the results of complex legal proceedings and government mvestigations ate difficult to predict.
Attorneys for MIIS are representing MIS ny all of these matters. Management is currently unable to
estimate, with 1easonable certamnty, the possible loss, or range of loss, if any, for such lawswts and
investigations Management of METS 1s unable to determine the amaunt of any possible ~etdements
for such lawsuits and mvestigations, but 1s of the opiion that all of the lawsuits are covered by

appheable MEES msurance.

MHS 15 subject to asserted and unasserted clamms (in addition to litigation} encountered m the
ordinary course of business .\s a vesult of the current level of governmental and public conceins
with health care fraud and abuse, management recognizes that addinonal mvestigative activity could
occur m the future  Tn the opimion of management and after consultation with legal counsel,
management believes it has esrablished adequate acerued reserves relared to all known maltters, The
outcome ol any potennal investgauve, regulatory or prosecutoral actvity that may occur m the
future cannat be predicted with certamnty. however, and any associated pmentjal furure losses
resulting from such acuvity could have a materal adverse effect on the futere financial position,

results of opetations and hquidity of MEES

Self-Tusmranee Prograws

As discussed i Nozes . § and [, GIC provides gencral and professional labihity coverage to MHS
and 1ts subsidiarses  GICs policies provide primary and certain excess lability coverage. GIC
retams the nsk related to the primany poliey and reinsures the whote of the excess policies While
mnsurance policy limits vary by vear, management helieves the amounts are appropriate
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Note R - Commiunents and Contingent Liabilities — Continued

G1C’s primary coverage hmuts for the penods ending June 30 are:

2014 2013
[ lealthcare Professional Laalnhiy (FIPLL) and $5,000 pet 1elated loss event $5.000 pet related loss event
Managed Care Orgameation 1 abihey (MCOY 320000 aggregate $16,500 agprepate
Commercial General Libsiy (CGL) $5.000 per occutrence F5,000 per oceurrence
$20.000 aggregate $10.500 aggregate

GIC’s prmary coverage for TIPL 15 §$5,000 per loss event. GIC provides excess coverage for TIPL
and MCO in the aggregate amount of $75,000 1n excess of $5,000 for related loss events and n
excess of 320,000 and $16,500 aggregate for fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2013, respectively. GIC
provides excess coverage for COL n the aggregate amount of $75,000 1 excess of $5000 per
occutrence and 1 excess of $20,000 and $16.500 aggregate tor fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2013,
respectively. All excess coverage 1s remnsured by commercial msutance companies.

In managements opinion, the assets of GIC are suffictent to meet 1ts obligations as of Juone 30,
200 If the finanonal conditton of GIC were to matertally deteriorate m the future, and GIC were
unable (o pay its claun obligatons, the responsibility to pay those claims would return 1o NHS

MHS and certan of us subsidianies are sclf-mmsured agamst employee medical claims  Plan
expenses tnclude clans mceurred and provisions for unreported claims. However, the program
hias an annual aggregate stop loss provision per employee

MHS and certun of s subsidiaries are self-insured m the State of Maryland for the use and
benefil of all employees of MEIS The State of Maryland requires any self-msurer employer to
ptovide a workers” compensation surety bond issued by a corporate surcty company that meets
the Rtate’s financial ravmg under A M Best MIIS has had a surety boad in place since 1997
currently written by Iidehty and Depostt Company of Maryland in the amount of $2,200 All past,
present, existing and potenual hability under this bond shall remam i effect and to the benetit of
the State of Maryland

MHS and certamn of its subsidiaries are self-insured agamnst unemployment claims and have surety
honds of $1.893 for the Medical Center and $339 for SMI The amounts change each October 1
as dictated by the Marvland Depariment of Ticensing and Regulation.



Mercy Health Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Note R - Commitments and Contingent Liabilitics - Continued

I verse Coosrimetiee i

The Medical Center and MI‘C have entered nto separate long term leases for commercial space,

"T'he feases contam escalation clauses and charges tor other costs related to the leased space. Future
minmnum payiments fot these leases for cach of the years ended June 30 are as follows:

2015 h) 2726
2016 2,727
2017 1,945
2R 1,722
2019 1,694
Thereafter 57.933

% 68,747

MHS and ceriamn of 1ts subsidiaries have other office space leases  Rent expense for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $3,056 and $5,047, respectively

The Medieal Center and AMI+C have enteved mrto separate long term operating leases for equipment
The leases contam escalation clauses and charges for other costs related to the leased space. Future
minimum payments for these leases tor cach of the years ended June 30 arc as follows

2015 ) 4,180
2010 3,796
2017 1.961
2018 1,329
2019 1.232
Thereafter 1.080

b £3.584

MTIIS and cetramn of us subsidiaries have other operating leases for equpmenr. Lquipment lease
expense for the vears ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was 4032 and $3,779, respectively,
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Note § - Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission

The Medical Center's charges are subject to review and approval by the State of Maryland Health
Services Cost Review Comnussion {the Commission). Management has made the requured filings
with the Commussion and believes the Medical Center to be in compliance with the Comnussion's
tequrements The Commmussion has jurtsdiction over hospital reimbursement m- Maryland by
agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicard Services (CMS). This agreement 15 based on
a walver from the Medicare Prospective Payment System retmbursement prmetples granted under
Scenon 1814(by of the Soctal Secunty Act On January 10, 2014 Mayland’s All-Payer [lospital
System Modernization was approved by CMS. Tlus 15 a five year demonstatnon where Marytand
agreed 1o permanently shift away from its current statutory wawver, which is based on Medicare
payment pet npatent adiussion, n exchange for the new CMS model based on Medicare per capita
total hospial cost growth

The Commussion established an uncompensated care fund whereby all hospitals are 1equired to
contribute 0.75%0 of ievenues to this fund to help provide for the cost associled with
uncompensated care for certamn Maryland hospitals above the State average  In December 2008, the
Commussion modified this mechanism to finance uncompensated care statewide The poley
implemented 100% pooling and all Maryland hosparals have the same percentage ol uncompensated
care 1n rates |lgh uncompensated care hospitals recerve funds and low uncompensared care
hospitals pav mto the fund The Medical Center had net receipts of $245 and 3210 tor 2014 and
2013, respectively, related to 1ts particpation i the uncompensated care fund mechanism

The Commission's rate-serting methodology for service cenrers that provide both mpauent and
outpatent services or only outpatient services consists ot establishing an acceptable umit rate for
these centers within the applicable faclity  The actual average unit charge fot cach serviec center i
compared to the approved rate on a monthly basis. ‘the rate variances, plus penalues where
applicable, are apphed o decrease (i the case of overchaiges) or mcrease (n the case of
undercharges) {urure approved rates on an annual basis The tummng of the Comumussion’s rate
admisiments for the Medieal Cenrer could result in an inerease or reducnon due to the varances and
penaltes descibed above ina vear subsequent to the year in wlich such items occur - MIIS policy
15 to accrue tey cnue based on actual charges for services to patients m the year in which the services
are performed and billed
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Note T - Housing Assistance Payment Contract

The LS Federal Housing Admmistranon (FHA) has contracted with CSC under Sccuon 8 of
Tulc 1T of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 10 make housing assistance
pavments 10 CSC on behalt of certificd tenants. bor fiscal vear 2014 and 2013, the maximum
contract commitment was $1,122 and $1,117 per year, respectively. Dusing the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, CSC reccrved housing assistance payments of $608 and $6014, respectively, which are
mcluded mn patient service revenue m the accompanying consolidated statements of operatons “Lhe
effecnive date of the contract 1s retroactive to April 1, 2013 and expired on DMarch 31, 2014 The
overall contract expuaten date is March 31, 2033.

Note U - Certain Risks and Uncertainties
Reandatron and Regpbm sement

MHS provides health caie services prumarily through an acute carc hospital i Balnmore Caty and a
long-term care tacility in Balumore County, Marviand.

MIIS and ather healtheate providers in Maryland are subject to certam mherent #isks, mcluding the
tollowing

e Dependence on revenues derved from reimbursement by the federal Medicare and State
Medicad prograimns;

e Repulation of hospital rates by the State of Maryland Health Services Cost Review
Cormmission,

e  Government regulatton, government budgetary constranis and proposed legistatrve and
tegulatary changes, and

e Lawsus alleping malpractice and refated claims.

Such mberent usks requie the use of certam management esitmates i the preparation of MHS
consolidated financial statements and it 15 reasonably possibie that a change in such estmates may

OTCUr

‘The Medicare and state Medicard reimbursement progiams represent a ~ubstantial portion of NS
tevenues and MI1S' operations are subject to a variety of other fedoral, state and local regulatory
tequitements  latlare to mantain required regulatory approvals and licenses and/ o1 changes 1 such
regulatony requuements could have a sigmificant adverse effect on MHS. Changes m fedetal and
state rambursement funding mechamsms and related government budgetars constramis could have
Astgnilicant adverse effect on MIIS.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
(Doltars in thousands)

Note U - Certain Risks and Uncertainties - Continued
Regilanon and Reznbursenent - Cuntennted

The tederal povernment and many states have aggressively increascd enforcement under Medicare
and Medicard ann-fraud and abuse laws and physician sclf-referral laws. Recent federal imtiatives
have prompted a national review of federaily tunded health care programs. In addinon, the tederal
government and many states have wmplemented programs to audic and recover potential
overpayments ro providers from the Medicare and Medieard programs MHS has umplemented 2
comphance program to monitor conformance with apphcable laws and regulatons, but the
possibility of future governmental review and enforcement action exists

As a result of recently enacted and pending federal health cate reform legislanion, substannal changes
are anticipated 1n the U.S health care delivery system. Such legislavon includes numerous provisions
atfecunyg the delivery of health care services, the financing of health cate costs, reunbursement of
health cate providers, and the legal obligations of health 1nsurers, providers and employers Thesc
provisions ate currently slated to take effect at specified tmmes over the next decade. Lhis federal
health care reform legislation does not affect the consohdated financial statements for the year
cended June 30, 2014,

Latresterents

MHS and certam of 1ts subsidhartes have funds on deposit with finanenl msartions i escess of
amounis insuted by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Certan alternatve mvestments held in the MHS portfolio arc cxposed to potental risks i excess of
the msks associated with the other investments 11 the MHS portfolio These mchude, but are not
limited o, 1he following potential risks:

o Lmited or no hquidity (including “side pocket” arrangemants),

e dormative financal instruments that expose the mvestment funds o marker risk (it the market
value of the contract 15 higher or lower than the conttact price at the matunty date) and credst
nisk (amsmg from the potential inability of counterparnies to perform under the terins of the
CONIACES ),

s nvestment in non-matketable securities that are valued without the benefit of an active
secondary matket,

o substantialhy less regulaton, and

L o current iNcome pl‘OdllCthll
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued
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Note V - Endowment

Curreat accounting standards provide guidance on the net asser classitication of donor-restricted
endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that 15 subject to an enacted version of rthe
Uniform  Prudent Aanagement of Institutonal Act of 20060 (UPMIFFA) and additional
disclosures abous an organization’s endowment funds Tn 2008, the State of Maryland adopted

UPMIF.A

The MHS endowments consist of threc mdividual funds establishod for a varety of purposes
fhe endowments include both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the
bomd of trustees to function as endowments As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, net asscts assoctated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the board
of trustees to function as endowments, are classified and 1eporred based on the existence or
abscnce of donor-imposed restrictions

‘the board of trustees of MIIS has inteipreted the Maryland State Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (SPMIA) as requiring the preservauon of the faw value of the onginal
gift ay of the gitt date of the donot-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of dus interprefanon, MHS classifies as permancntly
restricted net assets (a) the onginal value of gifts donated to the petmanent endowment, (b) the
origmal value of subsequent gifts donated o the permanent endowment, and (¢) accumulations
to the permanent endowment made 1n accordance with the duccuen of the appheable donor g1ft
mstrwment at the tume the accumulation 1s added to the fund ‘Lhe remaimning portion of the
donor-restricted endowment fund that 18 not classified 1 permanently 1estucted net assets is
classificd as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated  for
expenditure by the orgamizaton in a manner consistent wich the standard of prudence
piescubed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMILA, MIIS considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

The duraton and preservation of the fund

The purposces of the organization and the donot-1estricted endowment fund
General economic conditions

The possible eftfect of inflatron and deflation

The expected total return from meome and the appreciaton of invesrments
Orther resources of the organization

B S e T e M P
NN -

-

The wnvestment policies of the organization
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Note V— Endowment - Continued

MHS has adopted an nvestment policy for endowment assers that attempts 10 provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowments while scehing to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets Endowment assets include those assets
of donos-restricted funds that must be held in perpetusty

F'o satisfy 1ts long term tate-of-return objectives, MITS relies on a total return strategy 1in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yleld (interest and dividends). MHS targets a diversified asser allocaton that places a
greater emphasis on equity-based mvestments to achieve 1ts long-rerm return objectives within
prudent nsk constramts.

At June 30, 2014, the endowment net asset composition by type ot fund conssted of the
tollowing:

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restmcted funds $ 0 % 155 % 2178 % 2,333
Total funds % 0 % 155 % 2178 % 2,333

At June 30, 2013, the endowment net assct compostiion by type of fund consisted of the
tollowing:

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donot-resticted funds b3 v % P) $ 2178 % 2,159
Total funds % 0 ¢ (R 2178 % 2,159
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Note V- Endowment - Continued

Changes 1 endowment net assets for the fiscal yem cnded func 30, 2014, consisted of the

following:
Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

lindowment net assers, begmmng of year 5 U % {1 $ L1780 % 2,159
Investment remasn

Investment income (} 265 0 265
Total mvestment loss 0 265 0 265
Appropmaten of endowment
assct for expendiure U (1) 0 9
Endowment net assets, end of year ) 0 % 155 % 2178 % 2.333

Changes in endowment net assets for the fscal ven

cnded June 30, 2013, consisted of the

tollowing,
Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Resuicted Resuicted Total

bEndowment net assets, beginmung of year % 0 3% (131 3% 2,178 % 2.047
Ivestment retuine

Investment income 0 186 H 186
Total mvestment income 0 186 { 180
Appropriation of endowment
asset for expenditute 0 (74 0 {74
Fadowment net asscts, end of year 3 (R (I 5 2,178 % 2,159
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Note W — Other Long-Term Liabilities

Orther long-term habilites consist of the tollowing at fune 30

2014 2013
Defetted compensatuon plan $ 0,184 % 5737
Retrement annuity plan 4,115 4.176
GIC claims esamated tad 2374 1,000
Otha 591 524
) 13,264 % 11,442

Note X — Asset Abandonment

During fiscal year 2014, MHS abandoncd several property projects Duung fiscal year 2013,
MIIS decided to abandon its investment in the partally-completed upgrade of the Meditech
hospital information system.  Although management already had plans to replace the existing
phvsician clectronic health record (EHR) computer system with LP1C, significant performance
1ssues with the previous KHR computer system accelerated s replacement. Management
deaided that EPTC was a better solution to aclieving an integrated EINR (hospital and
physician), and therefore abandoned efforis to complere the Meditech projeet. The tirst phase
of the EPIC insrall (EPIC ambulatory fur physiclans) went hve Angust 1, 2013,

Note Y - Subsequent Events
Management evaluated all events and transacuons thar occuried after June 30, 2014 and through

September 8, 2014, the date the consolidared financial statements were available 10 be 1ssued. MHS
did not have any material recognizable subsequent events duung the petod.

63~



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION



Imwl

170d1 si01pne Juspuadapur 32§

£96986 S (0r9%6T) S 6TV'ET LEE€'F9 S 68F'898 S Sek'oT S €59l § SIHSSVIVIOL
€eeOT 0 1507¢ $2c £€8'91 0 8€El SINSE ()
Om—..w. Q 1] 0 Om _..v O 0 u—£n>5uuu u.UﬂcﬁcA ,dc-u:.r:ruz
026 {(to0'¢} (€6%) &Ly (0g0's) (cav'e) 050'€1 S2ILHGIL 03 SDULAPE PUT UL SIUIWIRALY
k'S 0 0 0 0 7ot'8 0 MU OpgEArDN 3pod w-Suor|
0 (g9t <) 0 86£'S €96°61 0 0 (I JO 398 100 0113200101
SC1'ED 0 ] 0 €80'C9 €0’z 0 YD pApLSY
156'1v1 0 0 STNA €16°001 90Tl 988°01 DWW
—uUU—.E/JZ ‘—CCC»q —u:m —Juun-b.-.—/dﬁ 1\:..3.1
186°01 0 0 0 801°F 0 ¥18°9 MUITUIIAUL W50y
0ei'eT 0 0 5¢0°l 560'Te 0 0 votsad 1w s
..»:.::—:.:u 20 DS} .rﬁ mv_JL /—J_.“S"_
SLASSV YIH.LO ANV SLNIWLSHANI
L80°9FS 0 TO'L 209°€C 8TECIC 0 0 INIFWAINOT ANY ALYTI0HUd
619991 ) 626'S1 L1E9L £66'1Tt 9¢0‘s 901 SLASSY LNAWYND TV.LOL
161 0 Uzt €t 106 0 0 ST GO DY)
808°L 0 €9¢ LT 696'9 0 0 Ao
181t 0 0 0 0 181t 0 U arArD . <dpoyd suaun )
1569 forTt) 89¢ foess L56°L 0 6L< U Iqramds D40
LITEr 0 FCOHL 9859 L66°1T 0 0 DU THGEAEDI TURIL )
96t 0 0 187 0 0 0 susodyp o wfednad yuwpioy
PEO'LL 0 0 0911 rEOL 0 0 Luoyine
BRILNSIY] rn— u.:.:,* .rﬂ:._:,.\_ .*C CC_CCQ :_.:._:“v
681718 S 0 S CThE ostg S  T69'SL S 687 [ S NMUDWINIAUL UUDY Boys put \udpzanbo Yo yse)
S13SSV INIWAND
SLASSE
PRIEPIOSBOY) suoneunuiy Isudsauyg DU ‘stIepy  ouj “Iua) Juj oup
uepIsdyg E[[21S [EOIPOJY  ‘uonEpuno]  ‘S3D8A33G
A EULS) 2 yieaH
A3y Lo

(spuesaoyy ut s1ejjo(q)

$102 ‘0¢ dunf

UOIBWIO)U] 133YS doue[eqg Funeprosuo)
SIWEBIPISqIIG PUR "OUJ ‘S301AIRS YI[ed | ADIO



lwcl

nodaa sionpne juapusdopul 238

(ovo6c) s 6z9'se

€96'986 S L8P S 68K'898 S S6F9T S £99'LlE § SLASSYIAN ONV

SHLLITIIVITIVIOL
06¢ €€ (o<t 92) 801p1 8Tt €£T'89T 1¥T9T FeeLe SLASSY 1IN TVIOL
8/1¢e (ccod) 0 cco1 (AN $S0T 0 poDu3s L muTULd
L0€ 8T (s0c'<T) et 619°L 656°61 805°¢T 0 popmsar fuuodun |,
€08'Ces (1887} 08c'sL ¥€6TE€ 1S1e 88 veels popuINBLn

SLASSV LAN
€29°€€9 0oc'1) 12¢'11 60122 952°009 174 6z SHLLITIFVIT1IVIOL
TOTCL 0 0 91 100°¢ct 8+Z 0 saipqu| we-fuopPqe
wow,om O O 1] vcw.mﬂ G 0 vu:_—mﬁn_— h_dﬂf Al 1N g
1< 9 0 0 O _.NN.Q 0 O ccmtrlfn_c LYW M-IN0(]
$om.—m Q0 O 0 com,_.m c 0 Vqlv:—.ua:uc«_izc.:m UOISEAGL |
66118 0 ) c68p1 L9y 0 kil 1P wg-Buer|
€86°001 (6s"L) 1291t 008 2 6£878 0 <ie SALLITIAVIT INTYYND TV.LOL
00U 8 0 0 0 000’8 0 ) 1P Jo 2w |
C O 0 O O O O ....n_.ﬂ.:—ﬁ:._ 1} :U:.::c:nv
coF 0 0 Cot 0 0 0 ssadap s wiaedsid suapioy]
¢TT'es 06g 1) 125°tL +09 658'99 0 681 avuadvr pancoe pur yeied siuncamy
£97°6 S 0 S 0 19T°1 S 086t 0 S 9% S 1QIP ULDI-TUO] JO SIULL L 1IN )
SALLITIEVIT LNIYUND
SLASSY LIN ANF S ALLTIGE T
PAIIYPIOSUO]) SuonvuIuI]y asudsvug JUJ ‘SUIVAL DU “IUI) u Ul
uenIsAyq PLNS [eNpagy  ‘uomuepuno,  sIO1AIG
oop RULE] WiesH
. Lsapy L

(spuesnoyy ui s1e[jo(])
10z ‘o€ dunf

PaNUIIU0)-UOIIEWIOJU] 123G dueeg SUNEPHOSU0)
SOLEBIPISQNG PUE *OUJ ‘SIDIAISG YI[BIL] ADIDA



lhol

1odas s101pne 1wapuadopur 2g

1£5C 989 {0z'¢) RS Ar 698°C (989} 91 (SSOT) HNODNIONILVEAJO
181'619 (D) 950'8¢<1 €L0°SS FS0'SEY €9¢<'L [ SASNAdXH TVILOL
L80°0% 0 Nmmrm [\rard [ST RIS 0 0 UONT/IBORIT put :::«D.:LUC
orsTL 0 L9 68 1SL°01 LT 0 ~seday
6TL'6l 0 0 618 068'81 0 0 asurdv 1y
$08°6F (©91'9) 968'¢ SSHg £re'sk <y 17 s prepsad 2241()
TI8%T (3% 901°c 756 THe8L 0 0 DN}
S0T9L iy ciL's ¥16% £99'8 0 0 ¥ [CUOINIFa |
+9¢°1T 0 99L°1 08¢y 89017 oSt 0 saddns aqqepuado ()
AT 0 e’ $90°1 $e<'sT 0 0 supddos orusey |
6.6'SS 0 1<8 6.8 6¥T'FS 0 ] snpddns [y pue oipo)y
06085 (€$9'y) 01601 Lefig T89 €61 161 2L 31U Pue SILk[eY
SASNIIXHT
TIL1eo ez il 6¢8°FEL €T8'LS €C6'LEF L8 181 STNNTATE TVIOL
098°¢ 0 91 0621 £0b°C 0 0 suoueado Joj prsn
SUOIDLUIIN Y EC.& —J.Jvﬂb—d SN ._UZ
67<TE ez e 6T°01 p9st. THL'ET 1.8 18+t ~nud sas Bunesado nyuy
$TE°C8¢ 0 (9% 74 SR VA ¥ 8. 1Y 0 0 IREAL DL Juded PN
6170 0 (0oc'2) {6:€ 8s¥1) 0 0 QP peq oy suoAOK]
THO8U9 S 0 S ¥Eo'lEL S 0SL6F S 8%ty S G S 0 S (Munwsip pue voueao(E jo 1)
SINUIAII DIATDS iruzml
SANNTATY
vuaﬂﬂm—OmCOU wﬂn.-—mﬂmﬁ—m—m Umm.:w._vucm .UCH an-N: Uﬂﬂ huo-EOU .Uﬂm .UC—
ueIdIsAYy g B(21§ {EDIP3 N ‘uonepunc,  ‘Sa0L13g
Sy Yieayy wiesy
fosopy A7y

(spuesnoy) ui sye[jo(q)
10z ‘0€ 2unf papus Jeax
uorIewIojU] suoneidd Jo Jusawlelg§ SUNEPIOSUOD)

SOLIRIPISNS PUE *OUJ ‘SID1AJaG YIBIE] AJ3IdN



Iwwl

uodasx syonpne 1wapuadopul 335

v8L6l s 0 S 0gg S €5 S w'iL s o S <si'e S SLASSY LIN AILIOTYLSTIAN
. NI (ESVaYDaa) ASVAUINI
SH8T 0 0 (D] .88C 0 0 1y wdinbo pue 4uadoud yo reepind
21 20§ STOIDLIII WL} PISLIA 31Is5T 1IN
0 0 L88°C 0 (L38'c) 0 0 S103SE DU JO s SULL |,
#e) 0 0 0 <) 0 0 suoneSyqo swepd 1o UL 150d 01 asuey)
0LE'9t 0 {Lsg'e) <19y 9ct'TL 0 cele SASNAJIXT YFAOQ
SANNAATY 40 (LIDIAQ) SSAIXH
6E8°¢L {989, f05¢<) €98°1 L8T6 989 6£0°¢ (S3SNEJXE) IWODNI YFHLO LAN
gy 0 7o) (co; oL 0 0 DY
{19} 0 811 0 (rotr) 9 v HWBOPUEGE 1Sy,
(1) 0 0 0 o1, 0 0 fes0dsip 13sse wo (ssop) vty
{c9g) 0 0 0 ReiTy 1] 0 1P Jo sudwysmBuna {pe uo ued)
{196) I} o} 0 a—oov 0 Q deas M psoo1ut wo £50] PA/ITAUUY
cclol (et 0 69t 0S6°L e 966 SILDOS Fuipral ve (ssopwed prziEuun 1N
88¢ 0 0 0 0 1] 88¢€ @reygye jo surs vt linhey
9¢p'e s f¢ezs) 0 S 059 S €8T S §8T S 1€l S DUWHDUF JUIUL AU
(SASNAIXT) TINOINI ¥FHLO
paiepijosuo)) suoneuiwnyg asisdiaug oup ‘sUCEY  JuJ ‘5iud)y Uy ou]
uvisAy g viNg [POIPAIN  ‘uonrpunoj  ‘sadAdg
AW Yo yivoH
LW FSYE3 Y]

(spuesnoy ut ssejjoq)
$102 ‘0¢ dun{ papua 3eax
panunuo’) - yonewioju] suonesadQ Jo 1udwolelg uneprjosucy)

SIWIBIPISqNIS PUE "OU] ‘SIDTAIIG P[] ADIJA



